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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 07 OCTOBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Se leka,  good morn ing  

everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you ready?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   We are  ready Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The f i rs t  w i tness fo r  today Cha i rpe rson  

is  Ms Nonku lu leko D lamin i  fo rmer l y  Ve le t i  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   And she is  ready to  take  the  oa th .  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease admin is te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion?  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record?  

MS DLAMINI :   I  am Nonku lu leko Sy lv ia  D lamin i .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any ob jec t ions to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MS DLAMINI :   No  I  do  no t .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  20 

MS DLAMINI :   I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Do you swear  tha t  the  ev idence tha t  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

e lse  bu t  the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  

say,  so  he lp  me God.  
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MS DLAMINI :   So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you;  you may be seated Ms 

D lamin i .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ms D lamin i  i s  l ega l l y  represented Cha i r  

perhaps the  Advocate  cou ld  p lace h imse l f  on  record? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   You can do i t  f rom where  you are  

jus t  sw i tch  on  the  m icrophone,  yes .  

ADV STUBBS:  Thank you Deputy  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  and  thank 10 

you Mr  Se leka.   My name is  Mkhu lu l i  S tubbs.   I  am f rom 

the  Johannesburg  Bar.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Mr  S tubbs.   Cha i rpe rson fo r  

th is  w i tness we w i l l  use  Eskom Bund le  10  and in  tha t  f i l e  i t  

w i l l  be  Exh ib i t  U21.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Ms D lamin i  you –  i s  i t  

D lamin i .   I  shou ld  re fer  you as  Ms D lamin i ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS DLAMINI :   Yes tha t  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes thanks.   So the  f i le  i s  a lso  there  

be fore  you;  Eskom Bund le  10 .   You w i l l  see  the  

documenta t ion  re la t ing  to  you is  under  U21 and tha t  i s  the 

on ly  documenta t ion  wh ich  we w i l l  re fe r  you to .   Ms D lamin i  

you have p rov ided the  commiss ion  w i th  an  a f f idav i t  wh ich  
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i s  conta ined on page –  and I  w i l l  be  re fer r ing  you to  pages  

–  page numbers  on  the  top  le f t  corner  o f  the  document  

wh ich  a re  the  page numbers  in  b lack  and not  the  ones in  

red .   So your  a f f idav i t  i s  on  page 411.   Can you see tha t?  

That  i s  a f f idav i t :  

“ I ,  the  unders igned Nonku lu leko D lamin i . ”  

You see tha t?   I t  s ta r ts  f rom tha t  page and i t  runs up  to  

page 416.    

MS DLAMINI :   Yes I  see i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You see  tha t .   Jus t  keep your  10 

m icrophone on.   You conf i rm the  s ignature  to  be  yours  on  

tha t  page –  416?  

MS DLAMINI :   Yes I  conf i rm Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And the  da te  i s  7  October  2020?  

MS DLAMINI :   7  September.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   7  September  2020 I  beg your  pardon.   

You see tha t?  

MS DLAMINI :   Yes thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   I t  has  jus t  one annexure  to  

i t .   Cha i rperson may I  beg leave to  have the  a f f idav i t  –  we l l  20 

i t  i s  the  on ly  document  Cha i rperson Exh ib i t  U21 w i th  the  

annexure  there to?   U –  indeed Cha i rperson.   Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The a f f idav i t  o f  Ms Nonku lu leko D lamin i  

s ta r t ing  a t  page  411 is  admi t ted  and w i l l  be  marked as  

Exh ib i t  U21.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ms D lamin i  thank you fo r  mak ing  

yourse l f  ava i lab le  to  ass i s t  the  commiss ion .   Jus t  fo r  the  

purposes o f  in fo rmat ion  and to  the  Cha i rpe rson your  –  you 

have o f fe red  to  ass i s t  the  commiss ion  in  regard  to  a  mat te r  

re la t ing  to  the  suspens ion  o f  the  execut ives .   I f  you  ta lk  to  

the  m icrophone.  

MS DLAMINI :   Yes Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   And jus t  be fore  we go in to  tha t  10 

cou ld  you te l l  the  Cha i rperson  p lease what  i s  your  

p ro fess ion?  

MS DLAMINI :   Cha i rperson I  am by pro fess ion  I  am a 

qua l i f ied  Char te red Accountant  so  I  t ra ined th rough  get t ing  

my jun io r  degree a t  Wi ts  Un ivers i t y  and the  h igher  d ip loma 

f rom the  Un ivers i t y  o f  Nata l .   And I  d id  my ar t i c les  th rough  

Ernst  and Young and then qua l i f ied  as  a  Char te red 

Accountant .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see .   The pa r t i cu la r  i ssue before  us  

the  suspens ion  o f  the  execut ives  re la tes  to  Eskom 20 

execut ives  who were  suspended on 11 March 2015 th ree  o f  

them and the  o ther  one on 12 March 2015.   In  an  a f f idav i t  

o f  one o f  those execut ives  Ms Tsho lo fe lo  Mole fe  wh ich  we 

prov ided you w i th  you w i l l  reca l l .   She makes –  she  s ta tes  

to  th is  commiss ion  tha t  on  the  10  March 2015.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  Mr  Se leka.   Do you want  to  le t  

Ms D lamin i  te l l  me f i rs t  when she jo ined Eskom and what  

pos i t ion  she he ld  a t  the  t ime o f  the  suspens ions?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Indeed Cha i rpe rson.    

MS DLAMINI :   Thank you Cha i rpe rson.   So I  jo ined  Eskom 

in  2003 i t  was 1  October.   I  jo ined as  a  Management  

Accountant  a t  the  corpo ra te  leve l  and I  s tayed in  tha t  

pos i t ion  fo r  about  th ree  years .   

I  was then p romoted s t i l l  w i th in  the  same 

depar tment  to  be  one leve l  h igher  in  tha t  –  in  the  same 10 

space wh ich  was bas ica l l y  a  pos i t ion  tha t  was 

conso l ida t ing  on  a l l  the  in fo rmat ion  f rom the  var ious 

d iv is ions o f  Eskom and repor t ing  to  EXCO and in fo rmat ion  

tha t  wou ld  u l t imate ly  ge t  to  the  board  o f  Eskom.   Bas ica l l y  

f inanc ia l  repor t ing  and opera t ions o f  Eskom.    

A round 2006 a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  2006 I  then s ta r ted  

as  a  f inance manager  in  the  d iv is ion  ca l led  Group Cap i ta l  

where  the  who le  bu i ld ing  o f  the  new power  s ta t ion  –  power  

s ta t ions  a t  Eskom was be ing  executed and I  was bas ica l l y  

the  f inance person tha t  was suppor t ing  a l l  the  pro jec t  20 

managers  in  the  pro jec ts  w i th  a  team o f  cou rse  and I  was 

then conso l ida t ing  aga in  i n to  the  d iv is ion  in fo rmat ion  tha t  

wou ld  aga in  ge t  to  the  EXCO and the  board .  

I  was repor t ing  a t  the  po in t  o f  s ta r t ing  in  tha t  ro le  in  

2006 to  a  Genera l  Manager  so  there  was a  ro le  ca l led  
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F inance Manager  tha t  repor ted  to  Genera l  Manager  

F inance who wou ld  be  respons ib le  fo r  o ther  funct ions 

w i th in  the  d iv i s ion  bu t  s t i l l  f i nance .  

She res igned f rom the  organ isa t i on  about  e igh teen 

months  la te r  when I  was a  f inance manager  repor t ing  to  

he r.   And –  and there fore  around I  th ink  about  m id-2008 I  

was then promoted to  be  the  Genera l  Manager  F inance s t i l l  

fo r  the  Group Cap i ta l  P rogram and there fo re  I  was s t i l l  

l a rge ly  respons ib le  fo r  what  was  about  f inanc ia l s  o f  the 

pro jec ts  bu t  I  had to  take  o ther  ro les  l i ke  suppor t ing  HR 10 

and o ther  e lements  w i th in  the  d iv is ion  and had a  broader  

team to  –  to  suppor t  and bas ica l l y  repor t ing  to  me.  

Around –  so  tha t  was around 2008  and 2011 I  th ink  

i t  was Eskom went  th rough qu i te  a  huge res t ruc tur ing  and 

t ransformat ion  and in  tha t  p rocess Shared Serv i ces  was 

fo rmed and was requ i red  to  bas ica l l y  suppor t  the  who le  o f  

Eskom wi th  t ransact iona l  p rocesses bas i ca l l y  to  t ry  and  

dr ive  e f f i c ienc ies  and make sure  tha t  we s tandard i se  ways 

o f  do ing  th ings and work  f rom one sys tem.   And i t  was a  

Shared Serv ices  tha t  was not  on l y  focuss ing  on  f inances.   20 

I t  had the  f inance e lement  wh ich  was about  accounts  

payab le ,  th ings tha t  a re  repet i t i ve  and t ransact iona l .  

I t  a lso  bu i l t  in  f lee t  management .   Eskom has a  very  

huge f lee t  ac ross  the  count ry  and  we needed to  bas i ca l l y  

conso l ida te  tha t  funct ion  to  ge t  e f f i c ienc ies  in  the  
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p rocu rement  p rocesses.   But  a lso  to  be  ab le  to  suppor t  the  

bus iness because you wou ld  f ind  one bus iness w i th  

veh ic les  tha t  they do  not  need wh i le  o thers  are  go ing  to  

buy veh ic les  and  i t  was about  t ry ing  to  ge t  the  cu l tu re  o f  

shar ing  in  where  –  fo r  the  par t s  o f  the  bus iness tha t  were  

in  the  same v i c in i t y.  

I t  –  the  shared serv i ces  cent re  a lso  took care  o f  

some HR processes tha t  i s  the  h i re  to  re t i re  where  they  

were  no t  necessar i l y  s t ra teg i c  bu t  cou ld  be  t ransact iona l .   

So i t  had about  f ive  funct ions in  i t .  10 

So we se t  i t  up  in  2011.   I t  had  anothe r  e lement  

ca l led  Master  Data  Management  bas ica l l y  to  c lean the  da ta  

in  the  organ isa t i on .  So i t  s ta r ted  in  2011 where  we had to  

work  w i th  the  organ isa t ion  and pu l l  the  peop le  in to  th is  un i t  

ca l led  Shared Serv ices  wh ich  we ach ieved.  

In  2011/12/13 we were  go ing  th rough rea l l y  the  

se tup  and s tab i l i s ing .   But  a round 2014 i t  had fu l l y  

s tab i l i sed  and a l l  the  issues were  reso lved.  

And a round 2014 Eskom was a lso  go ing  th rough  

qu i te  s ign i f i can t  f inanc ia l  cha l lenges amongst  o thers  you 20 

know bes ides load shedd ing  and o ther  i ssues tha t  were  a  

cha l lenge.   And in  tha t  p rocess inc lud ing  the  fac t  tha t  the  

ta r i f f  was jus t  never  enough to  cover  the  f inanc ia l  needs o f  

the  bus iness.  

So in  the  – in  a round I  th ink  i t  was  the  beg inn ing  o f  
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2014 or  even ea r l ie r  there  was a  pro jec t  to  – tha t  was 

des igned w i th  the  ass is tance o f  ex te rna l  consu l tan ts .   I t  

was ca l led  Bus iness Product iv i t y  Prog ram.   And rea l l y  i t  

was look ing  across aga in  the  bus iness to  ex t rac t  

e f f i c ienc ies  and  to make sure  tha t  whethe r  i t  be 

procu rement ,  ma in tenance and o ther  s tu f f  we were  do ing  

work  more  e f f i c ien t ly.  

I f  I  reca l l  a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime there  was a  gap o f  

about  225b i l l i on  i n  the  ta r i f f  app l i ca t ion  tha t  we had  made.   

And the  unders tand ing  was tha t  the  bus iness had to  ex t rac t  10 

c lose  to  70  b i l l i on  to  bas ica l l y  ass i s t  in  c los ing  the  gap.  

So I  was not  par t  o f  the  des ign  o f  the  prog ram but  I  

was then requested to  take  over  when i t  moved to  

imp lementa t ion  phase and i t  repor ted  to  the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  

Off i cer  o r  the  F inance D i rec to r.    

And tha t  was the  ro le  I  took  over  a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  

2014.   And fo r  most  o f  tha t  year  and i t  was rea l l y  a  v i r tua l  

s t ruc ture  wh ich  repor ted  to  the  board  aga in  and EXCO to  

bas ica l l y  t rack  whethe r  we were  ge t t ing  these  sav ings  

because the  idea  was to  ge t  to  70  b i l l i on  over  a  per iod  o f  20 

about  f i ve  years .   

And a t  the  s ta r t  i t  wou ld  be  s low but  we were  

expect ing  i t  to  p ick  up  so  v i r tua l l y  I  was manag ing  a  team 

tha t  was coord ina t ing  the  s t ruc tu re  ac ross the  bus iness 

and repor t ing  tha t  in fo rmat ion  bo th  to  EXCO and i t  
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repor ted  to  a  board  sub-commi t tee  ca l led  F inance 

Investment  Commi t tee  on  f requent  in te rva ls .  

And tha t  was a t  the  t ime I  then  was requested –  

tha t  was most  o f  2014 and in  2015  March tha t  i s  when the  

suspens ions then  happened.   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  what  was  your  pos i t ion  in  March  

2015?  

MS DLAMINI :   So  I  was s t i l l  a  sen ior  Genera l  Manager  in  

the  Shared Serv ices  because when I  took over  the  

bus iness product iv i t y  I  d id  no t  have to  re l inqu ish  tha t  ro le  10 

bu t  i t  was not  so  demand ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS DLAMINI :   So  I  took  more  accountab i l i t y  and ac t iv i t y  on  

the  bus iness product iv i t y  p rogram.   So I  was Shared  

Serv i ces  Sen ior  Genera l  Manager.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And d id  you repor t  to  Ms Mole fe?  

MS DLAMINI :   I  repor ted  to  Ms Mo le fe  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Yes then Ms D lamin i  

le t  us  go  r igh t  in to  what  Ms Mole fe  has sa id  and you dea l  20 

w i th  tha t  aspect  in  your  a f f idav i t .   Be ing  tha t  on  the  10  

March 2015 you rece ived te lephone ca l l s  f rom Mr  Koko.   I f  

you  cou ld  p lease te l l  the  Cha i rperson where  were  you when  

the  ca l l s  were  rece ived and what  were  your  ac t i v i t ies  a t  the 

t ime o f  the  te lephone ca l l s  be ing  rece ived f rom Mr  Koko?  
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MS DLAMINI :   Yes.   So Cha i r  i t  was –  i t  was the  week o f  

the  9  March so  we had a  f inance  s t ra t  sess ion  – s t ra tegy 

sess ion  where  we –  we went  as  a  f inance team.   So Ms  

Mole fe  as  the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off icer  had p robab ly  n ine  or  

ten  peop le  repor t ing  to  her  and I  was one o f  them.   

 So we had schedu led  in  t ime to  be  spend ing  two 

days a t  a  venue ca l led  –  a t  the  t ime i t  was ca l led  Eskom 

Col lege I  th ink  i t  i s  now ca l led  Eskom Academy o f  

Learn ing .   We were  schedu led  to  spend two fu l l  days the  

9 t h  and the  10 t h  a t  the  venue w i th  the  ass is tance o f  a  10 

fac i l i ta to r  to  go  th rough th is  f inance s t ra tegy sess ion .  

 The 9 t h  –  the  9 t h  be ing  the  f i rs t  day s ta r ted  la te .   

We d id  no t  s ta r t  ear ly.   I  cannot  remember  bu t  we s tar ted  

probab ly  c lose  to  m idday so  we went  on  fo r  most  o f  –  we l l  

fo r  the  res t  o f  the  day once we s tared.  

 And we cont inued on the  10 t h  –  we s tar ted  –  I  th ink  

we s tar ted  on  t ime on tha t  day.   And we b roke –  we took a  

break fo r  lunch I  th ink  i t  wou ld  have been around  twe lve  

because the  program was then packed hav ing  los t  a  day  

the  day be fo re .  20 

 So we –  we went  fo r  lunch and the  lunch was in  the  

same venue.  So we had board  rooms downsta i rs  and I  th ink  

the  lunch venue you had to  go  upsta i r s .   We spent  about  

an  hour  the re .  

  So when we f in ished,  we were  to  s ta r t  you know 
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a round about  one  I  th ink  i t  was.   So we were  to  s ta r t  and I  

rece ived a  ca l l  as  we were  wa lk ing  back to  the  venue and  

we were  wa lk ing  in  a  group.    

 Ms Mole fe  was there  and the  o ther  team members  –  

the  co l leagues were  –  we were  wa lk ing  togethe r.   And in  –  

I  p icked up the  ca l l  and i t  was Mr  Koko and he then asked  

as  much as  I  m ight  no t  repor t  –  repeat  i t  word  fo r  word  bu t  

he  enqu i red  where  I  was and I  ind ica ted  I  was there  a t  a  

s t ra tegy sess ion  a t  Eskom Col lege .  

 He requested tha t  I  meet  w i th  h im a t  Me l rose A rch  10 

qu i te  u rgent ly.   And my response was we l l  we a re  a t  a  

s t ra tegy sess ion  I  may not  be  ab le  to  leave r igh t  now.   And  

I  th ink  we had qu i te  –  i t  was qu i te  a  qu i ck  conversa t ion  and  

i t  sounded urgent .  

 And a t  tha t  moment  because we were  wa lk ing  in  a  

group and Ms Mo le fe  was there  and ins t inc t i ve ly  there  was 

no conversa t ion  be fore  tha t .   I  then sa id  to  he r,  do  you 

know what  i s  happen ing  a t  Me l rose Arch  because  I  have  

jus t  rece ived a  ca l l  f rom Mr  Koko.   And rea l l y  i t  was to  

de termine whethe r  i t  was cr i t i ca l  tha t  I  go  there  g iven tha t  20 

genera l l y  when you are  a t  a  s t ra tegy sess ion  i t  i s  usua l l y  a  

per iod  tha t  you t ry  no t  to  d is tu rb  w i th  work  i ssues.  

 And because in  my ro le  in  Shared Serv i ces  and  

Bus iness Produc t iv i t y  Program I  worked w i th  a l l  the  

execut ives  ac ross –  across.   I t  was a  funct ion  –  we l l  bo th  
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func t ions requ i red  tha t  I  suppor t  the  bus iness across –  so  I  

d id  have a  lo t  o f  in te rac t ion  w i th  var ious execu t ives  a t  

d i f fe ren t  t imes.   And there fore ,  to  check the  impor tance o f  

the  requ i rement  to  be  a t  Me l rose Arch  w i th  Ms Mole fe  was 

jus t  to  ass is t  i f  i t  wou ld  be  okay fo r  me to  leave and – and  

wou ld  she know what  was happen ing  there .  

 So tha t  was qu i te  a  qu ick  conversa t ion  because i t  

was jus t  as  the  fac i l i ta to rs  were  wa i t ing  fo r  us  to  s ta r t .   

And I  then d id  ind ica te  to  h im tha t  I  –  I  cannot  ac tua l l y  

leave the  s t ra tegy sess ion  r igh t  now and I  have engaged 10 

Ms Mole fe .   I t  i s  no t  adv isab le  tha t  I  leave.   So tha t  was 

the  engagement .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cou ld  you te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson  your  –  

you say you were  work ing  w i th  a  number  o f  execut ives  bu t  

you have a l so  ear l ie r  sa id  to  the  Cha i rperson tha t  you  

repor ted  to  Ms Mole fe ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS DLAMINI :   Yes funct iona l l y  Cha i r  I  repor ted  to  Ms  

Mole fe  because  I  was par t  o f  the  f inance team and 

genera l l y  the  pro jec ts  I  was lead ing  were  led  in  the  f inance  

space.   However  because issues were  around how 20 

opera t ions were  run  and each o f  the  d iv is ions had the i r  

own f inance func t ions and a  lo t  o f  dec is ions to  make the 

pro jec ts  successfu l  needed execut ives .  

 I  d id  in te rac t  a  lo t .   I  mean i f  you look a t  the  Shared  

Serv i ces  Cent re  i t  had a  s ign i f i can t  HR leg  and i t  meant  
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tha t  I  was i n te rac t ing  w i th  the  HR team not  on ly  the  

execut ives  bu t  a lso  the  genera l  managers  be low.  And 

bas ica l l y  the  who le  organ isa t ion .  

 I f  you  look a t  the  bus iness p roduct iv i t y  p rog ram i t  

touched on main tenance issues in  te rms o f  how e f f i c ien t ly  

we were  to  do  main tenance.   I t  touched on p r imary  energy  

issues in  te rms o f  coa l  p rocurement  and so  on .   So  indeed  

I  –  I  in te rac ted  w i th  a l l  execut ives  genera l l y  in  my ro le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   When you say you in te rac ted  w i th  

them does tha t  mean or  does not  tha t  you are  repor t ing  to  10 

them because you used the  word  funct iona l  repor t ing  to  Ms  

Mole fe .   What  wou ld  you use in  re la t ion  to  the  o ther  

execut ives?  I s  i t  jus t  in te rac t ing  w i th  them? 

MS DLAMINI :   Yes –  so  funct iona l l y  I  repor ted  to  Ms 

Mole fe  because  

1 .  Any leave approva l  on  my whereabouts  were  under  

her  leadersh ip .  

But  in  te rms o f  the  de l i very  on  the  pro jec ts  everybody was 

re levant  and there fore  I  –  I  cou ld  be  engag ing  an execut ive  

tha t  i s  respons ib le  fo r  ma in tenance or  even p rocu rement  to  20 

unders tand how they were  do ing  i n  tha t  d iv i s ion  in  re la t ion  

to  the  program tha t  we were  runn ing .   So when I  say  I  

in te rac ted  i t  was  a lso  in  l ine  w i th  the  funct ion  o f  mak ing  

sure  tha t  the  p ro jec ts  tha t  I  was runn ing  w i th  were  

de l i vered.    
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 I  mean in  Shared  Serv ices  fo r  ins tance i f  there  was  

an issue w i th  a  veh ic le  o r  f lee t  i ssue and a  par t i cu la r  

d iv is ion  had issues I  had to  take  respons ib i l i t y  and make  

sure  issues were  reso lved.    

 I f  a  supp l ie r  was not  pa id  in  a  par t i cu la r  d iv i s ion  

and the  compla in t  a rose I  had to  take  a  lead in  and  

showing tha t  the  issue is  reso lved.   So because the  

funct ions were  l ed  in  f inance bu t  were  –  were  impact ing  

the  who le  bus iness we –  we in te rac ted  w i th  a l l  execut ives  

in  tha t  sense.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   So you  are  w i th  your  funct iona l  

what?  

MS DLAMINI :   Funct iona l  execut ives .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Superv isor  /  manager.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  your  funct iona l  person you repor t  to  

you are  be ing  ca l led  a t  th is  s tage in  a  s t ra tegy sess ion .   

You a re  in  a  s t ra tegy sess ion  w i th  the  person you are  –  

repor t  to .   You have been ca l led  by  Mr  Koko you say and 

he is  ca l l ing  you to  jo in  h im where  he  was?  I f  you  nod jus t  

say  yes.  20 

MS DLAMINI :   Yes.   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes was he a l ready a t  Me l rose Arch?  Do 

you know tha t  tha t  was the  pos i t ion  or  was he somewhere  

w i th  a  v iew to  a lso  proceed ing  to  tha t  venue?  I s  tha t  

someth ing  tha t  t ransp i red  in  the  d i scuss ion?  
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MS DLAMINI :   Wel l  no t  in  tha t  de ta i l  Cha i r  bu t  in  the  way  

tha t  he  ind ica ted  tha t  i t  was urgent  i t  sounded l i ke  he  was 

a l ready there .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r i gh t .   Okay.   Yes cont inue.   Oh ja  

you then –  you sa id  you d id  no t  th ink  you cou ld  jo in  h im 

because you –  you were  s t i l l  busy in  the  sess ion ,  i s  that  

r igh t?  

MS DLAMINI :   Yes Cha i r.   So –  because we had a  fu l l  day  

sess ion  a t  the  Eskom Col lege I  ind ica ted  tha t  I  cannot  jo in  

your  meet ing  because I  am cur ren t ly  in  a  sess ion .   And in  10 

fac t  I  checked w i th  Ms Mole fe  bas ica l l y  to  unders tand what  

was happen ing  and to  assess i f  i t  was someth ing  she knew 

about  and whether  i t  was someth ing  she be l ieved  I  cou ld  

leave the  s t ra tegy sess ion  because Cha i r  wha t  wou ld  

happen in  cer ta in  ins tances you cou ld  be  in  a  meet ing  w i th  

one execut ive  bu t  i f  you  make an example  o f  an  issue tha t  

needed to  be  un locked immedia te ly  and a  par t i cu la r  

execut ive  needed tha t  suppor t  i t  wou ld  happen tha t  you  

leave one meet ing  to  go  –  and because i t  was a  fu l l  day  

s t ra tegy sess ion  i f  i t  was a  case you can leave  th is  fo r  20 

th i r t y  m inutes  and then come back  because i t  does happen 

in  s t ra tegy sess ions where  peop le  have got  u rgent  mat te rs  

they leave and come back.   But  i t  was to  assess fo r  me 

whethe r  the  request  f rom Mr  Koko  was more  impor tan t  than  

what  Mr  –  Ms Mole fe  requ i red  us  fo r  a t  the  co l lege.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes and what  d id  Ms Mole fe  say in  

response to  you?  

MS DLAMINI :   No her  response Cha i r  was no you cannot  

go  we need to  be  here  fo r  the  day.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Go ing  back to  the  conversa t ion  you 

had w i th  Mr  Koko.   What  d id  he  say to  you once you had  

to ld  h im tha t  you  d id  no t  th ink  tha t  you wou ld  be  ab le  to  

jo in  h im because you were  busy in  th is  sess ion?  

MS DLAMINI :   Yes.   Cha i r  so  I -  I  th ink  in  tha t  sho r t  space 

o f  t ime I  d id  g ive  h im feedback tha t  I  ac tua l l y  canno t  go  –  I  10 

cannot  leave the  meet ing  I  am a t  now.   And i t  – to  my 

reco l lec t ion  i t  was around tha t  t ime when I  sa id  I  cannot  

jo in  tha t  he  ac tua l l y  asked tha t  I  send h im my CV in  the  

meanwhi le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And what  d id  you –  d id  you agree to  

send h im your  CV? 

MS DLAMINI :   So  we were  rush ing  to  –  to  the  venue a t  the  

t ime and to  my reco l lec t ion  I  d id  say we l l  I  can  send you 

the  CV but  I  cannot  jo in .   But  I  had not  assessed what  i t  

was about  because i t  was –  I  th ink  when I  –  I  jus t  re f lec t  i t  20 

was a  per iod  o f  less  than ten  m inutes  f rom us wa lk ing  f rom 

the  venue o f  lunch to  ge t  in to  the  venue o f  the  s t ra tegy 

sess ion  and need ing  to  s ta r t  and  hav ing  to  check  w i th  Ms  

Mole fe  and go back.   So i t  was qu i te  a  qu ick  conversa t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   So you –  bu t  you d id  u l t imate ly  
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send h im the  CV on tha t  day?  

MS DLAMINI :   Yes –  So Cha i r  we were  a t  the  Eskom 

Col lege and I  had my lap top  and to  my reco l lec t ion  I  

fo rwarded i t  to  h im.   But  because i t  was a  s t ra tegy sess ion  

Cha i r  o rd inar i l y  you do not  keep  lap tops and ce l l  phones 

on.   So I  –  I  th ink  I  t r ied  a t  some po in t  to  send i t  because  

you wou ld  have had a  tea  b reak  somewhere  in  be tween.   

So I  th ink  I  t r ied  to  send i t  bu t  what  then happened  la te r  i s  

tha t  as  we were  c loser  to  f in ish ing  the  sess ion  he  fo l lowed 

up hav ing  no t  rece ived i t .   And i t  m igh t  have been  a  case  10 

o f  the  ne twork  or  because we were  no t  a t  our  works ta t ions  

as  such.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Jus t  qu ick ly  Ma’am 

Dlamin i  the  –  you were  be ing  ca l led  f rom one meet ing  to  

the  next  i f  there  i s  someth ing  u rgent  and you wou ld  come 

back.   But  wou ld  th is  –  wou ld  tha t  be  in  a  s i tua t ion  l i ke  th is  

where  an  execut ive  –  Group Execut ive  i s  ca l l ing  you to  

come outs ide  o f  your  work  premises?  

MS DLAMINI :   So  Cha i r  Eskom i t se l f  had many venues.   20 

We were  based a t  Megawat t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  may I  add  th is?   Sor ry  may I  add 

th is?   Outs ide  o f  your  work  premises to  a  shopp ing  mal l  o r  

a  shopp ing  cen t re  someth ing  unre la ted  – a  premise  

unre la ted  to  Eskom? 
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MS DLAMINI :   So  i t  was a  ra re  th ing  Cha i r  i t  –  I  wou ld  no t  

say  i t  had happened many t imes.   So as  much as  Eskom 

had Megawat t  Park  and o ther  venues in  Sunn ingh i l l  and 

o ther  a reas genera l l y  i t  wou ld  be  –  i t  wou ld  be  you are  

ca l led ;  you are  i n  Sunn ingh i l l  you  are  ca l led  to  come and 

meet  an  execut ive  in  Megawat t  Park  or  i t  cou ld  be  in  –  in  – 

so  we had o f f i ces  in  Pre tor ia ,  Men lyn  and so  on .   But  i t  

was not  –  i t  was the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  I  go t  ca l led  to  a  venue 

l i ke  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So th is  wou ld  have been  s t range  10 

to  you tha t  you shou ld  meet  h im a t  Me l rose Arch?  I t  wou ld  

have been a  s t range request?  

MS DLAMINI :   Yes.   Cha i r… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  unusua l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So not  – no t  –  so  no t  s t ra igh t  because 

we –  we were  suppor t ing  execut ives  w i th  our  funct ions.   

And –  so  maybe –  and maybe tha t  i s  –  maybe i t  was a  b i t  –  

a  b i t  un ique or  d i f fe ren t  o r  unusua l  hence I  dec ided to  

check what  cou ld  be  happen ing  there  and i t  i s  no t  a  venue  

tha t  even a t  my –  in  my persona l  capac i ty  I  wou ld  have 20 

f requented tha t  a t  any po in t  in  t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So when… 

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  you say you d id  no t  –  you d id  no t  ge t  

a  chance to  ask  h im the  reason fo r  h im to  ask  you to  go  to  

tha t  venue?  D id  you say you d id  no t  ge t  to  ask  h im tha t?  
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MS DLAMINI :   So  in  tha t  –  in  tha t  few m inutes  o f  

conversa t ion  Cha i r  I  wou ld  have asked but  you know i t  was 

–  I  do  no t  th ink  there  was a  s t ra igh t  answer  to  say there  i s  

th is  happen ing .   I t  was come i t  i s  qu i te  u rgent .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MS DLAMINI :   Bu t  as  I  say  i t  was a  shor t  t ime and i t  

sounded ve ry  u rgent .  

CHAIRPERSON:   ja .  

MS DLAMINI :   When I  –  when I  say  –  I  sa id  I  cou ld  no t  

come and when I  ac tua l l y  checked w i th  Ms Mole fe  what  10 

was happen ing .   So i t  was qu i te  a  qu ick  conversa t ion .   I  

d id  check you know.   Because genera l l y  when you are  

ca l led  fo r  a  meet ing  you a lso  want  to  jus t  assess what  you  

need to  p repare  in  te rms o f  the  va r ious ac t iv i t ies  you might  

be  work ing  on .   So I  d id  ask  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  I  necessar i l y  

go t  a  spec i f i c  response.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   When he asked fo r  your  CV d id  

you ask  h im the  reason fo r  h im ask ing  fo r  your  CV? 

MS DLAMINI :   Yes so  –  so  Cha i r  because o f  the  sequence  

where  –  so  he  says come i t  i s  u rgent  and I  say  I  cannot  20 

come.    And he says;  okay in  the  meanwhi le  you can send 

me your  CV.   I  –  and I  may not  reca l l  spec i f i ca l l y  because  

the  conversa t ion  aga in  was qu ick .   So I  p robab ly  d id  ask  

bu t  I  do  no t  reca l l  a  response.    

Now aga in  fo r  an  execut ive  to  ask  fo r  you r  
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in fo rmat ion  l i ke  t ha t  was not  a  f requent  th ing  bu t  i t  had  

happened to  me before  because I  th ink  in  2009 o r  so  or  – 

no  2010 I  was nominated fo r  an  Execut ive  o f  the  Year  and  

i t  so  happened tha t  there  was a  request  fo r  me to  prov ide  

in fo rmat ion  wh ich  was ta lk ing  about  my h is to ry ;  my  career  

and i t  –  so  i t  i s  no t  a  usua l  –  f requent  th ing  bu t  i t  had 

happened to  me once before  and I  p rov ided tha t  

in fo rmat ion .    

And then I  rea l i sed i t  was fo r  the  c i ta t ion  fo r  the  

award  process and th is  was another  round.   And i t  be ing  10 

asked by  an  Execut ive  i t  was not  a  usua l  th ing  bu t  i t  was  

not  someth ing  tha t  was asked by  a  s t ranger  o f  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    You say you t r ied to send the CV and 

you th ink there was. . .  there might  have been a connect ion 

issue.   Mr Koko fo l lowed up.   Could you tel l  the Chai rperson,  

when you say he fol lowed up,  what  does he say to you?  Is  

he fol lowing up by telephone cal l?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or maybe let  us put  i t  th is way.   A f ter  you 

had this conversat ion wi th Mr Koko and you checked with Ms 

Molefe and Ms Molefe said no,  she needed you to be in the 20 

session and therefore you did not  go to Melrose Arch.   Did 

you and Mr Koko speak to each other later in the day? 

MS DLAMINI :    Yes.   So Chai r,  what  actual ly happened is.   

So I  d id not  go at  lunch t ime.  I  went  back to the session.   

And I  th ink in between, I  at tempted to basical ly to forward 
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the CV at  the t ime.   

 Then later in the day,  I  th ink the session would have 

f in ished around f ive,  f ive-thi r ty.   He fo l lowed up and 

requested that  we meet later in the day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    He cal led you? 

MS DLAMINI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr Koko? 

MS DLAMINI :    Mr Koko cal led again to requi re that  we meet  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Are you able to say roundabout what t ime 10 

this might  have been? 

MS DLAMINI :    So i t  would have been Chai r,  as the session 

f in ished which was around.. .  wi th. . .  I  th ink i t  was anyt ime 

f rom f ive-thi r ty onwards but  before six-th i r ty.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Af ter f ive? 

MS DLAMINI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And did you meet them? 

MS DLAMINI :    So I  was in Midrand al ready because the 

Eskom . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You were? 20 

MS DLAMINI :    I  was in Midrand.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    Midrand has. . .  that  is where the Eskom 

Academy of  Learning is.   So we were there in the venue 

and. . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    That  is where the session. . .?  

MS DLAMINI :    That  is where the session was held.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Yes.   That  is  the session wi th Ms 

Molefe and her team.  

MS DLAMINI :    Ms Molefe and the team.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    And therefore,  he did fol low up later and 

requested that  we meet.   And to my recol lect ion because i t  

was not  even a long meet ing,  hardly a 20-minutes meet ing.    

 On my way f rom the Eskom Col lege,  home, I  met him on 10 

the way.   I t  might  have been a café or a McDonald ’s 

restaurant  but  i t  was on my way af ter the session.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  the two of  you made arrangements 

and you met on your way home.  

MS DLAMINI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you cannot remember whether  i t  was 

at  KFC or at  McDonald ’s but  one of  the two? 

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   And how did the conversat ion go 

this t ime? 20 

MS DLAMINI :    So in that  conversat ion Chai r,  st i l l  he was 

fol lowing up that  he did not  receive the CV.  And because I  

had not  had a comprehensive conversat ion. . .    

 I  do recal l  I  lef t  the car wi th my laptop to go into the 

venue where we were meet ing and i t  was st i l l  about  fo l lowing 
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up about the CV,  which I  again checked,  and i t  seemed he 

had not  received.    

 What I  do recal l  is that  as I  t r ied to check i f  I  sent  i t ,  he 

did give me an a l ternat ive emai l  address to  say t ry and send 

i t  in th is address and that  was the conversat ion.    

 And at  that  point  I  was also t ry ing to f ind out  what was 

happening that  required this informat ion.   And at  that  point  in 

t ime,  he related that  there were suspensions that  were going 

to happen and he was also get t ing suspended.   

 And he indicated that  I  might  be asked to act  in that  10 

ro le,  in the role.   Because there was,  not  in those words,  

there was chance that  the FD was also in the l ist  of  

suspensions.    

 Because i f  you just  look at  the Eskom role’s at  execut ive 

level ,  they are very technical .   Engineers per  div is ion and 

then the support  funct ion.   The funct ions in the Finance,  HR.   

 So he indicated that  he was get t ing suspended and there 

were other execut ives that  were get t ing suspended.  And that  

is when i t  t ranspi red.    

 But  when we had the conversat ion,  i t  d id not  end wi th 20 

him tel l ing me who had requested that  he requests my CV.   

And the fact  that  he also was aware that  he was also get t ing 

suspended.   

 And I  know I  t r ied to go there to  understand,  you know, 

why are the suspensions coming,  what has happened.  
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Because I  was not  Chair  aware.   

 And as much as I  have not  l istened to al l  what  has 

happened in the commission but  I  was not  aware of  the 

act iv i t ies f rom the 6t h to the 10t h when I  got  a cal l .    

 I  was not  aware of  al l  those act iv i t ies.   I  was just  

cont inuing wi th  my dai ly act iv i t ies unt i l  I  got  that  cal l  f rom Mr 

Koko to go to Mel rose Arch.    

CHAIRPERSON :    So he said he was going to be suspended 

and he said there was a possibi l i ty that  the f inancial  d i rector 

would be suspended as wel l?  10 

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Chai r  and other  execut ives as wel l .   But  

he. . .  I  do not  th ink he necessari ly  gave me the numbers of  

how many . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  what I  wanted to f ind out  whether  

those are the only names he ment ioned in connect ion wi th 

suspension,  namely himsel f  and the f inancial  d i rector  and he 

did not  ment ion anybody else.  

MS DLAMINI :    To my recol lect ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   Did you. . .  d id he indicate how 

many people were going to be suspended? 20 

MS DLAMINI :    No,  I  do not  recal l  speci f ical ly . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    . . .h im g iving me al l  the names or that  were 

going to be so many.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MS DLAMINI :    But  I  know he did ment ion himsel f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    And he did ment ion that  the f inance di rector.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And did you say he said that  there was a 

possibi l i ty that  you could be asked act  in the posi t ion of  the 

f inancial  d i rector? 

MS DLAMINI :    Yes.   Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   What else t ranspi red dur ing 

that  conversat ion? 

MS DLAMINI :    Chai r,  that  real ly was the focus of  him 10 

want ing to meet wi th. . .  there was not  much more that  we 

discussed.   I  th ink we were not  in that . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MS DLAMINI :    . . .venue for more than 20-minutes because 

the f i rst  part  was to t ry and open my laptop and get  the CV 

to go.   And then the other discussion was the suspension.   

So i t  was not  a long conversat ion or a long t ime in that  

discussion.   So there was not  much else that  t ranspi red.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Did he tel l  you dur ing this meet ing who 

you were going to  have met in Melrose Arch i f  you had made 20 

yoursel f  avai lab le for that  meet ing dur ing the day? 

MS DLAMINI :    No,  he did not .   And I  d id not  ask ei ther.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    Because in the discussion. . .  you know, the 

Melrose Arch,  I . . .  i t  was him that  cal led and I  was not  even 
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aware who was wi th him.  So I  d id  not  necessar i ly explore 

there,  how many people.    

 But  I  got  therefore a sense that  i t  means the reason that  

he needed to meet me, probably is what he was going to 

discuss wi th me at  Melrose Arch.   But  no,  I  d id not  ask the 

quest ion who was at  Mel rose Arch.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   So Ma’am Dlamini ,  

we. . .  you conf i rming to the Chai rperson that  th is was on the 

10t h of  March 2015? 10 

MS DLAMINI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Th is meet ing is on the 

10t h  of  March 2015.  

MS DLAMINI :    Oh,  yes.   Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    You conf i rm to the Chairperson,  your  

meet ing wi th Mr Koko is in the evening. . .  on the evening of  

that  day,  the 10t h of  March 2015.  Correct? 

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.   You conf i rm that  he meets wi th 

you,  request ing you to provide him with your CV.  Correct? 20 

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And he,  in the process,  he tel ls you that  

he is going to be suspended along wi th other execut ives but  

he does not  give you the number.   You say you cannot  

recal l?  
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MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Chair  not  to my recol lect ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    But  he does indicate to you that  the FD 

wi l l  be one of  those execut ives and there is a possibi l i ty that  

you might  be asked to act  in her posi t ion.  

MS DLAMINI :    That  is correct ,  Chai r.   

CHAIRPERSON :    With regard to the FD,  d id  you put . . .  d id  

he say she would be one of  those to be suspended or she 

would be suspended?  Or did she. . .  d id he say there was a 

possibi l i ty that  she could also be suspended?   

 I  thought ear l ier on you sa id. . .  he sa id there was as 10 

possibi l i ty that  the FD could also be suspended.  Do you 

remember exact ly  what he said? 

MS DLAMINI :    Ja,  Chai r  I  th ink i t  was along the l ines there 

is a possibi l i ty that  the FD is go ing to be suspended.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chair.   Did you. . .  two things.   

One is your CV.  In that  meet ing now with him, do you ask 

him:  Why do you want my CV? 

MS DLAMINI :    I  d id  Chai r.   So I  d id  because i t  was very 

clear ly urgent  in the way that  he needed i t .   But  I  d id ask.   20 

And again,  him being the execut ive at  Exco and I  basical ly 

operated one level  below him.   

 I t  was not  an interrogat ion in:   I  wi l l  not  give you unless 

you tel l  me why you need me.   I  was just  t ry ing to 

understand what was happening that  would requi re my CV.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Because you were not  applying for 

a job,  were you? 

MS DLAMINI :    No,  not  internal ly Chai r.   I  was outside.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Now, was he aware that  you are 

applying for a job? 

MS DLAMINI :    No,  he was not .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Did you ask him to source a job for you? 

MS DLAMINI :    No,  I  d id not .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So. . .  I  mean, i f  you are asking him:  But  

why do you want my CV?  I t  is not  you want to interrogate 10 

him.  I t  is just  that  you want to  know where is  my CV going?  

Did you not  want to know? 

MS DLAMINI :    No,  I  d id.   And I . . .  as I  indicated,  I  d id ask 

what i t  was going to be used for.   So what. . .  and what was. . .  

Chai r,  what  t ranspi red therefore is  that  when he indicated 

that  there was an issue of  suspensions and . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The possibi l i ty  that  you could be asked to 

act .  

MS DLAMINI :    The possibi l i ty that  I  could be asked to act .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  20 

MS DLAMINI :    And he did not  necessari ly indicate who was 

asking him to col late CV’s.   Because one issue was:   Why is 

i t  that  my CV is required?  And the indicat ion was that  there 

is a possibi l i ty that  you may be asked to act .    

 And Chai r,  at  that  moment,  my thoughts would have 



07 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 278 
 

Page 31 of 185 
 

been,  i t  is probably a process that  the board is coordinat ing,  

that  he is coord inat ing for the board because any 

suspensions would be ideal ly handled at  board level .    

 But  I  was not  having a di rect  interact ion wi th the board 

around a matter l ike that .   But  having. . .  knowing that  he was 

an Exco member and Exco interacted wi th the board,  as 

much as he did not  g ive di rect  responses and had requested 

though my CV, my assumpt ion was that  he was probably 

working wi th the board.    

 Not  in a sense that  i t  was necessar i ly me that  was 10 

def in i te ly  going to act  because we have heard a number of  

scenarios where the f inance d i rector lef t  and another 

execut ive acted.    

 So we had qui te a capable team at  di fferent  t imes 

because I  do recal l  that  when one di rector lef t  or  f inance 

di rector lef t ,  i t  was a per iod of  s ix months where someone 

else acted.   

 So i t  was along the l ines of  there is a possibi l i ty.   You 

are going to be act ing.   There is suspension.   So I  was not  

sure i f  he was col lat ing of  the board var ious informat ion but  20 

there was not  a di rect  response.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So are you saying to the Chai rperson,  

you understood his request  for your  CV to relate to the 

possibi l i ty of  you going to act  in the posi t ion of  FD?  You 

made that  connect ion.   Is that  what you are saying to eh 
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Chair? 

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Chai r  because at  that  moment,  that  was 

the only conversat ion that  we had.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    I  was not  looking for a job.   I  was not  aware 

of  any other act iv i ty.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And are you saying to the Chai rperson 

that  you got  the impression that  he is doing this exerc ise,  

the col lat ion of  CV’s,  on behal f  of  the board? 

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Chair  that  was the only assumpt ion I  10 

could make because a process would be managed at  board 

level .   So I  would not  know who would be.   But  a  process 

that  affects execut ives would be dr iver at  board level .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   And in th is case,  the FD is st i l l  in 

her place.   Your funct ional  l ine of  report ing.   She is st i l l  in 

her place.   So she has not  lef t .  

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    She was there.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    This,  which makes i t  even more st range,  20 

is i t  not? 

MS DLAMINI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Now, I  am talking about the example.   

You were saying somebody,  the FD had lef t  prev iously and 

somebody acted in their  posi t ion.   But  in th is case,  the FD is 
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st i l l  there and you are told beforehand of  the possibi l i ty of  a  

suspension,  the possibi l i ty of  you act ing.   Al l  these things 

have not  happened.   

MS DLAMINI :    That  is correct ,  Chai r.   They have not  

happened. 

CHAIRPERSON :    But  is i t  not  how i t  would work Mr Seleka?  

You would not  wai t  unt i l  the FD is out  before you look for 

CV’s.   You would look for CV’s before she leaves to see who 

is going to  act  because you might  not  suspend her i f  you do 

not  have somebody to act .    10 

 So that  would be my expectat ion that  the CV’s would be 

asked for before the FD is suspended.  Because as the 

board or whoever,  the author i ty,  i t  would be i r responsible to 

suspend without  knowing whether  you wi l l  get  a sui tab le 

person to act  in that  posi t ion.  

MS DLAMINI :    H’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Chair  they wi l l  te l l  us when they 

come here.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Because we understood that  the 20 

suspensions by the board i tsel f  had not  been decided.   At  

least  as of  the 10t h of  March 2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  but  i t  is c lear  f rom what. . .  f rom the 

evidence I  have heard that  there were certain people who 

were contemplat ing that  the execut ives would be suspended.  
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So I  th ink they were doing the ir  homework.   Yes.   Okay let  us 

cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Ms Dlamini ,  the 

meet ing you had with Mr Koko,  when you were at  home, is i t  

at  Mel rose Arch or somewhere else? 

CHAIRPERSON :    She said at  KFC or McDonald’s on her  

way home.  I  take i t  could not  have been Melrose Arch.   Was 

i t ,  Ms Dlamini? 

MS DLAMINI :    Ja,  Chair  I  never went to Melrose Arch.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

MS DLAMINI :    Because at  the t ime, I  was asked to go.   I t  

was around midday.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS DLAMINI :    And i t  was that  moment I  was walking wi th  

the team back to the venue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   And Melrose. . .  the KFC or McDonald ’s 

that  you talked about would be in Midrand or where would i t  

be? 

MS DLAMINI :    Chai r,  i t  would have been around Midrand 

and I  was t ry ing to recal l  which one i t  would have been.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS DLAMINI :    Because i t  was just  on the way.   I  just  could 

not  f igure out  which one i t  was.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  do not  worry . . . [ intervenes]   

MS DLAMINI :    Which one . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  do not  th ink i t  is important  which one i t  

was.  

MS DLAMINI :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay Mr Seleka,  let  us make some 

progress.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chair.   Yes.   Mr Dlamini ,  you 

have seen Mr Koko’s aff idavi t .   And I  want to read f rom the 

paragraph where he refers to  you.   You wi l l  recal l  he says 

about you:  

“Ms Nonkululeko Dlamini  was not  only a col league 10 

but  a fami ly f r iend.   I  cal led her on the day. . . ”  

 And the day he refers to is the 10t h of  March 2015.  

“ . . .and we met for  dinner in the evening in Midrand.   

I  deny that  I  cal led her to come to Melrose Arch.   Ms 

Nonkulu leko Dlamini  and I  were very surpr ised when 

she was appointed the act ing CFO af ter  Ms Molefe 

was suspended.”  

 Let  us deal  wi th . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   Where are you reading f rom?  

Where do you f ind Mr Koko’s aff idavi t?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Chai r,  i t  is in one of  the exhibi t  bundles.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  not  in th is bundle? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  is not  in th is bundle.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  is. . .  I  do not  th ink the Chai rperson wi l l  
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have i t  wi th him.  But  let  me provide the Chai rperson with. . .  

ja,  i t  is in the bundle that  I  do not  th ink the Chairperson wi l l  

have there.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink they must  t ry and get  maybe that  

bundle so that  i f  I  may need to check anything.   I  might  pick 

up something else that  I  might  want to have clar i f ied by Ms 

Dlamini .   But  you can give me what you have.   What you can 

give me in the meant ime i f  you have got  a spare? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  I  do have.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  do have,  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  beg leave to  hand i t  up which is  the 

aff idavi t  of  Mr Matshela Moses Koko.   I  have opened to the 

paragraph I  am reading f rom.   

CHAIRPERSON :    So Ms Dlamin i ,  i t  looks l ike Mr Koko 

denies that  he cal led you and then asked you to  go to a 

meet ing at  Melrose Arch on the 10t h .   What do you say about 

that? 

MS DLAMINI :    Chai r,  on the basis that  the t ime the ca l l  20 

came which was around luncht ime and on the basis that  I  

doubt  I  would have dreamt up and decided to tel l  Ms Molefe 

that  I  am being ca l led to Mel rose Arch.    

 Because i t  was not  something I  had kind of  rehearsed 

and knew that  there was a meet ing at  Mel rose Arch.   Mr 
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Koko did cal l  me around lunch t ime and requested that  I  

meet wi th him at  Mel rose Arch.   So I  am not  sure 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    So you are def in i te that  he cal led you and 

that  what he said to you dur ing that  conversat ion is what you 

have told me? 

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   What  about  what he is  saying 

that  the two of  you d id have dinner  that  evening,  namely the 

evening of  the 10t h of  March? 10 

MS DLAMINI :    Ja,  Chair  we met but  we did not  have dinner.   

I t  was a conversat ion or a meet ing about. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    And you said i t  took about 20-minutes? 

MS DLAMINI :    Ja,  i t  was not  a long meet ing.   I t  was about 

20-minutes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chai rperson.   Then he 

further says Ms Dlamini :  

“ I  was very surpr ised.   Ms Dlamini  and I  were very 

surpr ised that  she was appointed the act ing CFO 20 

af ter Ms Molefe was suspended. ”  

 Your comment to that  to the Chai rperson.  

MS DLAMINI :    Ja.   So Chai r,  as I  indicated.   My history wi th 

Eskom.  I  started in 2003 and I  started working closely wi th 

Mr Koko as I  started in  2006 in  the Bui ld Programme.   He 
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was . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry,  Ms Dlamin i .   What paragraph 

are you reading f rom Mr Seleka? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Ms Dlamini ,  that  is the last  

sentence in the paragraph 47.   Just . . .  Mr Koko is saying,  you 

and him were surpr ised.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Just  hang on one second.   I  just  want to 

know because I  have been looking for i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And I  real ised that . . .  okay al r ight .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay cont inue Ms Dlamini .   You were 

responding to  Mr Koko’s assert ion that  the two of  you were 

very surpr ised when you were appointed act ing FD.  What do 

you say to that? 

MS DLAMINI :    Ja.   So Chai r,  we. . .  as I  indicate.   Even in  

the sentence that  ta lks about  knowing each other.   I  have 

known him since I  have started in the Bui ld Programme.  And 

I  worked with the team, he led wi th him and other people.    

 So we worked together f rom 2006 in di fferent  roles.   And 20 

the quest ion of  being surpr ised.   When the announcement. . .  

or rather,  when we were cal led to act ,  he was not  there.    

 I  actual ly did not  see him since that  evening unt i l  we 

were cal led in the boardroom on the . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The 11t h of  March? 
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MS DLAMINI :    In fact ,  I  th ink we were cal led on the 12t h.  

CHAIRPERSON :    On the 12t h? 

MS DLAMINI :    So I  may confuse the dates.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    Because we were on the 10t h at  the col lege 

and the suspensions,  I  th ink,  happened on the 11t h and we 

were cal led in the morning of  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    12.  

MS DLAMINI :    . . .12 March.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  10 

MS DLAMINI :    And we were cal led by the. . .  I  received a cal l  

f rom the company secretary,  Mr Malesela Phukubje and 

indicat ing that  the chairperson of  the board needed to see us 

or see me in the board room.  And in the board room there 

was a few board members.   I t  was . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  leave out  who was there.   What 

do you say what  he says?  He says the two of  your were 

surpr ised.   Were you surpr ised that  you were appointed as 

act ing FD? 

MS DLAMINI :    So Chai r,  i t  was not  a surpr ise because I  20 

have heard i t  f rom Mr Koko . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    . . .on the 10t h.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Now when he says the two of  you 

were surpr ised that  you were appointed as act ing FD, i t  
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g ives the impression that  when you got  the news, you were 

together.   Were you together wi th h im when you got  the news 

that  you were going to be appointed as act ing FD? 

MS DLAMINI :    No,  I  was not  Chai r.   And that  is why I  am 

explain ing how i t  happened because we were cal led into a 

boardroom. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    But  he was not  in the off ice.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS DLAMINI :    He was not  in the off ice.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    He was not  there.  

MS DLAMINI :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Did you talk to  him on that  day,  on the 

12t h? 

MS DLAMINI :    No,  Chai rman.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You did not  ta lk to him? 

MS DLAMINI :    Ja.   On that  day,  the act iv i t ies just  rol led into 

communicat ing wi th lenders and other people.   So I  was not  

wi th him.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Did he ca l l  you ei ther on that  day,  20 

namely the 12t h o f  the fol lowing day to congratulate you and 

the two of  you had a discussion? 

MS DLAMINI :    No,  not . . .  he did not  cal l  to  congratulate 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  Did you ever at  any stage convey to 
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h im that  you were surpr ised that  you were appointed to act  

as FD? 

MS DLAMINI :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So you do not  know where he gets this 

idea f rom that  you were surpr ised when you were appointed 

act ing FD or do you? 

MS DLAMINI :    No,  Chai r.   So I  do not  know where he gets 

the idea because he. . .  a l l  the t ime, he had indicated and i t  

was a def in i te th ing yet .   And therefore,  f rom the perspect ive 

of  i t  happening.    10 

 Obviously,  i t  was not  a comfortable per iod.   I t  was not . . .  

i t  was a nerve wrecking per iod because a lot  was happening 

in the organisat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    But  i t  was not  a case of ,  you know, you have 

been appointed.   Congratulat ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS DLAMINI :    We are so surpr ised because we never had 

that  conversat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you know when he might  have got  to  20 

know of  your  appointment as act ing FD?  Do you know when 

he might  have got  the news? 

MS DLAMINI :    Chai r,  the news became publ ic as soon as 

that  morning because the media announcement was made by 

Eskom. 
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    I  th ink on the same day and or i f  not  later 

that  day or the next  day.    

CHAIRPERSON :    So he might  have . . . [ intervenes]   

MS DLAMINI :    I t  was publ ic knowledge.  But  given that  he 

had indicated the day,  two days before,  I  would not  know i f  

he would have heard i t  then.   He would have heard but  i t  

actual ly happened through the news or through other means.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You understand why he would be 

surpr ised that  you being appointed act ing FD in 10 

ci rcumstances where,  on your version,  he is the one who had 

told you on the 10t h that  there was a possibi l i ty that  you 

would be appointed act ing FD?  You understand the 

statement on his part  that  he was surpr ised? 

MS DLAMINI :    No,  I  do not  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Ms Dlamini ,  just  one 

last  point  f rom my part .   I  have shared wi th you the minutes 

of  the meet ing of  19 March.   Chairperson,  you wi l l  f ind that  

in the reference bundle,  page 222.    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Did I  g ive you back the copy you gave 

me? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Indeed, Chai rperson.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Oh, I  am sorry.   Let  me just  have a 

look before I  g ive back.   Yes? 
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Reference Bundle,  page 222.   That  is  

Eskom Bundle 24.   Sorry,  Eskom Bundle 12.   Chai r,  my I  

proceed? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    May I  proceed? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   On page 224,  i t  is a minute of  a. . .  

th is is a minute of  a Special  Board In-Commit tee Meet ing 

held on 19 March 2015.  This is the Eskom Board.   And on 

page 224,  which is page 3 of  the minute,  at  the top of  the 10 

page, i t  reads. . .  the paragraph says:  

“The chai rperson accepted blame for the fa i lure to  

take the board,  as wel l  as the fact  that  work that  

was already being done e.g.  interviews,  et  cetera.”  

 Then the paragraph I  am referr ing you to is th is one:  

“The people who were act ing in places of  the 

suspended execut ives were al legedly cal led into a 

meet ing and knew beforehand that  they would be  

act ing.   The board needed to f ind out  how this  

happened.  They were apparent ly cal led into a 20 

meet ing and the act ing CE met wi th them.”  

 Do you have any comment on this? 

MS DLAMINI :    Chai r,  in terms of  the act ing.   My knowledge 

came through the engagement I  had wi th Mr Koko on the 

10t h.    
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 I  had not  been in  any meet ing wi th  the act ing CE and I  

have not  been in  any meet ing wi th  any other people before 

the act ing was announced.   

 I  actual ly was in the meet ing wi th them for the f i rst  t ime 

in the boardroom when the chai rperson of  the board was 

re lat ing the suspensions and request ing the act ing.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Who would have been the act ing CE at  

the t ime, 19 March 2015? 

MS DLAMINI :    Chairperson,  when the suspensions 

happened, Mr Zethembe Khoza was then asked to act  as the 10 

inter im Chief  Execut ive.   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you.   For how long did you act  in  

the posi t ion of  FD? 

MS DLAMINI :    Chai r,  I  acted. . .  I  th ink the announcement  

came out  on the 12t h when we were asked.   And I  acted unt i l  

end of  July but  I  resigned f rom Eskom on the 1s t  of  May but  I  

acted as wel l  when I  was serving my not ice.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Unt i l  the end of  July 2015? 

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Chairperson,  those are the quest ions 20 

f rom my s ide.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   Thank you very much, Ms 

Dlamini .   You are done def in i te ly.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  am.  [ laughing]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]   Ja,  okay.   I  take i t  that  there is  
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nothing that  counsel  for Ms Dlamin i  real ly would l ike to re-

examine on.   Maybe just  take inst ruct ion,  miss.   Counsel ,  I  

doubt  that  you have any re-examinat ion? 

ADV STUBBS :    I  beg your pardon,  Deputy Chief  Just ice.   I t  

a lmost  feel  st range to be si t t ing whi lst  speaking to you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  [ laughing]  

ADV STUBBS :    So I  apologise for  that .   I  do have just  one 

corroborat ing aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV STUBBS :    But  I  would ask you,  Mr Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV STUBBS :    Not  to hand up.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV STUBBS :    But  to refer to Ms Dlamini  as corroborat ion 

of  her vers ion of  events about the phone cal l  at  Melrose 

Arch.   And that . . .  I  do not  know the bundle or the pages but  

perhaps my learned f r iend might  help me.  I t  is Ms Molefe’s  

aff idavi t .   In her  aff idavi t ,  I  bel ieve,  that  she conf i rms Ms 

Dlamini ’s version.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  she does.   She was here yesterday.   20 

She conf i rmed so.   That  is in order.  

ADV STUBBS :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  have to ask or re-examine on 

that .  

ADV STUBBS :    Thank you,  Chai r.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Thank you very much, Ms 

Dlamini .   We appreciate that  you came to assist  the 

Commission.   You are now excused.  

MS DLAMINI :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink we should take the tea adjournment 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So that  you can arrange for the next 10 

wi tness.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  certainly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We wi l l  take the tea adjournment and we 

wi l l  resume at  hal f -past  eleven.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS :  

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  du r ing  the 20 

ad journment  i t  came to  our  a t ten t ion  tha t  we needed to 

canvass jus t  one  las t  aspect  w i th  Ms Ve le t i  and we have  

requested her  to  remain  fo r  a  wh i le .   She cu r ren t ly  agreed  

and she is  s t i l l  here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.    
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ADV SELEKA SC:    We are  s t i l l  dea l ing  w i th  tha t  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  le t  her  ge t  se t t led  f i rs t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The oath  tha t  you took ear l ie r  on ,  Ms 

D lamin i ,  w i l l  con t inue to  app ly.   You unders tand tha t?  

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  page was her  s ta tement  aga in?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We are  s t i l l  Eskom bund le .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Number  21?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  page.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ms Ve le t i  –  D lamin i ’s  a f f idav i t  i s  on  

page 411 o f  Eskom bund le  10 .   Ms Ve le t i ,  an  annexure  to  

the  a f f idav i t  i s  on  page 417 wh ich  we wou ld  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you say,  Mr  Se leka,  ear l ie r  tha t  th is  

was an annexure  to  her  a f f idav i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  no t  an  annexure  as  such,  

Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  a  s tanda lone  document  wh ich  was 20 

prov ided to  he r  by  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh because then i t  shou ld  be  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mark  i t  as  an  exh ib i t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  wou ld  need to  be  an  exh ib i t  on  i t s  own 
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bu t  you might  have to  re f lec t  on  the  need to  ge t  a  

techn ic ian  or  exper t  to  come and ident i f y  what  th is  i s  so  

tha t  i t  ge ts  admi t ted  f rom ce l l  phone prov iders  or  

somebody who has the  techn ica l  know-how who can say  

what  th is  i s .   We a l l  know what  i t  i s  bu t  you need,  I  th ink ,  

somebody techn ica l  to  ident i f y  i t  and to  conf i rm but  you  

can go ahead and ask Ms D lamin i  what  you need  to  ask  

he r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   Ms D lamin i ,  on  page 417  

the  Commiss ion ’s  invest iga to rs  have sourced th is  10 

in fo rmat ion  the  de ta i l s  o f  wh ich  have been shared w i th  

you.    Cou ld  you conf i rm to  the  Cha i rperson tha t  you have 

had –  you have cons ide red th is  document?  

MS DLAMINI :    I  have cons ide red the  document ,  

Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The document ,  jus t  fo r  the  purposes o f  

the  record ,  i t  con ta ins  a  l i s t  o f  da tes ,  o f  te lephone ca l l s  

tha t  were  made p resumably  –  and I  say  presumably  so  that  

you cou ld  conf i rm tha t  to  the  Cha i rperson between  

…[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  jus t  ind ica te  f i rs t  what  i s  the 

document  as  you  unders tand i t  and who has prov ided i t  to  

the  Commiss ion?   I s  the  ce l l  phone reco rd  p roduced by  

par t i cu la r  ce l l  phone company?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  the  ce l l  phone records tha t  wou ld  
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have been prov ided pursuant  to  an  invest iga t ion  by  the 

Commiss ion .   The  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  do  we know who prov ided,  i s  i t  a  ce l l  

phone company?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The ce l l  phone –  i t  i s  mob i le  ne twork  

opera to rs ,  we see the  number  082,  tha t  wou ld  be  

presumably  Vodacom and 083 be ing  MTN.   Cha i rperson,  we  

w i l l  ob ta in  the  a f f idav i t  to  conf i rm the  exact  mob i le  

opera to rs  tha t  a re  invo l ved.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  jus t  make sure  you  10 

obta in  and a f f idav i t  f rom the  r igh t  peop le  who can say the  

r igh t  th ings fo r  th is  to  be  admi t ted  bu t  I  th ink  fo r  now you 

can ask  Ms D lamin i  quest ions on  the  unders tand ing  tha t  

th is  i s  a  document  p rov ided by  a  ce l l  phone company o r  a  

regu la tor  re f lec t i ng  or  purpo r t ing  to  re f lec t  ca l l s  made  

between ce r ta in  numbers .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  thank  you,  Cha i rperson.   Ms 

D lamin i ,  th is  documenta t ion  purpo r ts  to  re f lec t  and we seek  

your  conf i rmat ion  in  regard  to  some o f  the  contents  here in ,  

te lephone ca l l s  tha t  wou ld  have  been made dur ing  the  20 

t imes –  the  da tes  spec i f ied  on  the  fa r  le f t  wh ich  is  f rom 9  

March 2015 to  12  March 2015 on the  t imestamps ind ica ted  

te lephone ca l l s  p resumably  hav ing  been made f rom a  ce l l  

phone number  0828599334.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  hang on.   I t  m igh t  be  be t te r  no  
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…[ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Not  to  ment ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Pub l i c ly  spec i fy  anyone ’s  ce l l  phone  

number  bu t  you can ind ica te  Ms D lamin i  wh ich  number  on  

the  page you wan t  to  d raw her  a t ten t ion  to .   Maybe she can  

ment ion  the  las t  two d ig i t s  o f  the  number  tha t  you are  

par t i cu la r l y  in te res ted  in  o r  the  numbers  tha t  you are  

par t i cu la r l y  in te res ted  in .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  –  a l te rna t ive ly  I  w i l l  

ment ion  SCC 1,  the  ce l l  number  SCC1 and the  ce l l  number  10 

SCC2.   Under  SCC2,  you see tha t  Ms D lamin i?  

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  I  see,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  the  SCC number  1  and SCC 

number  –  oh ,  you  mean as  a  co lumn? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  r igh t ,  as  a  co lumn.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja ,  ja ,  as  a  co lumn.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  wh ich  event  I  w i l l  s imp ly  ask  you  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  you  can a lways say count  f rom the  

top  f rom the  f i rs t  number  a t  the  top ,  count  1 ,  2 ,  3 ,  4  when 20 

you reach 5 .   That  i s  the  number  I  am in te res ted  in ,  then 

you can ask  he r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So tha t  f i rs t  number,  yes ,  under  

the  co lumn,  as  t he  Cha i rperson has ind i ca ted  number  5  

wh ich  is  the  head ing  SCC1.   Wi thout  ment ion ing  tha t  ce l l  
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number  do  you recogn ise  the  ce l l  number,  Ms D lamin i?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  number  –  what  number  i s  i t ,  5?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Co lumn 1 ,  2 ,  3 ,  4 ,  5 .   Yes,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  i s  the  number  tha t  appears  as  

number  5  on  the  co lumn descr ibed  as  SCC1.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t .   Do you recogn ise  tha t  ce l l  

number,  Ms D lam in i?  

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  I  do ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  one can say i t  i s  a  number  end ing  10 

w i th  34 ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  whose number  i f  tha t?  

MS DLAMINI :    I t  i s  Mr  Koko ’s  ce l l  number.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you know i t .  

MS DLAMINI :    As  i t  i s  the  number  tha t  I  have contac ted  

h im on o r,  Cha i r,  I  know i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Then …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  t ime is  tha t?   I  th ink  you must  l ink  20 

tha t  –  what  t ime does i t  seem to  –  does tha t  ca l l  seem to  

have been made?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can Ms D lamin i  look  a t  co lumn 1 ,  2 ,  3 ,  

the  th i rd  co lumn under  the  head ing  SCC ca l l  t ime.   The 

t imes are  l i s ted  there .   On the  9 t h ,  the  f i rs t  ca l l  i s  16 .29 .  
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MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Cha i r.   And to  the  Cha i rperson ’s  

quest ion  the  ca l l  tha t  I  spoke to  i s  on  the  10  March a t  

12 .51 .38 wh ich  was about  a  m inute  and 34 seconds .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am so r ry,  I  was –  we l l ,  my –  the  

number  tha t  appears  a t  f i ve  re la tes  to  a  ca l l  tha t  was made 

a t  10 .38 .   I t  looks  l i ke  you went  to  6  –  I  th ink  i t  i s  the  same 

number.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    So ,  Cha i r,  6  i s  the  r igh t  ca l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 10 

MS DLAMINI :    6  i s  the  r igh t  ca l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    6  i s  the  r igh t  one?  

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    When you look a t  the  t ime.  

MS DLAMINI :    A t  l ine  6 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

MS DLAMINI :    And the  t ime is  12 .51 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MS DLAMINI :    38  seconds.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Okay,  cont inue,  Mr  Se leka,  20 

because we need to  know wh ich  number  ca l led  wh ich  

number.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So,  Cha i rperson,  fo r  you r  

purposes,  co lumn SCC1 re f lec t s  one ce l l  number.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Throughout .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then the  next  SCC2 a lso  re f lec ts  one 

ce l l  number  th roughout .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  okay,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  d id  no t  know tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  there  is  on l y  two ce l l  numbers  here ,  

Commiss ioner.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  okay.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ms Ve le t i  then is  –  Ms  D lamin i ,  I  beg 

your  pa rdon –  then is  re fe r r ing  the  Cha i rperson to  –  now I  

am look ing  a t  the  f i rs t  en t ry  under  the  10  March 2015,  the  

very  f i rs t  en t ry  under  10  March 2015 w i th  a  t imestamp a t  

12 .51  Tuesday.   I f  the  Cha i rperson  fo l lows?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So she says to  the  Cha i rperson  

tha t  i s  the  ca l l  she  wou ld  have rece ived f rom Mr  Koko.   I s  

tha t  the  f i rs t  ca l l  you  wou ld  have rece ived f rom Mr  Koko on 

the  day?  20 

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  le t  us  f i rs t  see –  now under  SCC1,  

under  tha t  co lumn,  there  is  one number.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then under  co lumn SCC2 there  is  a  
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d i f fe ren t  number.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Throughout .   The number  tha t  i s  the 

same number  tha t  appears  th roughout  f rom the  top  to  the 

bo t tom on the  co lumn re fer red  to  as  SCC2,  whose number  

appears  under  tha t  co lumn,  Ms D lamin i ,  SCC2?  Do you 

know tha t  number?  

MS DLAMINI :    That  i s  my number.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  your  number?  

MS DLAMINI :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Now,  Mr  Se leka,  does th is  

document  re f lec t  wh ich  number  ca l led  wh ich  number?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Then the  next  co lumn,  

Cha i rperson,  immedia te ly  a f te r  number  SCC2,  the  t i t le  i s  

SCC person ca l l ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you see tha t ,  Ms D lamin i ,  as  we l l?  

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And then the  las t  co lumn,  i t  i s  headed 

SCC person ca l led .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And then they g ive  the  name.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  the  document  then,  Ms D lamin i ,  

re f lec t s  the  ca l l s  made –  shou ld  I  ment ion  the  name,  
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Cha i rperson,  I  suppose I  cou ld?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  shou ld  ment ion  the  name as i t  is  

re f lec ted  he re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   So the  document  then,  Ms 

D lamin i ,  re f lec ts  the  te lephone ca l l s  tha t  wou ld  have been  

made by  Mr  Matshe la  Koko f rom the  ce l l  number  we  

ind ica ted  under  SCC1 to  yourse l f ,  person  ca l led ,  

Nonku lu leko Sy lv ia  D lamin i /Ve le t i  to  the  ce l l  number  10 

rep resented or  re f lec ted  under  co lumn SCC2.   You fo l low  

tha t?  

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Th is  re f lec ts  tha t ,  i t  seems to  me,  tha t  

there  were  numerous ca l l s  tha t  were  made by  Mr  Matshe la  

Koko to  you on the  10  March 2015,  I  th ink  cer ta in ly  more  

than s i x .   Do you reca l l  whethe r  tha t  wou ld  be  t rue?  

MS DLAMINI :    Cha i r,  i t  does re f lec t  a  number  o f  ca l l s  bu t  

when you look a t  co lumn 4  wh ich  g ives you the  du ra t ion  o f  

the  ca l l ,  you  w i l l  no t ice  tha t  a  lo t  o f  those ca l l s  a re  00 ,  20 

wh ich  means there  was no t ime o f  the  ca l l  tha t  we 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  tha t  you d id  no t  speak?  

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  
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MS DLAMINI :    So  a  lo t  o f  the  ca l l s  ind i ca te  tha t  there  was 

a t tempt  to  ca l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    But  I  was not  reachab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MS DLAMINI :    And o ther  ca l l s  seem to  be  th ree  seconds.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    Four  seconds.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    And my assumpt ion  wou ld  be  i t  m igh t  have 10 

been go ing  to  vo icemai l  o r  someth ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  okay.  

MS DLAMINI :    So  you w i l l  no te  tha t  in  th is  l i s t  o f  ca l l s  on  

the  10 t h  indeed there  is  qu i te  a  number,  in  fac t  i t  is  about  

20  someth ing ,  on ly  two ca l l s  a re  over  a  m inute ,  i t  i s  the 

ca l l  tha t  happened bas ica l l y  6  –  ac tua l l y  s ta r t  f rom the  top ,  

i t  i s  l ine  number  6 ,  wh ich  was a t  12 .51 .38 wh ich  was one 

minute  34  seconds wh ich  is  w i th  re fe rence to  the  t ime 

when we were  go ing  back to  the  venue f rom the  lunch.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MS DLAMINI :    That  conversa t ion  I  re fe r red  to  ear l i e r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    And then i f  you fu r ther  down you see a  ca l l  

la te r  tha t  i s  about  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    17 .58 .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  about  17 .58 .27  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  took th ree  minutes .  

MS DLAMINI :    Which  about  th ree  minutes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

MS DLAMINI :    And i t  i s  a round about  when we f in ished  the  

sess ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  wou ld  t ie  up  w i th  your  ev idence 

tha t  a f te r  you had f in ished the  sess ion  the  two o f  you were  10 

in  touch w i th  each o the r.  

MS DLAMINI :    Which  was the  fo l low-up ca l l s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  was a  fo l low-up ca l l .  

MS DLAMINI :    To  meet  –  and yes [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   But  th is  does re f lec t  i s  tha t  on  the  

10 t h  Mr  Koko made numerous a t tempts  to  reach you.  

MS DLAMINI :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then he d id  reach you a t  –  i s  i t  

12 .58?  12 .51  and he reached you aga in  a t  17 .58 .   Those  20 

are  the  on ly  t imes he appears  to  have reached you.   The  

o ther  t imes where  i t  i s  on ly  seconds you say tha t  must  

have been when he went  in to  vo i cemai l .  

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Cha i r,  because I  do  no t  reca l l  ta lk ing  

to  h im tha t  many t imes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    Bu t  a lso  when i t  i s  two seconds,  once aga in  

i t  wou ld  no t  represent  a  conversa t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    So  I  then assumed tha t  i t  a t tempts  bu t  as  I  

ind ica te ,  we were  no t  necessar i l y  w i th  ou r  ce l l  phones and 

reachab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS DLAMINI :    The who le  day.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Jus t  on  the  10 t h   …[ in tervenes]  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    My ca lcu la t ion ,  Ms D lamin i ,  g i ves  me 

22 te lephone ca l l s  on  the  10  March.  

MS DLAMINI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  he  t r ied  to  reach you about  22  t imes  

on the  10  March  and there  were  two occas ions when he 

was ab le  to  speak to  you s ince.  

MS DLAMINI :    Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r,  tha t  w i l l  be  the  ev idence we 

wanted to  p lace  before  you.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Thank you,  very  much,  Ms 

D lamin i .  

MS DLAMINI :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  excused.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i rperson,  the  next  w i tness is  here ,  
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I  w i l l  a l low the  ass is tan t  to  jus t  san i t i se  the  p lace.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Who wi l l  i t  be?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  Mr  Norman Ba loy i .   Shou ld  I  

p roceed to  ident i f y  the  bund le  in  the  meant ime,  

Cha i rperson?  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Shou ld  I  p roceed to  ident i f y  the  bund le  

in  the  meant ime or  shou ld  we f i rs t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  h im get  se t t led  and le t  us  take  the  – 

admin is te r  the  oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

REGISTRAR :   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record?  

MR BALOYI :    Norman Ba loy i .  

REGISTRAR :   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  t ak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR BALOYI :    I  have no ob jec t ion .  

REGISTRAR :   Do you cons ider  t he  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  do .  

REGISTRAR :   Do  you swear  tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  g ive   20 

w i l l  be  the  t ru th  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e lse  bu t  the  

t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and say  so  he lp  

me God.  

NORMAN BALOYI :   So he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  you may be seated,  Mr  
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Ba loy i .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson,  Eskom bund le  

10  and  under  tha t  bund le  we are  dea l ing  w i th  EXHIBIT  

U20.   Mr  Ba loy i ,  we lcome.   Thank you,  jus t  keep your  

m icrophone on.  

MR BALOYI :    Thank you,  s i r .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Jus t  housekeep ing ,  Mr  Ba loy i ,  le t  me 

see whethe r  you have the  bund le  I  am re fer r ing  to ,  tha t  is  

Eskom bund le  10 ,  EXHIBIT U20 and tha t  i s  on  page – you  

fo l low the  pag ina t ion  on  your  le f t ,  top  le f t  corner  wh ich  is  10 

the  pag ina t ion  in  b lack .   They s ta r t  w i th  Eskom 10 and then 

the  pag ina t ion  number .  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  we w i l l  d is regard  the  pag ina t ion  

wh ich  is  in  red  a t  the  top  r igh t  hand corner .   Do you see  

tha t?  

MR BALOYI :    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So tha t  s ta r ts  on  page 302 and  tha t  i s  

be tween t raml ines an  a f f idav i t .   Do you see tha t :  

“ I ,  the  unders igned,  Norman Ba loy i . . . ”  20 

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you see tha t?   That  a f f idav i t  runs 

up  to  page 312.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  can see tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    There  is  a  s ignature  a t  the  bo t tom o f  
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page 311,  the  page before .  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you conf i rm tha t  to  be  your  

s ignature?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  i t  i s  m ine.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The date  i s  7  September  2020,  you  

conf i rm tha t  as  we l l?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  i t  i s .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  you conf i rm th is  to  be  your  

a f f idav i t?  10 

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   Cha i rpe rson –  I  do  no t  

th ink  your  a f f idav i t  has annexures,  Mr  Ba loy i .   

Cha i rperson,  I  beg leave to  have the  a f f idav i t  admi t ted  in to  

ev idence as  EXHIBIT U20.1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Norman  Ba loy i  

s ta r t ing  a t  page  302 is  admi t ted  and w i l l  be  marked as  

EXHIBIT U20.1 .  

AFFIDAVIT  OF MR NORMAN BALOYI  HANDED IN AS 

EXHIBIT  U20.1  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Mr  Ba loy i ,  

you have agreed  to  ass is t  the  Commiss ion  i n  regard  to  an  

issue re la t ing  to  the  suspens ion  o f  the  execut ives  a t  

Eskom,  co r rec t?  

MR BALOYI :    I  d id  no t  ge t  the  quest ion .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    You have  agreed to  ass i s t  the  

Commiss ion  in  regard  to  the  issue re la t ing  to  the  

suspens ion  o f  the  execut ives  a t  Eskom.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  d id .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  took p lace on 11 March 2015.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  s i r .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And 12 March 2015.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  s i r .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now a  lo t  o f  ev idence has been led  

be fore  th is  Commiss ion  wh ich  I  w i l l  re lay  to  you so  you can  10 

conf i rm and we s tar t  w i th  tha t  a  board  –  a  new board  is  

appo in ted  on 11 December  2014 a t  Eskom.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The Commiss ion  has been to ld  tha t  

you were  one o f  the  board  members,  newly  appo in ted  

e f fec t i ve  11  December  2014.   

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  s i r .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The Commiss ion  has a lso  been to ld  

tha t  the  board  went  th rough an induct ion .  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    P rocess.   And maybe you cou ld  te l l  the 

Cha i rperson br ie f l y  a t  tha t  induct ion  what  takes p lace and  

accord ing  to  your  reco l lec t ion  when was the  board ’s  

induct ion?  

MR BALOYI :    I  w i l l  no t  reca l l  the  da te  bu t  ac tua l l y  a l l  the 
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workshops,  s t ra teg ic  workshops and the  s t ra teg ic  i ssues on  

the  meet ings were  a lways he ld  a t  Eskom Megawat t  Park  

except  when we were  ca l led  by  the  Min is te r  to  Cape Town.   

So I  p resume i t  shou ld  have been in  Megawat t  Park ,  

Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sor ry,  jus t  address the  Cha i rpe rson.   

You presume…? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say the  induct ion  or  i nduct ion  

workshops took p lace a t  Eskom of f i ces?  10 

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  be l ieve  i t  was in  Eskom of f i ces ,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BALOYI :    Because a l l  ac t i v i t ies  tha t  we a lways had a t  

Eskom were  a lways a t  the  Megawat t  Park .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Except  when we were  ca l led  by  the  

Min is te r  to  Cape Town.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You sa id  you do not  remember  the  da te  20 

when the  induct ion  took p lace but  you remember  the  

month .   Was i t  January  2014,  was i t  February?  

MR BALOYI :    Uhm… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Does January  ’16  r ing  a  be l l  as  poss ib le  

da te?  



07 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 278 
 

Page 64 of 185 
 

MR BALOYI :    You know,  I  was check ing  my inv i ta t i ons  th is  

morn ing  and a l l  I  cou ld  see were  the  inv i ta t ions  fo r  

commi t tees and the  board  wh ich  happened to  be  cance l led .   

I  w i l l  no t  reca l l  exact  da te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BALOYI :    Bu t  what  I  know is  tha t  on  the  same day or  

a round the  second day because I  was in  Po lokwane when I  

go t  a  ca l l  tha t  you have been appo in ted ,  we –  the  Min is te r  

wants  to  meet  w i th  you and I  had to  d r ive  to  Pre tor ia .   We 

a l l  met  there  as  new board  members  and the  Pre tor ia  o f f i ce 10 

o f  the  Min is te r.   So but  tha t  in  i t se l f ,  I  w i l l  no t  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You cannot  remember.   A l r igh t  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR BALOYI :    I t  happened not  so  long a f te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  you know,  ta lk ing  o f  you be ing  

ca l led  and in fo rmed o f  your  appo in tment ,  can you te l l  the 

Cha i rperson how d id  you become appo in ted  on the  board? 

MR BALOYI :    I  th ink  i t  was th rough the  board  nom inat ions  20 

and somebody nominated me to  be  in  the  board  and  in  tha t  

par t i cu la r  day when we met  the  M in is te r  the  Min is te r  sa id  

to  me but ,  you see,  I  do  no t  appo in t  peop le  because  I  know 

them,  I  do  no t  know you but  I  appo in ted  you because I  

want  –  I  l i ke  your  sk i l l s  and exper ience tha t  you have  
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acqu i red .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you know who nominated you?  

MR BALOYI :    I  th ink  –  I  remember  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  guess you shou ld  know.  

MR BALOYI :    I  w i l l  no t  know exact ly  bu t  I  th ink  o f  the  two  

I  w i l l  no t  reca l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  do  you know whethe r  you were  

nominated or  d id  you ever  see a  nominat ion?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes ac tua l l y  because I  had to  consen t  to  the 

nominat ion .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  d id  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was i t  somebody tha t  you d id  no t  know 

who nominated you?  

MR BALOYI :    I t  is  somebody tha t  I  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  somebody tha t  you know? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you cannot  remember?  

MR BALOYI :    Ja  because the re  were  two peop le  tha t  d id  i t  

a t  the  same t ime but  I  can ac tua l l y  check my arch ives.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  tha t ’s  s t range,  a t  tha t  t ime were  

there  a  number  o f  Boards on  wh ich  you were  serv ing? 

MR BALOYI :    In  2014 the  one Board  I  can remember,  I  

th ink  they were  no t  more  than two,  i f  they  were  two.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  
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MR BALOYI :    I t  was not  a  lo t  o f  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am jus t  surpr i sed tha t  you –  I  thought  

maybe you were ,  you were  s i t t ing  on  many boards,  

there fo re  i t  m igh t  no t  be  remembered who nomina ted you  

fo r  wh ich  Board .  

MR BALOYI :    No ac tua l l y  because the re  are  two  peop le  

who usua l l y  nominate  me so  I  wou ld  no t  want  to  ment ion  

the i r  names w i thout  ver i f y ing ,  so  among the  two.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  you don ’ t ,  you know the i r  face  but  

you don ’ t  the i r  names?  10 

MR BALOYI :    No,  no  I  know the i r  names,  I  am say ing  tha t  

I  can check shor t l y  about  who was  –  about  who nominated 

me fo r  Eskom Board ,  bu t  they are  peop le  tha t  I  worked w i th  

be fore ,  they a re  peop le  tha t  –  we know each o ther.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR BALOYI :    So I  do  no t  want  t o  specu la te  who among  

the  two .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:     Thank you Cha i rperson.   Mr  Ba loy i  so  

you get  appo in ted  on the  Board ,  you go th rough an  20 

induct ion  per iod  and you say you can ’ t  reca l l  exact ly  when  

d id  tha t  take  p lace.   Can you reca l l  when was your  f i rs t  

board  meet ing?  

MR BALOYI :    Because the  f i rs t  Board  meet ing  tha t  was 

schedu led  fo r  the  26 t h  o f  February  was cance l led ,  and was 
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Was the  meet ing  o f  the  26 t h  February  

go ing  to  be  the  f i rs t  meet ing  o f  the  Board?  

MR BALOYI :     I t  was go ing  to  be  the  f i rs t  meet ing  o f  the  

Board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR BALOYI :    Ja,  because p r io r  to  tha t  the re  were  

commi t tee  meet ings tha t  were  he ld .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore  tha t?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  and I  can reca l l  tha t ,  i t  cou ld  have  10 

been dur ing  the  induct ion  when we were  l i s ted  to  s i t  in  

d i f fe ren t  commi t tees,  because I  –  as  I  remember  tha t  I  was 

ac tua l l y  was supposed to  cha i r  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee 

fo rm the  in i t ia l  l i s t  tha t  was g i ven to  us  by  the  Cha i rperson  

o f  the  Board .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  so  tha t  meet ing  was cance l led ,  

the  Commiss ion  has been to ld  tha t  much,  do  you know 

what  reasons were  g iven fo r  the  cance l la t ion?  

MR BALOYI :    There  were  no  reasons tha t  were  g iven,  bu t  

I  th ink  we were  i n fo rmed on the  eve,  o r  in  the  even ing  o f  20 

the  meet ing ,  a round n ine  or  ten  o ’c lock  somewhere ,  so  i t  

was an SMS f rom the  Company Secre tary.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    When was the  next  meet ing  o f  the  

Board?  

MR BALOYI :    The next  meet ing  was on the  9 t h  o f  March .   



07 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 278 
 

Page 68 of 185 
 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can you p lease te l l  the  Cha i rperson  

whethe r  i s  tha t  a  schedu led  board  meet ing?  

MR BALOYI :     I  th ink  yes i t  was a  schedu led  Board  

meet ing  i f  I  remember,  because we were  hav ing  i t  fo r  the  

f i rs t  t ime tha t  may not  be  100% sure  because ac tua l l y  

dur ing  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  meet ing  the  main  agenda was the  

issue o f  the  inqu i ry.  

 I  remember  tha t  some o f  the  Board  members  were  

not  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sor ry,  jus t  c la r i f y  to  the  Cha i rpe rson,  10 

what  do  you say may not  be  100% sure?  

MR BALOYI :     No,  no  ac tua l l y,  because the  mee t ing  was  

shor t  as  fa r  as  I  remember  and Eskom Board  meet ings they  

usua l l y  take  the  who le  day,  even the  commi t tee  meet ings 

they usua l l y  take  the  who le  day,  bu t  on  tha t  par t i cu la r  day I  

remember  i t  was  shor te r  meet ing ,  i t  cou ld  have been a  

spec ia l  meet ing  because in  tha t  par t i cu la r  meet ing  as  fa r  

as  I  remember  there  was a  concern  by  the  Company 

Secre tary  tha t  the  Board  needs to  have i t s  own meet ing ,  

because there  have been commi t tee  meet ings tha t  the 20 

Board  hasn ’ t  met  and there ’s  a  corpora te  p lan  tha t  needs  

to  be  approved so  tha t  i t  can  be e f fec ted  on the  1s t  o f  Apr i l ,  

and the  dead l ine  is  an  issue.  

 So hence I  am not  100% sure  whethe r  i t  was an 

ord inary  meet ing  or  i t  was a  spec ia l  meet ing ,  bu t  one th ing  
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i s  fo r  sure  i s  tha t  i t  was a  shor te r  meet ing  than the  

meet ings,  o ther  peop le  were  no t  there ,  o the r  board  

members  were  no t  there  phys ica l l y  bu t  we consu l ted  

te lephon ica l l y  o r  on  v ideo.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes the  doctor  sa id  he  ca l led  tha t  

meet ing  spec ia l l y  a f te r  he  had a t tended a  cer ta in  meet ing 

in  Durban so  probab ly  i t  was a  spec ia l  meet ing .  

MR BALOYI :    Yes more  l i ke ly  because some peop le  were  

on  v ideo,  because the  normal  board  meet ings I  mean we  

were  usua l l y  in fo rmed on t ime and  then we make ou rse l ves 10 

ava i lab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BALOYI :    And i t  i s  very  ra re  tha t  you ’ve  go t  some 

peop le  be ing  on  v ideo conference  or  te leconference,  they 

wou ld  phys ica l l y  be  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  was d i scussed a t  the  meet ing  o f  

the  9 t h?  

MR BALOYI :    The main  agenda i tem for  the  meet ing  was 

to  se t  up  the  inqu i ry  and the  Board  Cha i rperson,  Mr  Zo la  

Tsots i ,  he  p resen ted to  us  the  theory  or  the  background o r  20 

the  need fo r  th is  par t i cu la r  commiss ion  o f  inqu i ry  tha t  had 

to  take  p lace,  so  he  sa id  tha t  he  met  w i th  the  Pres ident  

and he has a lso ,  and the  Pres ident  has met  w i th  the  

Min is te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    P res ident  who?  
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MR BALOYI :    Mmm? 

CHAIRPERSON:    You sa id  he  met  w i th  Pres ident  who? 

MR BALOYI :     Pres ident  Zuma.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mmm.  

MR BALOYI :     Yes,  he  sa id  they met  ove r  the  weekend 

and the  meet ing  was on Monday,  I  th ink  they cou ld  have  

met  the  day be fo re ,  the  way tha t  I  reca l l ,  bu t  we met  and 

then the  Pres ident  a lso  had spoken to  the  Min i s te r  on  the  

idea o f  hav ing  th is  t ype o f  inqu i ry,  so  l i ke  he  met  one  or  

two occas ions w i th  the  Pres ident  and some o f  the  meet ings  10 

cou ld  have been cance l led ,  bu t  there  was some in te rac t ion ,  

because the  Pres ident  wants  to  have th is  par t i cu la r  i ssue  

o f  knowing exact ly  what  i s  the  s ta te  o f  a f fa i r s  a t  Eskom,  

because the  Pres ident  had in i t ia ted  th rough the  cab ine t ,  

the  war  room and there  are  some repor ts  tha t  a re  no t  

a lways accura te  or  whatever,  so  there ’s  a  need tha t  we get  

the  t rue  fac t s  o f  them f i rs t  o f  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And what  was the  react ion  o f  the  Board 

members  on  the  9 t h  o f  March  to  Mr  Tsots i ’s  p roposa ls?  

MR BALOYI :    Ja,  no  s ing le  Board  member  ac tua l l y  20 

accepted the i r  p roposa l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mmm? 

MR BALOYI :    No s ing le  board  member  accepted the  

proposa l ,  because as  I  sa id  ear l ie r  on  tha t  in  Eskom 

there ’s  a  vo lume o f  paper,  a  vo lume o f  work ,  even the  
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Board  and the  commi t tee  meet ings the re  was a lways a  

vo lume o f  paper,  so  you cou ld  see tha t  peop le  a re  very  

busy,  execut ives  are  very  busy w i th  day to  day work  and 

the  fee l ing  o f  the  Board  members  were  –  was tha t  to  have  

th is  inqu i ry  o r  th i s  –  ja ,  commiss ion  o f  some sor ts ,  o r  to  do  

tha t  invest iga t ion  i t  i s  go ing  to  consume more  t ime  fo r  the 

execut ives  because they a re  too  much pressed and there  

are  so  many press ing  issues and there  is  a lso  a  war  room 

tha t  a re  serv ing  –  the  Boards tha t  a re  se rv ing  the ,  the  ones  

tha t  a re  serv ing ,  so  the  fee l ing  was tha t  the  t im ing  is  no t  10 

per fec t ,  I  mean  and we s t i l l  need to  in te r roga te  some 

documents ,  we need  to  in te r rogate  some th ings because 

what  we know now is  what  the  execut ives  have g iven us  

bu t  we haven ’ t  had t ime to  in te r rogate  th is  and tha t  

whethe r  th is  i s  –  whethe r  i t  i s  the  prac t ice ,  so  i t  was a  

fee l ing  o f  many Board  members  tha t  the  t im ing  is  no t  good  

p lann ing  and then because he had ment ioned the  name o f  

the  Pres ident  and the  name o f  the  Min i s te r  so  the re  was a  

proposa l  tha t  i f  we can meet  w i th  the  Min i s te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MR BALOYI :    On Wednesday ins tead o f  Monday.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  un less  there  is  someth ing  s t i l l  

on  the  meet ing  o f  the  9 t h  Mr  Se leka I  th ink  you  can go 

s t ra igh t  to  the  meet ing  o f  the  11 t h .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Le t  me jus t  ask  Mr  Ba loy i  one  
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quest ion .    Mr  Ba loy i  you ta lked about  a  p roposa l  fo r  the  

inqu i ry,  tha t  p roposa l  accord ing  to  your  reco l lec t ion  

invo l ved the  suspens ion  o f  the  execut ives  on  the  9 t h  o f  

March?  

MR BALOYI :    Ac tua l l y  the  p roposa l  as  fa r  as  I  remember,  

because there  were  issues o f  f inance and so  on  and the  

Board  cha i rperson sa id  tha t  our  Min is te r  w i l l  need to  be  

consu l ted  together  w i th  the  Min i s te r  o f  F inance but  i t  i s  

be t te r  tha t  we don ’ t  speak to  the  Min is te r  o f  F inance a t  th is  

s tage,  the  FD is  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  some o f  the  i ssues o f  10 

the  f inances and  so  on ,  so  there  was no o ther  p roposa l  

shor t  o f  suspens ion ,  bu t  peop le  were  jus t  no t  happy w i th  

the  issue o f  inqu i ry,  ja ,  more  espec ia l l y  tha t  we were  

in fo rmed tha t  there  was a l ready  o ther  i nqu i r ies  tha t  jus t  

took p lace,  jus t  be fore  –  dur ing  tha t  par t i cu la r  t ime so  –  

and they even executed the  recommendat ions,  so  they  

ex tended t ime to  execute  the  recommendat ions f rom the  

o ther  inqu i r ies  o f  the  execut ives .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  so  you ment ioned  to the  

Cha i rperson the  meet ing  on  the  –  there  was a  proposa l  to  20 

have a  meet ing  w i th  the  Min is te r  and tha t  meet ing  took 

p lace on Wednesday 11 March 2015.   We unders tand tha t  

there  was a  coup le  o f  meet ings,  were  a  coup le  o f  meet ings 

on  tha t  day,  you can take  us  th rough those meet ings.  

 F i r s t l y  we unders tand i t ’s  a  mee t ing  o f  the  Board  
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w i thout  the  Min is te r,  and then the  Min is te r  a r r i ves  and she  

has a  meet ing  w i th  the  Board .   You can s tar t  w i th  the  f i rs t  

one.  

MR BALOYI :    Thanks Cha i r.   Yes we s tar ted  w i th  the  

Min is te r  –  oh  no ,  we s tar ted  w i th  the  Board  meet ing  

because the  press ing  i ssue was the  Corpora te  P lan  and I  

th ink  i t  was be ing  presented by  the  CEO,  and dur ing  h is  

p resenta t ion  there  was an in te r rup t ion  tha t  the  Min is te r  i s  

in  and then the  Board  Cha i rperson  went  ou t  and asked Ms 

K le in  to  take  ove r  as  the  Cha i rpe rson,  and then we  had to  10 

wa i t ,  we had to  cont inue unt i l  the  Cha i rperson came back 

w i th  the  Min i s te r,  so  –  and then in  tha t  par t i cu la r  one the  

Min is te r  d id  have a  sess ion ,  i t  was the  second sess ion  

ac tua l l y,  the  board  was a l ready  hav ing  the i r  –  wh ich  was  

not  f in ished,  wh ich  was go ing  to  be  comple ted  a f te r  the 

Min is te r  has le f t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  a re  the  main  fea tu res  o f  the 

d iscuss ion  a t  the  Board  meet ing  be fore  the  M in is te r  a r r i ved  

tha t  you remember  wh ich  you wou ld  l i ke  to  h igh l igh t?  

MR BALOYI :    The main  fea tu re  was the  corpo ra te  p lan .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Corpora te  p lan?  

MR BALOYI :    Ja,  Corpora te  p lan  because  i t  was  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    That  the  CEO was p resent ing?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  ac tua l l y  yes ,  and i t  was supposed to  
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have been the  ma in  agenda on the  26 t h  o f  February.  

CHAIRPERSON:    On the  26 t h?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BALOYI :    And when you get  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sor ry  Cha i r,  the  s tenographers  are  

ask ing  Mr  Ba loy i  to  speak louder,  jus t  d rop  the  m ic .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  and ra i se  your  vo ice  s i r.  

MR BALOYI :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.    So d id  you say when the  10 

Min is te r  a r r i ved Mr  Matona,  the  CEO was t i l l  p resent ing  the  

corpo ra te  p lan?  

MR BALOYHI :    Yes,  they were  s t i l l  busy p resent ing ,  bu t  i t  

had to  be  s topped,  so  tha t  we can  a t tend to  the  Min is te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ra ise  your  vo i ce ,  I  th ink  your  vo i ce  is  

qu i te  low.  

MR BALOYI :    Okay,  yes  I  th ink  i t  had to  be  s topped  

because the  Min i s te r  was –  had a r r i ved and was go ing  to  

address us .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay Mr  Se leka?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i rperson.  So Mr  Ba loy i  

jus t  te l l  the  Cha i rperson on the  Min i s te r ’s  a r r i va l  what  

happens in  the  meet ing?  

MR BALOYI :     Ja ,  dur ing  the  mee t ing  ac tua l l y  the  Min is te r  

to ld  us  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Le t  me say th is ,  o r  car ry  on ,  ca r ry  on ,  

sor ry,  I  beg your  pardon.  

MR BALOYI :     Okay,  when the  Min is te r  came and we had 

to  s top  and a t tend to  the  Min is te r  what  I  reca l l  i s  tha t  the 

Min is te r  sa id  to  us  tha t  she has been p ro tec t ing  the  

execut ives  o f  Eskom and tha t  she . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    She sa id  she had been pro tec t ing  who? 

MR BALOYI :    The execut ives  o f  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The execut ives  o f  Eskom? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  she say who she had been  

pro tec t ing  them f rom? 

MR BALOYI :    No actua l l y  because there  were  issues o f  in  

–  there  were  some issues f rom the  war  room,  the re  were  

some,  because they were  prov id ing  in fo rmat ion  to  the  war  

room,  prov id ing  in fo rmat ion  to  the  Board ,  so  I  th ink  there  

was some quest ion  marks  around  some o f  the  documents ,  

so  because I  be l ieve  tha t  the  Min i s te r  was out  o f  the  war  

room and S  &  L because i t  was a  cab ine t  re la ted  

commi t tee .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    You say you th ink  there  were  issues 

re la t ing  to  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  the  Execut ive  prov ided to  

the  war  room,  are  you repeat ing  what  the  Min is te r  sa id  a t  

the  meet ing  or  i s  i t  someth ing  tha t  you were  aware  o f  

yourse l f ,  no t  necessar i l y  tha t  tha t ’s  what  the  Min is te r  sa id?  
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MR BALOYI :     No ac tua l l y  the  main  i ssue tha t  she has  

ra ised or  tha t  happened before  tha t  i s  tha t  I  th ink  i t  

happened even on Monday,  when we were  a t  the  meet ing ,  

when . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on Mr  Ba loy i ,  my quest ion  is  when 

you say you th ink  there  were  some issues  about  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  the  execut ives  had been g iv ing  to  the  war  

room,  are  you ta lk ing  about  i ssues  tha t  you were  aware  o f  

o r  a re  you say ing  tha t ’s  what  the  Min is te r  sa id  a t  the 

meet ing?  10 

MR BALOYI :    Okay,  ac tua l l y  Cha i rperson I  am te l l ing  o f  

what  came to  reco l lec t ion  because I  am not  su re  whethe r  

the  Min i s te r  re fe r red  to  the  war  room issues,  bu t  what  she  

sa id  to  us  i s  tha t  they have got  –  the  issues o f  the  access 

o f  in fo rmat ion ,  there  is  someth ing  tha t  the  Board  members  

were  say ing  tha t  we are  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  some o f  the  issues,  

so  we don ’ t  know whethe r  the  issues was tha t  t rue  or  no t  

t rue ,  because i t  cou ld  be  the  same th ing  w i th  the  war  room 

because i t  was jus t  es tab l i shed a f te r  us ,  and then the  

issue o f  the  access o f  in fo rmat ion  is  someth ing  tha t  d idn ’ t  20 

come to  the  Board ’s  a t ten t ion  in  a  fo rmal  way,  i t  was more  

o f  a  specu la t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  is  your  answer  to  my quest i on  tha t  

you are  no t  say ing  tha t  tha t ’s  what  the  Min is te r  sa id ,  you  

are  s imp ly  te l l ing  me what  you were  aware  o f .  
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MR BALOYI :     Yes,  i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  I  was aware  o f ,  

because the  Min i s te r  was par t  o f  the  war  room and then 

she was say ing  tha t  she is  more  concerned abou t  some 

issues . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No hang on,  don ’ t  te l l  me ye t  what  the  

Min is te r  sa id  i f  you  say th i s  i s  no t  what  the  Min is te r  sa id .    

You were  aware  tha t  there  were  some issues re la t ing  to  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  the  execut ives  were  prov id ing  to  the  war  

room,  i s  tha t  wha t  you are  say ing ,  a t  tha t  t ime tha t ’s  what  

you were  aware  o f?  10 

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    How d id  you –  what  was your  source  o f  

th is  in fo rmat ion  tha t  there  were  issues about  in fo rmat ion  

tha t  the  execut ives  had been prov id ing  to  the  war  room? 

MR BALOYI :    I  cannot  say  d i rec t l y  whethe r  i t  was  issues  

f rom the  newspapers  or  i ssues  f rom the  Eskom media  

room,  I  cannot  say  w i th  conf idence o f  where  exact ly  the  

issues were  because I  was not  pa r t  o f  tha t  war  room,  bu t  –  

and we hadn ’ t  had the  Board  meet ing  ye t  so  those th ings 

tha t  you p i ck  f rom . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    So you don ’ t  know where  you got  tha t  

in fo rmat ion  f rom? 

MR BALOYI :   Yes  there  was no . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Ba loy i  the  
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way I  heard  you say was tha t  the  Board  had  got ten  

in fo rmat ion  wh ich  i t  had not  in te r rogated so  you were  no t  

sure  whether  you cou ld  re ly  on  the  in fo rmat ion  and you  

asked yourse l f  what  a lso  about  in fo rmat ion  regard ing  the  

war  room.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Okay so  bu t  tha t  exp lanat ion ,  i f  you  

g ive  tha t  exp lanat ion  to  the  Cha i rperson i t  conveys the  

unders tand ing  tha t  you in  fac t  d id  no t  have before  the  

Board  issues regard ing  the  war  room,  you  s imp ly  10 

quest ioned what  about  g iven what  I  have,  wh ich  I  haven ’ t  

in te r rogated,  what  about  the  issues regard ing  the  war  

room.   

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  bu t  there  was no fo rmal  communica t ion  

around tha t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:     Jus t  speak louder  aga in  there  was 

what?    

MR BALOYI :    Yes there  was no spec i f i c  in fo rmat ion  tha t  

was g iven to  us  about  the  war  room,  i ssues tha t  we needed  

to  be  concerned about ,  bu t  there  was no fo rmal  20 

communica t ion  a round i t ,  i t  was  more  o f  specu la t ion  or  

someth ing  o the r  peop le ’s  fee l ings  about  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  te l l  me the  main  po in ts  t ha t  the 

Min is te r  made a t  tha t  meet ing  wh ich  she had w i th  the 

Board ,  i f  you  remember  tha t?  
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MR BALOYI :    The Min is te r  sa id  tha t  she has been  

pro tec t ing  Eskom Execut ives  and she is  t i red  o f  p ro tec t ing 

them.   She wants  to  ac tua l l y  feedback and not  p ro tec t  them 

anymore  because  there  have been  issues about  the i r  work  

and she does not  want  to  p ro tec t  them anymore  about  the  

type o f  in fo rmat ion  and the  type  o f  work  tha t  they are  

do ing ,  so  she w i l l  no t  want  to  p ro tec t  them anymore .   That  

was the  main  essence o f  the  meet ing ,  and then she a lso  

sa id  tha t  –  when  she le f t ,  because we d id  in te r rogate ,  we 

d id  speak to  he r  about  i ssues and so  on  –  about  our  10 

unders tand ing ,  about  what  she was coming fo r,  because  

the  main  reason o f  her  coming was on the  i ssue o f  inqu i ry  

whethe r  she i s  endors ing  or  she is  in i t ia t ing  or  she is  

suppor t ing  the  inqu i ry  tha t  took p lace,  because a l l  Board  

members  were  no t  happy w i th  i t  when i t  was presented 

. . . [ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  what  d id  she  say about  the  inqu i ry?  

MR BALOYI :    She was suppor t ing  i t  and she sa id  tha t  she 

w i l l  want  i t ,  she  w i l l  have an in te r im repor t  w i th in  th ree  

months ,  she w i l l  want  to  have someth ing  f rom tha t  inqu i ry  20 

repor ted  to  he r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    In te r im repor t  o r  f ina l  repor t  in  th ree  

months .  

MR BALOYI :    I t  was main ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  jus t  a  repor t?  
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MR BALOYI :    I t  was a  repor t  ac tua l l y,  because i t  was 

ant ic ipa ted  tha t  i t  w i l l  take  more  than th ree  mon ths  bu t  

w i th in  th ree  months  there  has to  be  someth ing  to  be  

prov ided.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  she  address the  issue o f  

suspens ions o f  execut ives?  

MR BALOYI :    Not  d i rec t l y  as  I  remember,  bu t  f rom the  

fee l ing  tha t  she was say ing ,  she was say ing  tha t  she is  no t  

go ing  to  p ro tec t  any execut ive  anymore ,  so  f rom my 

unders tand ing  is  tha t  there  cou ld  be  poss ib le  suspens ions  10 

o f  execut ives ,  f rom my read ing  o f  how she presented to  us .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  jus t  repeat  tha t .  

MR BALOYI :    From the  way tha t  she spoke to  us ,  she was  

endors ing  the  commiss ion  o f  inqu i ry  and then she was a l so  

endors ing  the  issues o f  poss ib le  suspens ions because she 

had . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh i t  wasn ’ t  a  commiss ion  o f  inqu i ry  

i sn ’ t  i t?  

MR BALOYI :    Not  a  commiss ion  o f  inqu i ry,  the  commiss ion  

is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    About  invest iga t ion .  

MR BALOYI :    Ja ,  by  the  Pres ident  and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  are  you say ing  tha t  she touched  

on the  suspens ion  o f  execut ives  o f  a re  you say ing  she d id  

no t  address tha t  i ssue?  
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MR BALOYI :    She sa id  tha t  she  is  no t  go ing  to  p ro tec t  

them and i f  we  need anyth ing  f rom her  we must  no t  

hes i ta te  because she w i l l  no t  go  fa r,  she w i l l  go  to  the  mal l  

o r  so  on ,  bu t  whenever  we need her  dur ing  the  day  we a re  

f ree  to  ca l l  her  to  come back or  maybe c la r i f i ca t ion  or  

maybe fo r  in fo rmat ion  and so  on ,  because she d idn ’ t  s tay  

long w i th  us ,  bu t  f rom the  presenta t ion  a  person  cou ld  

sense tha t  the  issue o f  suspens ion  is  on  the  cards ,  bu t  who 

was go ing  to  be  suspended was a  quest ion  mark ,  because 

we had to  go  and meet  a t  the  board  meet ing  tha t  had to  10 

cont inue,  so  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  now a f te r  the  meet ing  w i th  the 

Min is te r.  

MR BALOYI :   Af ter  the  Min is te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  in  te rms o f  what  was d i scussed  

between the  Board  and the  Min is te r  have you covered the  

main  po in ts?  

MR BALOYI :    Ja,  the  main  po in ts  were  the  endorsement  o f  

the  inqu i ry  and tha t  we need not  p ro tec t  anyone.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   Mr  Se leka?    20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Ba loy i  le t ’s  see  

what  you say about  th is  Dr  Ngubane has tes t i f ied  in  h is  

a f f idav i t  to  th is  Commiss ion ,  he  says the  Min is te r  ra ised  

concerns about  the  execut ives ,  the  four  execut ives  and she 

in  the  end sa id  tha t  they shou ld  s tep  as ide ,  and when the  
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Min is te r  le f t  the  Board  was now conv inced tha t  th is  i s  what  

the  shareho lder  wants ,  the  inqu i ry  and the  s tepp ing  as ide  

o f  the  execut ives .   What  i s  your  reco l lec t ion  in  regard  to  

tha t?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes ac tua l l y  the  o ther  th ing  tha t  happened 

is  tha t  she asked  the  two execut ive  d i rec tors  to  s tep  ou t  o f  

the  room,  bu t  be fore  they cou ld  s tep  ou t  the  CEO,  Matona,  

sa id  tha t  he  w i l l  want  to  see someth ing  be fore  he  leaves 

and then he to ld  h is  s to ry  about  how th ings are ,  the  type o f  

s teps he  is  t ry ing  to  do  to  rec t i f y  th ings or  to  go  w i th  the  10 

process o f  work  or  the  d isadvantages tha t  a re  supposed to  

be  advantaged a f te rwards,  so  he  d id  make a  shor t  

p resenta t ion ,  maybe o f  two to  th ree  minutes ,  somewhere  

there ,  so  and then they le f t  and then i t  i s  when the  Min is te r  

cont inued w i th  the  Board  and your  quest ion  is?   

ADV SELEKA SC:    The quest ion  is  th is ,  le t  me read what  

Dr  Ngubane says  to  th is  Commiss ion  in  h is  a f f idav i t .   He 

says:  

“Did not  di rect  the board to suspend the four 

execut ives she raised concerns of  her own 20 

against  them  The concerns rela ted to the 

War Room which she suggested complained 

was not  receiv ing consistent  in format ion.   

The Minister then – the Minister fe l t  that  the 

presence of  the four execut ives might  hinder  
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the invest igat ion. ”  

Then he says:  

“Af ter the meet ing wi th the Minister i t  was 

clear  to  the board that  government and 

shareholder of  Eskom required the inquiry to  

proceed and the four  execut ives had to step 

aside whi lst  the inquiry was underway. ”  

So I  was asking is  that  consistent  wi th your recol lect ion? 

MR BALOYI:   My recol lect ion is that  only the three board 

members were – no the three execut ives were supposed to 10 

be suspended.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes but  my. .  

MR BALOYI:   Not  four – the fourth one happened not  to be.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

MR BALOYI:   He happened to be included af terwards by the 

PMG commit tee.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   So are you saying to the 

Chairperson you – i t  is consistent  wi th your recol lect ion that  

i t  was clear af ter the meet ing wi th the Minister that  the 

inquiry had to happen and that  execut ives at  least  according 20 

to your recol lect ion three execut ives had to be suspended or 

step aside? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So he has four but  you say you recal l  

three? 
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MR BALOYI:   Yes i t  was three actual ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.    

MR BALOYI:   Yes i t  was three of  that  I  am a hundred 

percent  sure.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   May I  proceed Chair? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes you may proceed.  I  th ink i t  is possible  

for us to f in ish by one o’clock wi th th is wi tness.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay let  us – let  us see Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Let  us – Mr Baloyi  af ter the meet ing wi th  10 

the Minister what does the board do? 

MR BALOYI:   The board said and ident i f ied those three 

people that  had to be – to be suspended.  And the board 

ident i f ied those three people except  the FD.  And then the 

board said that  the PMG commit tee – People in Governance 

Commit tee wi l l  be the one to deal  wi th the processes that  

needs to take place.   And then that  commit tee sat  and I  

asked to si t  into that  commit tee.   But  before that  dur ing the 

board meet ing I  d id raise the issues of  the report .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  one second Mr Baloyi .   Mr  Seleka 20 

what you can do is ident i fy – there are a number of  areas 

where his evidence is the same as the evidence of  

everybody’s i t  is not  that  evidence is not  issue in terms of  

what happened.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   What happened – where his evidence is 

the same as others we do not  need to spend much t ime on 

that  but… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  where there are di fferences then we 

can focus on that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  helps me.   Mr Baloyi  yes let  us do 

that .   So you were talk ing about  a report .   Let  me ask you 10 

speci f ical ly about  that  and you can explain to the 

Chairperson.   The other board members have also come 

here and said some of  the board members have sa id to the 

Chairperson Mr Tsotsi  said there was a report  – a 

background repor t  and they wanted him to produce that  

report .   Is that  the report  you are referr ing to? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes i t  is  the report  that  I  am referr ing to that  

pr ior to the suspensions we need to have r ight  informat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   So that  we can have r ight  process to take.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   So are you saying to the Chairperson 

that  you made a request  for that  report  to be provided? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes I  d id Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And what was the response to you? 

MR BALOYI:   The response was that  – that  is not  our report  
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we must  not  worry about i t .   We have to do our own inquiry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Can you recal l  who said that? 

MR BALOYI:   I  th ink i t  is the – Doctor Ngubane.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Now take the Chai rperson to 

how the name of  the Financial  Di rector Ms Tsholofelo Molefe 

was included?  You say three persons had been ident i f ied 

and there were not  four but  subsequent ly we know that  the 

FD was also suspended.  Can you recal l  how her name was 

included on the l is t?  

MR BALOYI:   Ja her name was inc luded during the meet ing 10 

of  the People and Governance.   But  the board… 

CHAIRPERSON:   During the meet ing of? 

MR BALOYI:   People and Governance.  

CHAIRPERSON:   People and Governance.  

MR BALOYI:   Governance Commit tee.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   Ja but  the board who had in those three 

people but  the fourth one was not  in those – the board was 

not  aware about the fourth one.   I  mean did not  include the 

fourth one.   Because the inqui ry was not  about  the f inancia l  20 

issues but  i t  was merely about these other issues.  

CHAIRPERSON:  So are you saying at  the end of  the board 

meet ing that  took place af ter the Minister had lef t  there were 

only three execut ives that  the board had  

MR BALOYI:   Ident i f ied.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Said should be suspended? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And they did not  include the Financial  

Di rector? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then when the PMG Commit tee met  

af ter that  board meet ing i t  was at  that  PMG meet ing that  her 

name was added.  Is that  what you are saying? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you remember how or  who added her  10 

name? 

MR BALOYI:   I  remember Ms Mabude have been the one to 

say that  because she was deal ing wi th – she was in Audi t  

and Risk Commit tee Chai rperson.   So she said that  there are 

some f inancial  issues so she has to  be also included.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  Ms Mabude? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes so she was the one who suggested 

that  her name should be – the Financial  Di rector ’s name 

should be included? 20 

MR BALOYI:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   And did the PMG Commit tee then 

accept  that? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes they accepted that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Was there – was there a debate 
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about  i t  wi th some members opposed to her inc lus ion and 

others want ing her to be included or there was no 

opposi t ion? 

MR BALOYI:   I  think I  am the only one that  could have – no 

– that  actual ly opposed i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Were against  th is idea? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   Because i t  was not  the idea of  the board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because her name had not  been endorsed 10 

by – had not  been approved by the board as somebody to be 

suspended? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   And you advanced this argument at  

the PMG meet ing? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes though I  was not  a member.   I  was … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR BALOYI:   I  just  asked to stay on to be part  of  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   Because I  worr ied about  the change of  events 20 

that  was so drast ic so I  wanted to  actual ly observe things 

that  are happening.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes and what was your – what was the 

response of  other members at  the PMG meet ing to your point  

that  – but  the Financial  Di rector is not  one of  the execut ives 
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that  the board sa id should be suspended? 

MR BALOYI:   Actual ly there was no opposi t ion.   Everyone 

was f ine wi th that  idea.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry? 

MR BALOYI:   There was no opposi t ion to that  idea that  she 

must  be suspended as wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   There was no opposi t ion to? 

MR BALOYI:   To the suspension proposal .   Everyone was 

f ine wi th that  idea.  

CHAIRPERSON:   With the suspension.  10 

MR BALOYI:   Except  mysel f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  the execut ives? 

MR BALOYI:   Of  the FD.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  the FD? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So you were the only one who opposed? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And everyone else seems to be – seemed 

to be… 

MR BALOYI:   Support ing i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   To have no problem.  

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you includ ing Mr Tsotsi  as wel l  

because he said he at tended that  meet ing.   Was he not  

opposed to the inclusion of  the Financial  Director ’s name? 
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MR BALOYI:   No I  th ink – ja you may be – he may be r ight  

that  he was not  actual ly support ing i t  as wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   Yes,  yes.   I  recal l  now thanks Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  in the end the major i ty… 

MR BALOYI:   Agreed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Were supported that  she should be 

suspended as wel l?  

MR BALOYI:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Seleka.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chair.   Doctor Baloyi  your – 

what was your posi t ion in regard to  the suspension of  al l  of  

the execut ives? 

MR BALOYI:   My overa l l  p icture around i t  is  that  I  could 

sense that  between the 9t h and the 11t h there could have 

been lots of  consul tat ions because everyone was opposed 

on the 9 t h then everyone was for  i t  on the 11t h.   And my other 

impression is that  dur ing the breaks one board member said 

that  he had another meet ing the day before where he was 

cal led in by the DPE off ic ia ls.   So – and he was informed 20 

that  these people must  be suspended tomorrow.   So – and 

then i t  is when the idea of  change of  events came to rea l i ty 

that  i t  looks l ike things were happening dur ing those two 

periods.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you remember which board member 



07 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 278 
 

Page 91 of 185 
 

said that  to you? 

MR BALOYI:   I t  was the PMG Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Who? 

MR BALOYI:   Zethembe Khoza.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Who was that? 

MR BALOYI:    Zethembe Khoza 

CHAIRPERSON:   He is the one who told you that  he had 

been cal led to the Department of  Publ ic Enterpr ises and told 

that  these execut ives should be suspended? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes he said he met wi th the off ic ia ls.   I  do not  10 

know whether i t  was in the – in the DPE off ices or 

somewhere else.   But… 

CHAIRPERSON:   He said he met wi th whom? 

MR BALOYI:   I  am not  sure where they could have met but  

he said that  he met wi th them the day before.  

CHAIRPERSON:   With the DPE people? 

MR BALOYI:   Ja he was cal led into that  meet ing 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR BALOYI:   To meet wi th them.  So that  he be informed as 

a Chairperson of  PMG. 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.   Did he say to you who else 

was in that  meet ing? 

MR BALOYI:   No he did not  te l l  me the people that  were 
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there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He did not .   Yes.   Okay.   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   So then the 

suspensions do take place.   Wel l  just  before then Mr Baloyi  

how – we know that  people were appointed to act  in the 

posi t ions of  those who were suspended or were to be 

suspended.  Do you know how the names of  those who were 

to act  came about? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes Chai r  dur ing those breaks that  I  said that  

we had several  breaks.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   On the 11 March.  

MR BALOYI:   Yes on the 11t h ja dur ing the PMG meet ing 

there were a lot  of  cal ls that  were done to the Presidency 

off ice.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To the Presidency? 

MR BALOYI:   Ja to the Presidency’s off ice.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   Ja those ca l ls were actual ly enqui r ing who 

should act  – whom – must  we put  so and so;  must  we put  so 

and so?  And then the report  that  came was that  they said 20 

we must not  put  th is as a – as a – you must  not  put  so and 

so;  so and so.   But  so and so and so and so are f ine.   And i t  

was actual ly those types of  – of  consul tat ions that  were 

happening so that  we are in l ine wi th the off ice of  the 

Presidency.   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Who was or who were making these cal ls 

to the Presidency? 

MR BALOYI:   Ja i t  was Doctor Ngubane.  Ja he is the one 

who was cal l ing the Presidency off ice.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you know whether he was the only one 

who was making these cal ls on this  issue – on this issue of  

who should act  in these posi t ions? 

MR BALOYI:   I… 

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  know? 

MR BALOYI:   I  do not  know who was cal l ing.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   But  i t  is people f rom the President ’s off ice.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   Yes and because he did say that  he has got  

connect ions in that  off ice and then he has to consul t  wi th 

them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   With – that  they wi l l  approve so and so and so 

and so.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR BALOYI:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was i t  Doctor Ngubane who said he did 

have connect ions at  the off ice of  the President? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes he did say so.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Now was he … 



07 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 278 
 

Page 94 of 185 
 

MR BALOYI:   Because actual ly I  – he – he was referred to  

as an Ambassador.  

CHAIRPERSON:   yes.  

MR BALOYI:   So and then who could wai t  for  him to make 

those consul tat ions and then coming back to us wi th a 

report .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now when he was making those cal ls was 

he making those cal ls because he had been asked by the 10 

board or  the PMG Commit tee to make those cal ls  on i ts 

behal f  or was he just  making those cal ls on his own as far as 

you know? 

MR BALOYI:   Ja to te l l  you the t ru th I  cannot recal l  actual ly 

whether he was.   I t  was just  own in i t iat ive or i t  was the 

in i t iat ive of  the PMG Commit tee.   But  at  those consul tat ions 

did take place.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  af ter  making the cal ls was he report ing 

back to  the commit tee?  Was he report ing back to say I  have 

been in touch wi th the off ice of  the President  or wi th the 20 

Presidency th is is what they say?  Was he saying that  too 

openly or was he saying that  to you pr ivately?  How did you 

come to know? 

MR BALOYI:   No actual ly i t  is something which was part  of  

the meet ing and I  do – I  d id see some transcr ip ts – the 
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t ranscr ipt ions around that .   That  we were wai t ing for his 

response.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   On the consul tat ions – the feedback.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.     

MR BALOYI:   So i t  was not  actual ly something that  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  was not  something hidden? 

MR BALOYI:   No i t  was not  hidden yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He was t ransparent  about  i t?  

MR BALOYI:   Yes,  yes,  yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   I t  was not  – there was no secrets around i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – but  – so he was making reports to the 

PMG Commit tee to say I  have been in touch wi th the 

Presidency they say that  the people who must act  are the 

fol lowing people? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you are sure about that? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes I  am sure.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay Mr Seleka.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Chai r  Mr Baloyi  has referred to that  in his  

aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   So Mr Baloyi  i f  Mr Ngubane says to  

the Chairperson wel l  the names for  act ing persons came 



07 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 278 
 

Page 96 of 185 
 

f rom Mr Tsots i  what would be your response to that? 

MR BALOYI:   Actual ly Chai rperson there were no – there 

were no – there were not  speci f ic people that  were properly 

assigned to do that .   Actual ly i t  is something that  I  wanted to  

see f rom the commit tee on how are they arr iv ing at  who 

should act ;  who should not  act .   Because i t  was a new board 

al together  and some of  us were start ing to know there was – 

those execut ives.   And some of  the people – two people who 

were coming f rom the o ld board.   So i t  is possible that  i t  was 

not  one person who was making those inqui r ies or  those 10 

names.  I t  is  possible – or  not  actual ly opposed to that  

because there were conf l ict ing feel ings around who should 

act  and who should not  act .   But  one thing for sure is  that  we 

did not  have the CV’s of  the people in f ront  of  us.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You did not  have the CV’s? 

MR BALOYI:   The CV’s of  the people.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You did not  have i t?  

MR BALOYI:   So that  we know who would be more sui tab le 

or wi l l  not  be more sui table.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR BALOYI:   We did not  [00:19:20] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR BALOYI:   The candidates that  should be act ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was there a memorandum or document  

that  had been – that  was placed before the members of  the 
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PMG Commit tee which sought to te l l  the members of  the 

PMG Commit tee about each one of  the people that  were 

being considered for act ing? 

MR BALOYI:   I  d id not  see that  memorandum.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   I  d id not  – no I  do not  remember seeing that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja wel l  I  am not  saying there was I  am just  

asking because you say there were no CV’s.  

MR BALOYI:   There was no formal process.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes there was no formal process.  10 

MR BALOYI:   Of  doing i t  – no there was no assessments of  

who – why so and so is sui table than the other.  There was no 

assessment.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Now going back to the quest ion of  

the names.  You say as I  understand you i t  is possible that  

there may have been more than one person phoning the 

Presidency or obtaining names, is that  r ight? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  wi th regard to  Doctor Ngubane do you 

remember that  there are some names that  he told the PMG 20 

Commit tee about as people that  were being endorsed by the 

Presidency for act ing or is that  something you do not  

remember? 

MR BALOYI:   Actual ly what I  remember are the three 

execut ives that  le f t  in December 2019 – no 2018 and those 
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were [00:21:09]  given the package.  I  th ink they were around 

ten people that  lef t  or eleven people – somewhere there 

were nine around December 2018.   And those execut ives are 

the ones that  I  ident i f ied to as being said that  they are not  

supposed to act  in the CE posi t ions.   I  th ink there are – of  

them that  I  remember that  these ones were out  we cannot 

consider these ones.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink I  am los ing you now.  

MR BALOYI:   So I  am … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay my quest ion was do you remember or  10 

do you not  remember whether Mr – Doctor  Ngubane at  any 

stage told the PMG Commit tee of  some of  the names of  

people that  he said were endorsed by the Presidency for 

act ing?  Is that  something you remember as having 

happened? Is that  someth ing you do not  remember as having 

happened? 

MR BALOYI:   He did ment ion them but  I  do not  remember 

them by thei r  names.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He did.  

MR BALOYI:   He did ment ion them 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   He did ment ion some.  

MR BALOYI:   He did raise them – yes he did release there 

was that  – sui table and those that  are not  sui table.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   I  remember more special  those who were not  
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sui tab le;  the ones that  I  said they are the ones that  lef t  – 

that  were given packages in December 2018.   So they are 

the ones that  I  am real ly sure that  he said that  these ones 

are not  the accepted or acceptable f rom the off ice.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Mr Baloy i  of  those who 

became appointed for instance one we know act ing appoints.  

One is Ms Nonkululeko Velet i  Dlamini .   Do you know whether  

Doctor Ngubane ment ioned her – her name? 

MR BALOYI:   I  do not  remember Chai r.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Do you remember one of  them is Mr 

Zethembe Khoza who acted in the posi t ion of  Mr Matona?  

Do you remember whether  h is name was ment ioned by 

Doctor Ngubane? 

MR BALOYI:   I  th ink his name came at  the end when we 

could not  al l  see the sui table ones.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   When you could not  what? 

MR BALOYI:   When we could not  actual ly f ind the ones that  

were pre-approved.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see.    20 

MR BALOYI:   Because I  know that  he did act  immediately  

af ter them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes then you wi l l  help who else acted?  

Mr Edwin Mabelane? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Would you be able to remember the 
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names? 

MR BALOYI:   No I  wi l l  not  remember the names of  those that  

acted in al l  others but  I  just  know the FD one and the CE – 

Group CE.  Evident ly the Group CE’s are the ones that  I  am 

a hundred percent  sure that  I  know.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Are the ones that  you are a hundred 

percent  sure? 

MR BALOYI:   That  I  know ja.   The others I  am not  sure 

hundred percent .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Do you recal l  Mr Linnel l?  10 

MR BALOYI:   Yes I  remember him.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l  let  me – I  am reminded of  th is  

before I  go to  Mr Linnel l .   Mr Tsotsi  on the other hand in 

regard to the act ing appointments he says:  

“ I  stepped out  of  – there was a break or he 

went out  for lunch or for tea whatever – when 

he came back the PMG was in session.  The 

people in Governance Commit tee was in 

session in the meet ing and he saw for the 

f i rst  t ime upon arr ival  into that  meet ing that  20 

the PMG had  decided on who is going to be 

in the act ing posi t ions.   And he was asking 

but  you are new board members how do you 

know these people?”  

Do you have any recol lect ion of  that? 
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MR BALOYI:   Yes I  have got  the recol lect ion of  that .   

Because i t  is the same quest ion that  I  ra ised as wel l  that  I  

said ear l ier that  you are new except  that  those two people 

who were f rom the previous board including the Chairperson.  

He did raise that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   He d id.    

MR BALOYI:   Hm.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And what  response did he get  and f rom 

whom? 

MR BALOYI:   I  do not  remember the response but  the 10 

quest ion was raised.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He said that  when he test i f ied he said he 

was to ld that  the names had been provided.   Now I  cannot 

remember whether he said he was told the names have been 

provided by the Minister or by the Presidency.   But  he said 

somebody sa id the names had been provided or approved.   

Do you remember anybody that  may have said something 

along those l ines in response to him?  Or is that  something 

you cannot remember? 

MR BALOYI:   I  cannot say wi th conf idence because the only 20 

person I  knew who was in contact  wi th thei r  off ices was 

Doctor Ngubane.  He is the only person I  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So we are one minute away f rom lunch 

t ime.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i t  looks l ike we wi l l  have to cont inue 

wi th him af ter two.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja what I  wi l l  do I  wi l l  t ry… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink you just  ment ioned the – Mr Linnel l  

so he might  have something to say about Mr Linnel l  so – but  

we can – but  maybe we should see whether i f  we take thi r ty 

minutes f rom two to hal f  past  two whether that  might  be 

enough or  not .   What is your sense of  how much more t ime 

we need with him? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Shoo I  am unable to est imate t ime now.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay a lr ight .   I  th ink that  is f ine.   Let  

us adjourn.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   For lunch we wi l l  come back at  two but  

dur ing the break I  th ink you can ref lect  on just  ident i fy ing the 

areas where there might  be controversy about what  

happened. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or areas where other wi tnesses have not  

been able to enl ighten me on.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then we can focus more on those 

areas.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   On that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  mean except  for the role of  Mr Linnel l  I  
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mean we have deal t  wi th the – except  for that  I  am not  sure 

other than his removal  what else we may be needing to look 

at  but  you might  be able to remember over lunch.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   I t  wi l l  be Mr Linnel l .   I t  wi l l  be the 

removal  of  Mr Tsotsi .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja the charging of  Mr Tsotsi  and his 

removal .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  th ink Mr Baloyi  should touch a l i t t le bi t  10 

on the exi t  negot iat ions wi th… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The execut ives.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And then the last  is his own removal .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  Ja.   No I  th ink we – we probably we 

should be able to  f in ish wi thin th i r ty  minutes af ter two.   Okay 

al r ight .   We are going to take the lunch adjournment  we wi l l  

resume at  two.   We adjourn.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.  20 

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES: 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay let  us cont inue.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chairperson.   Mr Baloyi ,  you 
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are st i l l  under oath.  

MR BALOYI :    Thank you.   Thank you,  s i r.  

NORMAN BALOYI :   (s.u.o.)  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Just  raise your voice,  please.  

MR BALOYI :    Thank you,  si r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    No,  the voice.  [ laughing]  

MR BALOYI :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you.   Mr Baloyi ,  hopeful ly we can 

go faster.   I  had asked you before the adjournment about Mr 

Nick Linnel l  and. . .  wel l ,  I  ment ioned h is name and my 10 

quest ion is th is.   Do you recal l  Mr Nick Linnel l?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  do.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    We understand that  Mr Nick Linnel l  was 

present  in one of  the board meet ings on the 

11t h of  March 2015.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  Chair  I  recal l .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Do you recal l  that? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Can you recal l  what  was Mr Nick 

Linnel l ’s involvement in the board meet ing? 20 

MR BALOYI :    Ja,  he was int roduced as a consul tant  who 

was going to ass ist  us wi th cases of  the suspensions and 

also of  ident i fy ing appropriate Companies Act  and can assist  

wi th inqui ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you.   And did. . .  what was the 
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board’s at t i tude towards the int roduct ion of  Mr Linnel l?  

MR BALOYI :    He was welcomed.  There was no resistance 

towards his engagement and. . .  yes,  in short .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  he was welcomed.  There was no 

res istance to his engagement? 

MR BALOYI :    H’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Was there any explanat ion provided as to  

where he was f rom and how he came to be presented to the 

board as somebody who could assis t? 10 

MR BALOYI :    Actual ly,  i t  was ment ioned on the meet ing of  

the 9 t h but  the name was not  ment ioned because in that  

presentat ion by the board chai rperson on the Monday,  he 

said that  there is  a consul tant  that  has been ident i f ied f rom 

the meet ing that  he had the day before.    

 So this person can assist  us in many ways and said can 

ident i fy. . .  he ment ioned this involvement but  not  his name.  

And then the name came on the Wednesday,  on the 11t h.   

Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Did he say where the consul tant  came 20 

f rom or how he came to be in  touch wi th th is consul tant ,  

e i ther on the 9 t h or on the 11t h? 

MR BALOYI :    No,  i t  was not  ment ioned actual ly.   Only the 

issue of  that  they have ident i f ied and he is going to  assist  

us.   But  the issue of  his fu l l  background was not  g iven or  
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where they met,  were not  g iven.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Was i t  said that  he had been 

recommended by anybody? 

MR BALOYI :    I t  was not  ment ioned.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was not  ment ioned? 

MR BALOYI :    Except  to say that  he was wi th the president  

on. . .  that  was on the meet ing of  the 9 t h that  he was wi th the 

president .   And then he ident i f ied someone who can assist  

us.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  10 

MR BALOYI :    From the president ’s s ide.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR BALOYI :    H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Cont inue Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chai rperson.   Did. . .  we 

understand f rom the evidence al ready presented Mr Baloy i  

that  Mr Linnel l  had by that  t ime al ready prepared a 

memorandum and a draf t  proposal  for  the board.   Were you 

aware of  that? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  actual ly we. . .  the only th ing that  we were 20 

quest ioned on the 9t h was the presentat ion that  was g iven to  

us wi thout  the not ice.   But  on the 11t h,  what was already 

made avai lable was the issue of  the suspension let ters.   The 

issue of  the memo is something else which actual ly  did not  

come to my at tent ion i f  I  remember.   
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Who draf ted. . .  who had draf ted the 

suspension let ters? 

MR BALOYI :    They were done by Mr Linnel l .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Mr Linnel l?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And the board accepted that  the let ters 

as draf ted by Mr L innel l?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  we d id accept  them because we used 

them ul t imately and they were served to the execut ives.   And 

most of  the content  was the same content  f rom one let ter to 10 

the other.   So i t  was mainly copied and pasted in  most  of  the 

let ters.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    H ’m.  We understand f rom the evidence 

and those who gave who test i f ied before the Commission,  

that  the board agreed that  there wi l l  be no al legat ions of  

wrongdoing against  the execut ives or al legat ions of  

misconduct .  

MR BALOYI :    I  d id not  get  that  properly.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  the board agreed that  there wi l l  be 

no al legat ions of  misconduct  or  wrongdoing against  the 20 

execut ives to be suspended.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  there was.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So can you recal l  what  then ul t imately  

caused the board to suspend these execut ives? 

MR BALOYI :    The reason that  prevai led was to say that  the 
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invest igat ion should take this wi thout  any interference(?) 

wi thout  any. . .  they used the word unf i t ted.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    They used the word. . .?  

MR BALOYI :    Unf i t ted.   So i t  was just  to al low the inquiry  to  

go on wi thout  any disturbance by an execut ive who was 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l ,  was there any evidence that  the 

execut ives to be suspended would interfere wi th the inqui ry  

or the invest igat ion? 

MR BALOYI :    There was no evidence that  they were going 10 

to temper wi th the inqui ry because we did argue around that .   

And I  a lso argued on the issue of  the laptops that  we do not  

need to take thei r  laptops.    

 We can image thei r  laptops.   And with. . .  we have got  

informat ion,  they can go then,  the informat ion that  they 

have.    

 So i t  was not  the issue of  thei r  presence was going to  be 

invaded because al l  informat ion that  is digi ta l ly,  i t  could be 

avai lab le i f  needed(?) f rom the imaging of  those laptops.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Just  remember to raise your  voice.  20 

MR BALOYI :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So you were saying to  the Chai rperson,  

one,  the reasons for the suspensions to in. . .  which is 

al legedly to interfere wi th the inqui ry,  you argued about that .  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  d id.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    So you personal ly raised that  wi th the 

board.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  d id.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    As what?  As not  a good reason? 

MR BALOYI :    Actual ly,  I  ra ised the issue of  thei r  removal 

f rom off ice,  not  to  be a good idea.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    You said the idea to remove them is not  

good? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes . . . [ indist inct ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Did you remain opposed to their  10 

suspension r ight  up to the end? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  d id.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chair.   And then,  in regard to 

the Tools of  Trade.   The laptops you ment ioned,  what did you 

say about that  again?  I f  you could repeat  for the 

Chairperson.  

MR BALOYI :    Ja,  I  said that  we do not  need to take their  

laptops because the idea was that  they must  br ing thei r  

laptops the fol lowing day.    20 

 And is  sa id that  we do not  need to take the ir  laptops.   

We can image thei r  laptops.   And so we said that  we can 

have al l  the informat ion even i f  they can go and tamper wi th  

that  one,  i t  wi l l  not  matter because we have got  the or ig inal  

one.    
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ADV SELEKA SC :    And what was the react ion f rom the 

board on the laptops? 

MR BALOYI :    I t  was also rejected and I  th ink they brought 

back thei r  laptops.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Do you know which member of  the board 

in part icular rejected your proposal? 

MR BALOYI :    I t  was not  accepted.   I  wi l l  not  say that  there 

was a speci f ic person who rejected i t .   The idea was not  

accepted.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  see.   I  may come to that  later on but  let  10 

me ask you this.   So the execut ives then gets suspended 

and we understand f rom thei r  evidence before this 

Commission that  they wrote let ters to the chai rperson,  at  

least ,  of  the board.    

 Two of  the execut ives wri te  let ters and they make 

enqui r ies about  the terms of  reference,  the unfai rness or 

otherwise of  their  suspensions,  and they offered to assist  the 

board in the inquiry.    

 Were you aware of  those let ters wri t ten by the 

execut ives? 20 

MR BALOYI :    No,  I  was not  made aware.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Were you aware that  Mr Matona had 

taken Eskom to the Labour Court  and then the CCMA? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  saw the proceedings over the internet  

or something in these l ines,  ja.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    And do you know what posi t ion the board 

took in regard to Mr Matona’s labour dispute? 

MR BALOYI :    What I  know is that  there was a set t lement 

af terwards,  actual ly,  wi th al l  three execut ives.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    A l l?  

MR BALOYI :    A l l  three execut ives.   There was a set t lement 

agreement af terwards.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    What about  the fourth wi th. . .?  

MR BALOYI :    I  th ink the fourth one went back af ter some 

months.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    That  is Mr Koko,  of  course? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now, Dr Ngubane and Ms Kle in test i f ied 

here and said that  the board wanted the suspended 

execut ives,  al l  of  them, back.    

 Or that  the board had no issues wi th them coming back 

but  that  the execut ives who concluded set t lement 

agreements,  did so because they are the ones who said they 

wanted to leave.    

 I t  was not  as i f  the board did not  want them back.   What  20 

did you know about what the board ’s posi t ion was or what 

the board ’s at t i tude was or what the at t i tude of  some 

members of  the board may have been? 

MR BALOYI :    Actual ly,  there was no bad re lat ionship 

between the execut ives and the board.   Actual ly,  I  th ink the 
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board caught the execut ives by surpr ise when they were 

suspended because there was no. . .  there was no bad blood 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was a new board.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.   And they were st i l l  t ry ing to get  to know 

each other.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  Yes.    

MR BALOYI :    So the decision(?) of  the board was not  bad 

towards them.  Ja and so everybody was caught by surpr ise 

as I  say.   But  the issue is that  even when we had the 10 

meet ing on the 9 t h,  we were al l  in  defence of  not  having the 

inquiry.   We st i l l  need to get  our facts ourselves.   We st i l l  

need to engage wi th the execut ives.   So . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    On the 11t h? 

MR BALOYI :    Ja,  i t  d id change completely.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  h’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR BALOYI :    But  the host i l i ty between the two groups,  

there was no host i l i ty.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  there was no host i l i ty between the 

board and . . . [ intervenes]   

MR BALOYI :    The execut ives.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . the execut ives.  

MR BALOYI :    H’m.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    But  Mr Matona gave evidence here and 

said he had been unhappy about  being suspended.  So 

unhappy was he that  he had brought an urgent  appl icat ion in 

the Labour Court  to chal lenge his suspension.    

 And that  his mat ter ended up at  the CCMA and the 

representat ives of  the board asked for  a postponement of  the 

matter because they wanted to get  a mandate,  I  th ink,  they 

said f rom the shareholder,  the minister  as to how to resolve 

the matter.    

 But  that  when Mr Matona met wi th the representat ives of  10 

the board,  who I  th ink he said included Mr Romeo Khumalo.   

I  th ink he said i t  included Dr Ngubane i f  I  am not  mistaken 

as wel l .   I  do not  know i f  Ms Klein was there as wel l .   I  am 

not  sure.    

 But  he said that  one of  the representat ives of  the board,  

I  th ink he said i t  was Mr Khumalo,  to ld him in very clear 

terms when he ta lked about going back to his job that  that  

was off  the table,  namely going back to his job at  Eskom.   

 And that  they could talk about  a separat ion package, I  

th ink.   But  ta lk ing about Mr Matona going back to his job was 20 

off  the table.   That  is what Mr Matona to ld me when he gave 

evidence here.    

 And yesterday,  one of  the execut ives,  Mr Marokane said 

that  he wrote let ters to,  af ter being suspended, he wrote 

let ters to the Chairperson,  Mr Tsotsi  and I  th ink a lso maybe 
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to Dr Ngubane later on.   I  am not  sure.    

 But  he wrote le t ters to t ry and get  c lar i f icat ion on 

matters and his  let ters were ignored.   And af ter some t ime, 

he fel t  he was not  wanted by the board anymore,  the way 

they were handl ing th is th ing.    

 And he,  therefore,  reached out  to Dr Ngubane and said 

maybe we should talk about  a separat ion.   But  he says that 

was because he fel t  unwanted.    

 He had wanted to  go back but  he thought that  the board 

did not  t rust  him anymore,  he was unwanted.   That  is why he 10 

said,  let  us talk a separat ion package.   

 And Ms Molefe gave evidence here also,  yesterday.   And 

she said she wanted to go back but  Mr Romeo Khumalo said 

to her that  they should talk about  a separat ion package.   

 So she said that  the idea of  a separat ion package came 

from Mr Romeo Khumalo,  a member of  the board.   And she,  

at  some stage,  threatened to take Eskom to court .   

  And Mr Khumalo said:   Wel l ,  you do not  want to sue the 

state or take on the state or something l ike that .   And 

ul t imately,  she decided:   Okay we can talk set t lement .    20 

 Have you got  something to say wi th regards to th is  

evidence f rom these execut ives? 

MR BALOYI :    Ja,  I  honest ly could not  because I  was not  in 

the picture by then.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  do not  speculate.  
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MR BALOYI :    No,  I  am just  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  just  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR BALOYI :    I  do not  have any and I  do not  have 

informat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  te l l  me whether you ever heard about 

these things that  were said to have been said by members of  

the board who interacted wi th the execut ives.   And whether 

you think that  i f  they said the things that  the execut ives say 

they said whether  that  ref lected. . .  they ref lected the board’s 

at t i tude or not  as far as you know.. .  you knew.  10 

MR BALOYI :    Ja,  my understanding is that  the way that  the 

execut ives were t reated because there was a long delay in  

communicat ing wi th them.  I t  could suggest  that  there was a 

changing of  at t i tudes towards them.    

 L ike,  you said that  one of  them said they are st i l l  wai t ing 

for the mandate or whatever.   So I  th ink that  mandate could 

have been the one that  changed thei r  at t i tudes.    

 As I  have wi tnessed the changing of  the at t i tudes f rom 

the meet ing of  the 9 t h to the 11t h.   I t  was a di fferent  set  of  

people actual ly because . . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    What had met  on the 9t h at  the board 

meet ing.  

MR BALOYI :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the board that  have met on the 11t h.  

MR BALOYI :    Ja . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was l ike i t  was a di fferent  board? 

MR BALOYI :    Ja,  but  s imply put .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR BALOYI :    H’m.  So I  th ink that  could have been 

inf luenced by the interact ion they had wi th the other off ices.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR BALOYI :    H’m.  But  in general ,  when we spoke af ter the 

suspensions,  al l  board members agreed that  they were that  

way,  i t  was done the suspensions,  i t  is now how you suspend 

execut ives.    10 

 Ja,  because the image was created out  of  nowhere and 

there was no t ime to ref lect  where we are doing the r ight  

th ing or not .   Everything just  came at  a bi t  of  l ight .   Ja.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.   Did the board not  ref lect  on the 

quest ion of  why they should pay the kinds of  amounts that  

they paid to  these three execut ives in terms of  their  

separat ion agreements,  set t lement  agreements? 

MR BALOYI :    I  am not  sure how they negot iated that  

because I  was not  in the picture by then.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  have you lef t  by then? 20 

MR BALOYI :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   No,  that  is f ine.   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Mr Baloyi ,  in  regard 

to the laptops.   I . . .  you say you had indicated that  i t  was not  

necessary to take away the laptops.    
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 May I  f ind out  f rom you whether you were aware of  these 

emai ls exchanged, that  I  wi l l  refer you to in the same bundle 

that  you have.    

 Chairperson,  the same Eskom Bundle 10.   But  now I  

refer to emai ls in Exhibi t  U15.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  would you not  just  te l l  me the page 

number i f  i t  is the same bundle? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  wi l l  do so.   Certainly,  Chairperson.   

These are . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Because I  have not  admit ted any Exhibi t  10 

U15 as far as I  remember.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  that  wi l l  be. . .  the exhibi t  re lat ing to 

Mr Marokane. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Can you tel l  me the page number? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    The page number is 193.   There are a 

couple of  pages.   Let  me give them to you,  Chai rperson.   

From 188.  

CHAIRPERSON :    From one, eight . . .?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    188.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I f  Mr Baloyi  could be assisted quickly.   

Mr Baloyi ,  these are the annexures.   As you go there to  Mr 

Anton Nienaar ’s aff idavi t  to th is Commission.    
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MR BALOYI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    To his aff idavi t ,  he has at tached the 

fol lowing emai ls exchanged between him,  Ms Venete Klein,  

Ms Elsie Phule.   

 You wi l l  see f rom the emai ls there on page 188,  there is  

an emai l  f rom Ms Vente Klein,  Saturday,  March. . .  14 March 

2015 at  09:28 a.m. to  Ms Elsie Phule.   Urgent  Feedback 

Please,  is the subject  l ine.   And emai l  reads:  

“Hi ,  Elsie.   I  see f rom the col lect ions f rom the cards,  

laptops,  et  cetera that  we did not  col lect  f rom the 10 

CE.  What was the reason for that?”  

 And the emai l  immediately above that  on 18 March 2015 

at  09:11,  Ms Elsie  Phule wr i tes:  

“Anton,  as discussed,  please conf i rm whether the 

laptop has been col lected f rom CE.”  

 Do you see that? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  do.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Then there is an emai l  at  the top of  the 

page f rom Ms Venete Klein,  18 March 2015 at  15:31 p.m. to  

Ms E lsie Phule,  cc’d Anton Nienaar,  Venete Klein and Shaun 20 

Mari tz.   Again,  the subject  l ine:   Urgent  Feedback Please.  

“Anton,  given the signi f icance of  th is matter,  I  would 

l ike your conf i rmat ion asap.   Regards.”  

 And that  was sent  f rom an iPhone.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Were you aware of  th is communicat ion? 

MR BALOYI :    No,  I  was not  aware.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Was this communicat ion reported to the 

board? 

MR BALOYI :    I  do not  remember at  al l .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you.   So you then ment ioned to 

the Chairperson that  four. . .  three of  the four execut ives 

concluded separat ion agreements wi th Eskom and one of  

them returned.    

 Do you know the reasons why the one who returned,  10 

being Mr Koko,  was accepted back f rom suspension? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  actual ly f rom the. . .  af ter the 

suspensions,  actual ly,  i t  came to my at tent ion that  the issue 

of  the suspensions were somehow ini t iated(?) by Mr Koko.    

 And also hearing the evidence that  I  have heard so far,  

more special ly about  the meet ings of  the 10t h,  I  happened to 

bel ieve that  i t  could be t rue that  everything that  was 

in i t iated,  i t  was p lanned and i t  was and i t  was a project  to 

exi t .    

 So that  is my impression of  i t .   Because I  doubt  i f ,  when 20 

the other ones were approached or they were approached,  

whether the same approached was done to him.  I  doubt  i t .    

 Unless,  i f  there could be some evidence that  an 

interact ion that  were done between the other execut ives,  

were also done to him.  I t  is someth ing that  maybe can make 
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us bel ieve otherwise.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l ,  Ms Daniels has provided evidence 

to this Commission.   She says she was present  in al l  of  the 

meet ings where the delegat ion f rom the board negot iated 

wi th the four suspended execut ives.    

 She says in her  aff idavi t  and before this Commission 

that :  

“Negot iat ions wi th Mr Koko were complete ly  

di fferent  f rom those of  the other three execut ives.”  

MR BALOYI :    I  can bel ieve that .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    But  was the board given the reasons 

why Mr Koko was accepted back? 

MR BALOYI :    I  was not  in the picture by then.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    You were not  in the picture by then? 

MR BALOYI :    H’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you.   Were you st i l l  at  Eskom 

when the board decided to br ing charges against  Mr Tsotsi? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  was.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Can you recal l  what  those charges 

were? 20 

MR BALOYI :    The charges were him using or ut i l is ing the 

serv ices of  Mr Nick Linnel l  as a consul tant  wi thout  the 

necessary approval  by the board.   And also for leaking the 

document,  ac tua l l y  there  was a  leaked document  about  

th ings tha t  had to  un fo ld .   That  par t i cu la r  leakage,  where  
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he  is  ta lk ing  about  th ings tha t  the  board  d id  no t  ag ree,  the  

proposa ls  tha t  he  has done he wro te  the  as  i f  the  board  

has agreed to  those proposa ls .   So those were  the  main  

charges aga ins t  h im.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Le t  me qu ick l y  go  to  the  

re ference bund le  because i t  m igh t  he lp  us  exped i te  th is  

aspect .   The re ference bund le  –  they w i l l  ass i s t  you w i th  

the  re ference bund le ,  Mr  Ba loy i .   Cha i rperson,  page 226 in  

the  re ference bund le .   Page 226,  Mr  Ba loy i ,  those – are  

you on tha t  page? 10 

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  page conta ins  the  m inutes  o f  

Eskom board  in -commi t tee  meet ing  o f  30  March 2015 a t  

20h00.   P resent ,  I  see  tha t  you were  there ,  Mr  N T Ba loy i .   

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The purpose o f  the  meet ing  appears  on  

the  next  page,  page 227,  paragraph 7 .   Paragraph  7 ,  page 

227.   A re  you the re ,  Mr  Ba loy i?  

MR BALOYI :    I  am in  227 but  there  is  no  paragraph  7 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  concent ra te  on  …[ in te rvenes]  20 

MR BALOYI :    I  have got  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You mean i tem 7?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I tem 7 ,  yes .   Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mat te rs  fo r  approva l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Indeed.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    7 .1 :  

“P roposa l  to  remove the  Cha i rman  o f  the  Board . ”  

Page 227,  b lack  numbers  on  the  l e f t  hand co rne r .   I t  i s  on  

the  r igh t ,  the  re levant  page is  on  your  r igh t ,  no t  your  le f t .   

Have you got  page 227?  Look a t  the  b lack  numbers  a t  the 

top .   Have you go t  page 227?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  am in  227.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  go  down –  can you see the  

numbers  1 ,  2 ,  3 ,  4  up  to  7 .1  on  the  marg in?  

MR BALOYI :    There  is  no  number ing .   I  cannot  see the  10 

numbers .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Has he been g i ven the  r igh t  bund le?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  he  had gone two more  pages  

fu r the r.  

MR BALOYI :    Okay,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I tem 7 ,  do  you  see tha t ,  Mr  Ba loy i?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    “P roposa l  to  remove the  Cha i rman o f   

the  Board .   A t  th is  po in t  Mr  Tsots i  jo ined the  

meet ing  in  h is  capac i ty  as  a  d i rec tor . ”  20 

Do you see tha t?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I f  you  tu rn  the  page.   There  are  

charges there  ident i f ied  as  Charge  1 .   Can you see  a t  the 

top  o f  the  page?  
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MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes and then Charge 2 ,  towards the  

end o f  the  page.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  see.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Charge 3 ,  3 .1 .   Next  page,  charge 4  

towards the  end o f  the  page.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Charge 5 ,  r igh t  a t  the  end o f  the  page.   

MR BALOYI :    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And those were  the  charges brought  10 

aga ins t  Mr  Tsots i .   

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And main ly,  as  you say,  the  f i rs t  two 

charges is  fo r  h im us ing  Mr  L inne l l ,  tha t  he  procured the  

serv i ces  o f  an  ex te rna l  consu l t an t  Mr  N ick  L inne l l  to  

p rov ide  consu l t ing  serv ices  to  the  company  w i thout  

fo l low ing the  company ’s  p rescr ibed  procurement  p rocesses 

or  in fo rm ing the  board  o f  h is  ac t ions.   

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    What  i s  your  comment  on  tha t  charge,  20 

Mr  Ba loy i?   

MR BALOYI :    Ac tua l l y  I  d id  quest ion  th is  in  a  number  of  

emai ls  tha t  I  wro te  to  the  board  be fore  we charged h im 

because there  was no –  i t  was a  cont rary  ev idence  

regard ing  th is  because when the  idea was conce ived or  
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was presented on  the  9 t h ,  there  was no d isapprova l  a round 

tha t  because N ick  L inne l l  the  consu l tan t  who was brought  

in  on  the  9 t h ,  no  one ob jec ted  to  tha t ,  they  on ly  ob jec ted  to  

the  procurement  p rocesses tha t  were  to  be  used as  a  way 

o f  speed ing  up the  process and not  fo l lowed the  normal  

p rocess in  te rms  o f  appo in t ing  se rv ice  p rov iders  and then  

we a l so  accepted Mr  L inne l l  on  the  11 t h  so  the  board  

members  were  supposed to  have d isagreed on the  

engagement  o f  Mr  L inne l l  on  tha t  f i rs t  day.   No ,  on  tha t  

f i rs t  day o r  the  second day tha t  we met  bu t  no th ing  was 10 

opposed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i rperson ,  qu ick l y  w i th  Mr  Ba loy i .   

In  your  bund le ,  Mr  Ba loy i ,  you have prov ided the  

Commiss ion  w i th  var ious emai ls .   I  want  to  re fe r  you in  

par t i cu la r  to  page 364.   I  cou ld  in  fac t  jus t  read the  emai ls  

to  you because those are  your  ema i ls ,  jus t  to  save t ime.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    For  the  record  I  w i l l  ment ion  the  page 

numbers .   364 there  is  an  emai l  f rom you on 23  March  

2015 a t  18 .47 ,  Norman Ba loy i ,  and you wr i te :  20 

“P lease note  tha t  no t  everyone was in  the  board  

meet ing  a f te r  N ick  had a l ready p resented and the  

proposa l ,  as  fa r  as  I  remember,  was not  re jec ted  by  

anyone and th is  needs ve r i f y ing ,  the  aud io .   I  have  

asked the  company sec re tary  to  do  such 
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ver i f i ca t ion .   I  am say ing  th is  to  ensure  tha t  the  

board  is  we l l -covered a t  a l l  ang les .   There  is  

no th ing  persona l  o r  b lame game.   I t  i s  to  make sure  

tha t  we are  no t  found want ing  because these types  

a lways end up in  cour t  and t ranscr ip t s  may be  

requested hence  we a lso  need to  be  caut ious and 

prove due d i l igence.   Thanks. ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  see tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Who are  you wr i t ing  to  there ,  Mr  10 

Ba loy i?  

MR BALOYI :    I  am wr i t ing  to  the  board  members .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You tu rn  the  page –  oh ,  ra the r,  page 

back to  P363.  

MR BALOYI :    H ’m.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    There  is  an  emai l  a t  the  bo t tom o f  the 

page,  f rom you,  I  be l ieve ,  Ntba loy i@hotmai l . com.   I s  that  

cor rec t?   

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  see.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You wr i te  to  Markp@bl ts .co .za .   Can 20 

you te l l  the  Cha i rperson who is  tha t?  

MR BALOYI :    Th is  was the . . .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Who is  MarkP? 

MR BALOYI :    I t  i s  the  lawyer  tha t  was asked to  ass is t  us  

w i th  the  process.  

mailto:Ntbaloyi@hotmail.com
mailto:Markp@blts.co.za
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ADV SELEKA SC:    MarkP?  

MR BALOYI :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Are you ce r ta in  tha t  i s  MarkP?  I t  i s  

no t  Mr  Mark  Pamensky?  H ’m?  Or  where  a re  you?  No,  a t  

the  bo t tom o f  the  page.   Sor ry,  Mr  Ba loy i .  

MR BALOYI :    Oh ,  okay.   Ja ,  he  is  the  board  member ,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And then you cc ’d  

Na idooverushn i@gmai l . com,  

venetek le in inc . co .za ,  

Ba l tman.ngubane@gmai l . com,  10 

Khozazw@eskom,  

romeokumalo@vodacom,  

Chway i tam@yahoo,  

Nas ias .c@vodamai l  and Patna idoo.co .za .   So you sa id  

those are  the  board  members?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  th ink  were  a l l  covered,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And he sub jec t  l ine  i s :  

“Backup o f  no t ice  meet ing ,  remova l  o f  d i rec tor (2) ”  

I t  i s  an  emai l  a lso  o f  23  March 2015 a t  26 .20 :  

“True,  the  hones t  th ing  is  tha t  needs presenta t ion  20 

was we l l - rece ived and there  was  every  reason to  

endorse  h im.   I  w ish  th is  pa r t  i s  no t  recorded.   Even 

i t  i s  reco rded the  board  can a lways resc ind  in  

p roper  dec i s ions  bu t  most  o f  a l l  we need to  ask  a  

labour  spec ia l i s t  i f  we can add because my l i t t le  
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labour  knowledge is  tha t  you can a lways add a  

charge/a l legat ion  as  long as  there  i s  s t i l l  a  

re la t ionsh ip  be fore  the  f ina l  dec i s ion  i s  made .   

Thanks. ”  

You spec i f i ca l l y  a re  say ing  there  tha t  Mr  N ick  L inne l l ’s  

p resenta t ion  was  we l l  rece ived.   Te l l  the  Cha i rperson what  

a re  you d iscuss ing  here  w i th  the  board  members  or  as  the  

board  members ,  Mr  Ba loy i?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes ac tua l l y  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you say te l l  me,  Cha i rperson?  I  10 

th ink  you sa id  te l l  me,  Cha i rpe rson .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  te l l  the  Cha i rperson.  

MR BALOYI :    Thank you.   Thank you,  Advocate .   Yes,  

ac tua l l y  here  we were  somehow debat ing  the  charges,  tha t  

th is  charge does not  ho ld  any water  because we agreed to  

engagement  o f  N ick  and we are  –  I  mean,  he  made a  good  

presenta t ion  and  we a l l  rece i ved i t  and we a lso  made use 

o f  h is  documents  so  …[ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Whose –  sor ry,  Mr  Ba loy i ,  whose v iew 

was i t  tha t  the  charges do not  ho ld  any water?  20 

MR BALOYI :    I  cannot  te l l  exact ly  because what  happened  

is  tha t  there  were  peop le  who  were  l ia i s ing  w i th  the  

company lawyers  tha t  we appo in ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you unders tand my quest ion? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Who he ld  t he  v iew tha t  the  charges 

tha t  seems to  be  fo rmula ted  he re  do  not  ho ld  any wa ter?   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  he  was  re fer r i ng  to  a  par t i cu la r  

charge.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  ac tua l l y  each o f  the  par t i cu la r  –  I  

cannot  say  tha t  so  and so  came wi th  th is  pa r t i cu la r  charge 

because what  I  was t r y ing  to  say i s  tha t  there  were  peop le  

who were  ass igned more  espec ia l l y  f rom the  Peop le  in  

Governance who  were  ass igned to  l ia ise  w i th  the  lawyers  

tha t  we appo in ted  to  ass is t  us  w i th  th is  p rocess.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   No,  we unders tand tha t .   Le t  me 

ask you the  quest ion  d i f fe ren t ly.   What  was your  v iew in  

regard  –  what  i s  the  v iew you are  exp ress ing  in  these 

emai ls?  

MR BALOYI :    The v iew I  am express ing  is  tha t  the  

charges tha t  we  are  pu t t ing  fo r th  a re  f i c t i t ious  charges,  

they are  no t  rea l ,  they  are  no t  tang ib le  o r  we cannot  back  

them wi th  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you say ing  tha t  in  regard  to  a l l  the 

charges tha t  were  pre fer red  aga ins t  Mr  Tsots i  o r  a re  you 20 

re fer r i ng  to  on l y  some? 

MR BALOYI :    Ac tua l l y ,  most  o f  the  charges,  i f  I  can  say,  

because some o f  them were  coming f rom the  o ther  ones as  

a  way o f  in fe rences.   So but  the  main  charge was  – were  

those two charges tha t  I  spoke about ,  about  the  consu l tan t  
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commencing  the  work  w i thout  au thor i sa t ion ,  commiss ioned  

the  med ia  s ta tement ,  you know,  so  –  because even in  the 

o ther  ones there  was the  commiss ion  o f  the  med ia  

s ta tement .  

 Ac tua l l y ,  in  one o f  the  –  in  tha t  par t i cu la r  med ia  

s ta tement ,  there  was ev idence tha t  tha t  par t i cu la r  p roposa l  

was leaked f rom the  depar tment  no t  f rom the  Eskom s ide  

so  –  and then i t  was about  what  we are  go ing  to  be  do ing  

in  the  next  few days or  months  in  re la t ion  to  th is  and i t  was 

more  o f  a  p roposa l  tha t  the  Cha i rperson was speak ing  10 

endorsement  o r  amendment  f rom the  board .    

So i t  happened to  be  leaked and  tha t  leakage,  we  

cou ld  no t  p rove tha t  he  was the  one who leaked i t  to  the 

med ia  and i t  was  on ly  in  one media  house,  i t  was not  in  a l l  

ma jor  med ia  houses,  to  show tha t  he  was not  the  one who  

was respons ib le  o f  lead ing  i t .    

So  hence I  sa id  tha t  these two were  ac tua l l y  

somehow formula ted  in  o rder  to  fo rm a  bas is  to  remove  

h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  tha t  w i l l  be  charge 3  wh ich  says:  20 

“The d i rec tor  au thor i sed the  commiss ion  o f  a  med ia  

s ta tement  in  re la t ion  to  the  inqu i ry  in to  the  a f fa i rs  

o f  the  company. ”  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Charge …[ in te rvenes]  
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 CHAIRPERSON:    That  med ia  s ta tement ,  had i t  no t  been 

dra f ted  in  e i ther  the  board  meet ing  or  in  the  meet ing  o f  the  

PNT commi t tee  and had members  o f  the  board  no t  made  

the i r  own cont r ibu t ions to  th is  med ia  s ta tement  as  fa r  as  

you remember?  

MR BALOYI :    No ,  ac tua l l y  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was i t  no t  p repared by  Mr  L inne l l ,  N ick  

L inne l l  and the  members  o f  the  –  e i ther  the  board  or  the  

commi t tee  were  mak ing  cont r i bu t ions as  to  what  shou ld  go  

in to  the  s ta tement  o r  no t  o r  was tha t  a  d i f fe ren t  s ta tement?  10 

MR BALOYI :    No,  ac tua l l y  i t  was  not  the  med ia  s ta tement  

per  se  bu t  i t  was a  proposa l  document .   I  do  no t  who,  

whethe r  i t  was p repared by  Mr  L inne l l  o r  i t  was proposed  

by  the  Cha i rperson but  th is  med ia  s ta tement  –  no ,  tha t  

par t i cu la r  p roposa l ,  i t  went  to  a l l  board  members  about  how 

are  go ing  to  unbund le  the  p rocesses o f  inqu i ry  and so  on .    

 So i t  as  supposed to  be  d i scussed  by  the  board  and  

approved by  the  board  or  fo r  the  board  to  amend tha t  i s  

why we can use i t  in  unbund l ing  the  process bu t  the  issue  

o f  the  leakage because the  a l legat ion  here  was tha t  he  is  20 

the  one who commiss ioned tha t  re lease o f  tha t  document ,  

someth ing  tha t  we cou ld  no t  even prove.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Ba loy i ,  I  th ink  Mr  Tsots i ’s  response  

to  the  board  is  captured on page 229 and he exp la ins  

someth ing  a long  the  l ines  o f  what  you are  say ing  the  
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s ta tement  go t  in to  the  pub l i c  domain  w i thout  h im be ing  

aware  o f  tha t  bu t  he  w i l l  dea l  w i th  i t  when he comes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And to  the  ex ten t ,  Mr  Se leka,  to  the  

ex ten t  tha t  how –  what  happened w i th  regard  to  cer ta in  

charges appears  in  a  t ransc r ip t  o f  the  meet ing .   We might  

need to  go  over  the  who le  th ing  because one can read  

there  and see what  the  a t t i tude o f  the  members  o f  the 

board  was to  a  par t i cu la r  i ssue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  where  i t  i s  no t  covered then we need 10 

to  cover  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Mr  Ba loy i ,  the  issues are  se t  ou t  

in  de ta i l  there  in  tha t  m inute  o f  the  board  meet ing  wh ich  

you a t tended.   I t  may be covered  in  due course  in  more  

de ta i l  w i th  o the r  w i tnesses but  u l t imate ly  the  board  

dec ided to  leve l  these charges aga ins t  Mr  Tsots i .  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Were  you s t i l l  there  when the  board  

had a  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Tsots i  a t  wh ich  meet ing  

…[ in tervenes]  20 

MR BALOYI :   Yes,  I  was there .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    . . .as  we unders tand Dr  Ngubane and I  

th ink  another  board  member  were  asked to  separa te l y  

speak to  Mr  Tsots i  in  o rder  to  ge t  a  separa t ion  ag reement .  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  was there .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    And tha t  u l t imate ly  resu l ted  in  Mr  

Tsots i  tender ing  h is  res ignat ion .  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Can you remember  whose idea  i t  was 

tha t  Mr  Tsots i  shou ld  be  charged?   Who came up w i th  th is  

idea in  c i r cumstances where  i t  seems a  lo t  o f  th ings tha t  

he  was charged w i th  were  th ings tha t  the  board  seems to  

have had no ob jec t ion  to  be fo re .  

MR BALOYI :    I  do  no t  know exact ly  un less  i f  I  p repared 

…[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Cannot  remember .  

MR BALOYI :    I  needed to  be  prepared,  ja ,  i t  i s  a  quest ion  

I  needed to  have  prepared but  i f  I  can  f ind  the  answer  I  

can fo rward  the  answer  today.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i t  i s  jus t  tha t  i t  i s  someth ing  s t range.  

MR BALOYI :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  have never  heard  o f  a  board  o f  

d i rec tors  charg ing  the  Cha i rperson or  even anothe r  board 

member ,  I  have never  heard  o f  tha t ,  bu t  maybe i t  does 

happen but  i t  a l l  looks  ve ry  s t range and,  o f  cou rse ,  he  20 

gave ev idence here  -  Mr  Tsots i  -  tha t  about  two months  –  

about  s ix  weeks or  so  be fo re  he  had been ca l led  by  the  

Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr i ses  who  compla ined tha t  he  was  

–  she had rece ived compla in t s  tha t  Mr  Tsots i  was  

in te r fe r ing  in  opera t iona l  i ssues and she to ld  h im to  s top  
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tha t  o therw ise  she wou ld  f ind  somebody e lse  to  do  the  job  

tha t  Mr  Tsots i  was do ing  and he  says on  the  same day,  

wh ich  I  th ink  he  says was around  the  day o f  the  S ta te  o f  

the  Nat ion  Address in  2015,  ear ly  February ,  he  says on  the  

same day he rece ived a  ca l l  f rom Mr  Tony Gupta .   I  cannot  

remember  whether  i t  was jus t  a  ca l l  o r  whether  they  

ac tua l l y  met  bu t  he  says Mr  Tony Gupta  compla ined to  h im  

tha t  …[ in te rvenes ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  was a  meet ing ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  was a  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  i t  was meet ing ,  yes ,  thank you.   He 

compla ined to  h im tha t  Mr  Tsots i  was not  ass i s t ing  them 

and Mr  Tsots i  unders tood the  re ference to  them as a  

re ference to  the  Gupta  fami ly  and  tha t  Mr  Tsots i  sa id  Mr  

Tony Gupta  sa id  tha t  they were  the  ones who had put  h im  

in to  th is  pos i t ion  and they cou ld  take  h im out  o f  tha t  

pos i t ion .    

So about  s ix  weeks la te r  then the  board  seems to  –  

or  s ix  to  seven weeks,  e igh t  weeks,  the  board  seems to  20 

adopt  an  a t t i tude tha t  he  shou ld  be  charged,  he  shou ld  be  

removed but  some o f  the  –  a t  leas t  some o f  the  charges 

appear  qu i te  s t range when one looks a t  the  m inutes  or  the  

t ranscr ip t  o f  the  meet ings o f  the  11 t h .   So tha t  i s  why I  am 

in te res ted  in  knowing who came up w i th  the  idea,  bu t  you 
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say  you cannot  remember.  

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  bu t  i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  I  can ve r i f y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

MR BALOYI :    Ja  and I  can come back to  you today.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR BALOYI :    Because I  wou ld  no t  want  to  d rop a  person ’s  

name wi thout  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I f  you  do remember  j us t  

be  in  touch w i th  the  lega l  team and – ja .   Okay,  Mr  Se leka.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Ba loy i ,  your  10 

emai ls  t ra i l  m igh t  re f resh your  memory  bu t  you w i l l  have a  

look a t  tha t .  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You have men t ioned tha t  you were  no t  

a t  the  –  you owned the  p ic tu re  on  the  p ic tu re ,  can you te l l  

the  Cha i rpe rson  what  do  mean  by  you are  no t  on  the  

p ic tu re  when some o f  these quest ions were  asked? 

MR BALOYI :    Ja  because the  same th ing  tha t  was done to  

h im was done to  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Which  is?  20 

MR BALOYI :    Ja ,  tha t  ac tua l l y  I  quest ioned …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Pu t  on  your  m icrophone.   I t  jus t  went  

on  now.  

MR BALOYI :    No,  no ,  i s  tha t  I  d id  quest ion  cer ta in  

t ransact ions,  i t  was ac tua l l y  the  IT  tender  wh ich  I  was 
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expect ing  tha t  i t  w i l l  be  conc luded a t  a  cer ta in  per iod  

because my background i s  main ly  IT  so  –  and there  was  

jus t  a  board  tender  wh ich  I  th ink  i t  s ta r ted  a t  2  b i l l i on  and  

then i t  went  to  4  b i l l i on  a f te r  i t s  exp i ry  and tha t  was 

ex tended,  ex tended,  ex tended unt i l  i t  went  4  po in t  

someth ing  b i l l i on  and there  was a  process o f  ge t t ing  a  new 

serv i ce  prov ide r .  

So I  went  to  ca l l  the  Cha i rpe rson,  the  new 

Cha i rperson or  Act ing  Cha i rpe rson ,  wh ich  was Dr  Ngubane,  

to  enqu i re  i f  tha t  par t i cu la r  t ransac t ion  has been conc luded 10 

and h i s  response was very  –  because he was the  

Cha i rperson o f  the  Tender  Commi t tee  because I  d id  wr i te  

emai ls  to  the  IT  execut ives about  what  was happen ing .  

And I  a lso  d id  ask  Mr  Koko because IT was  

repor t ing  to  h im,  I  guess,  about  these issues o f  these  

ex tens ions o f  the  tender  and tha t  has been cont inu ing .    

 So –  and w i thou t  any –  w i thout  any feedback,  i t  

happened tha t  –  I  mean,  Dr  Ngubane was very  negat ive  

around g iv ing  me the  answer  whether  he  awarded or  no t  

awarded tha t  par t i cu la r  IT  tender .    20 

So and then I  ca l led  Mr  Koko around i t ,  so  –  to  ask  

whethe r  i t  was conc luded.    He sa id  yes,  i t  i s  conc luded by  

the  Tender  Commi t tee  some weeks  or  whatever  p r io r .   So I  

sa id  bu t  I  thought  tha t  i t  was go ing  to  a lso  come to  the  

board .   He sa id  no ,  i t  i s  w i th in  the  mandate  o f  the  Tender  
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Commi t tee  to  approve so  i t  i s  a l ready approved,  someth ing  

wh ich  Dr  Ngubane d id  no t  te l l  me and he was the  

Cha i rperson o f  i t .  

And then I  quest ioned –  I  mean,  tha t  the  au thor i t y  

fo r  tha t  par t i cu la r  tender  i t  was w i th in  the  execut ives ’  

mandate  au tho r i t y ,  so  why d id  i t  no t  conc lude  a t  the 

execut ives ’  au thor i t y  ins tead o f  go ing  to  dah,  dah,  dah  

and,  you know,  to  the  o ther  commi t tee  and there  was not  

response around tha t .  

And then my fee l i ng  tha t  I  wro te  to  the  board  is  tha t  10 

we need to  be  ca re fu l  because i t  looks  l i ke  we may  end up  

be ing  the  ones to  be  b lamed when we approve th ings tha t  

were  supposed to  be  approved by  the  execut ives  because 

th is  par t i cu la r  t ransact ion  is  w i th in  the  mandate  o f  the 

execut ives .   So where  they needed  to  have conc luded them 

themse lves.  

 So I  d id  quest ion  those type o f  th ings to  the  board .   

So and i t  a lso  happened tha t  dur ing  my conversa t ion  w i th  

Mr  Koko,  I  asked h im i f  he  is  no t  go ing  to  jo in  the  –  no ,  no ,  

I  d id  congra tu la te  h im about  the  cour t  case tha t  he  had 20 

then to  have won fo r  Eskom and  so  on  and then a lso  the  

issue o f  the  Labour  Cour t  o r  CCMA whethe r  he  is  go ing  to  

fo l low the  same road.   So –  and then he sa id  he  is  th ink ing  

around those l ines  bu t  he  w i l l  need some suggest ions or  i f  

I  know some good lawyers  and so  on ,  so  he  d id  make a  
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fo l low up around  i t ,  I  th ink  in  the  even ing ,  to  say tha t  I  

must  wr i te  to  h im and my p roposa l  o f  who I  th ink  he  shou ld  

cons ide r.  

 And ac tua l l y  when tha t  th ing  came to  h im the  

fo l low ing day he  wro te  to  the  Cha i rperson,  wro te  to  the  

Min is te r  to  say tha t  I  am confused  because I  am in  a  good 

s tand ing  w i th  the  Board ,  and I  go t  th is  adv ice  and  asked 

h im to  asked h im  to  pu t  i t  in  wr i t ing  so  tha t  you ’ l l  see  tha t  

i t  was the  communica t ion  be tween myse l f  and Mr  Ba loy i  

bu t  myse l f  I  don ’ t  want  to  f igh t  w i th  the  Board ,  I  want  10 

every th ing  to  come to  a  r igh t fu l  conc lus ion  and so  on .   So 

–  and then they  used tha t  aga ins t  me to  say tha t  I  am 

work ing  aga ins t  the  Board  and then they are  go ing  to  do  

the i r  p rocesses w i thout  my invo lvement  because  by  tha t  

t ime I  was in  P ie termar i t zburg  and then I  phoned them tha t  

I ’m  in  P ie termar i t zbu rg  I  have go t  the  to l l  ga te  s l ips  tha t  

can prove tha t  I ’m  not  a round can you wa i t  un t i l  I  come 

back.   So,  they d idn ’ t  want  to  so  every th ing  jus t  happened 

l i ke  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     So ,  you are  say ing  th is  was du r ing  Mr  20 

Koko ’s  suspens ion?  

MR BALOYI :     Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And he  wr i tes  a  le t te r,  a f te r  

communica t ion  w i th  you,  he  wr i tes  i t  to  the  Cha i rpe rson o f  

the  Board?  
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MR BALOYI :     Yes,  and a lso  to  the  Min is te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And a lso ,  the  Min is te r?  

MR BALOYI :     Hm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  tha t  the  le t te r  –  Cha i rperson jus t  by  

re ference conta ined on page 373.  

MR BALOYI :     Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And,  can you te l l  the  Cha i rperson,  in  a 

nu tshe l l ,  what  does he say to  the  Cha i rperson and the  

Min is te r  in  regard  to  you?  

MR BALOYI :     He says tha t  I  must  go  to  CCMA and tha t  10 

the  Board  w i l l  no t  p ropose tha t  submiss ion  to  CCMA and  

tha t  he  shou ld  no t  re ly  on  the  processes tha t  were  in i t ia ted  

by  the  Board .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    He shou ld  no t?  

MR BALOYI :     He shou ld  no t  re l y  on  i t  because i t  w i l l  take  

long.  So,  in  essence,  say ing  tha t  I  am encourag ing  h im to 

go  the  lega l  rou te ,  in  shor t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  were  you adv i s ing  h im as he  

a l leged in  the  le t te r?  

MR BALOYI :     I  d id  say to  h im tha t  he  can successfu l l y  20 

in te rd i c t  th is  because o f  the  way tha t  suspens ions done.   I t  

was in  –  no t  in  l ine  w i th  the  law because eve ry th ing  was an 

emergency o f  a  sor t ,  the  procedures were  no t  fo l lowed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  he  d idn ’ t  do  tha t ,  ins tead he wro te  

to  the  Board  –  I  mean to  the  Cha i rpe rson and the  Min is te r.  
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MR BALOYI :     Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Compla in ing  about  you.  

MR BALOYI :     Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And as  a  resu l t  o f  th is ,  you were ,  

u l t imate ly  removed f rom the  Board .  

MR BALOYI :   Ja .    

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  in  the  l e t te r  tha t  he  says you 

congra tu la ted  h im on the  Eskom vs .  West inghouse  mat te r.   

I  don ’ t  know whether  tha t  was the  Const i tu t iona l  Cour t  

judgment  o r  the  H igh  Cour t  judgement ,  do  you remember,  10 

do  you remember  wh ich  one i t  was? 

MR BALOYI :     The Const i tu t iona l  Cour t  i f  I  remember.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  i f  he  was ta lk ing  about  the  

Const i tu t iona l  Cour t  one,  he  shou ld  know tha t  the 

Const i tu t iona l  Cour t  d id  no t  dea l  w i th  the  mer i t s  and I  know 

i t  because I  wro te  the  majo r i t y  judgement .   I t  d id  no t  dea l  

w i th  the  mer i t s ,  whethe r  there  was –  there  were  prob lems 

wi th  p rocurement  o r  no t ,  tha t ’s  a l l  I  can  say,  okay le t ’s  

cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   Mr  Ba loy i  i t ’s  a  very  20 

s t range le t te r  in  the  sense tha t ,  tha t  paragraph says,  

" I  sent  an  emai l  to  Mr  Ba loy i ,  now I ’m read ing  the  

bo t tom paragraph on page 373,  I  sent  an  emai l  to  

Mr  Ba loy i ,  adv i s ing  h im tha t  I  w i l l  be  pursu ing  h is  

adv ice  and ask  h im to  recommend an appropr ia te 
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lawyer  fo r  me and he compl ied” ,  

 So i f  you  he adv i sed you a long the  l ines  he ’s  

say ing ,  tha t  he  w i l l  pursue the  adv ise ,  i sn ’ t  i t  s t range tha t  

he  was,  a t  the  same t ime compla in ing  about  you r  conduct  

to  the  Board  or  to  the  Cha i rpe rson and the  Min is te r?  

MR BALOYI :     Ja ,  ac tua l l y  i t  i s  more  –  i t  i s  cont rad ic to ry  –  

i t ’s  ac tua l l y  a  con t rad ic t ion  because you can see the re  isn ’ t  

any cons is tency and there ’s  no  honesty  in  bo th  –  I  mean 

you cannot  wr i te  the  same th ing  and the  same th ing  say 

tha t  –  and the  same th ings are  no t  ac tua l l y  in  l ine  w i th  one  10 

anothe r.  So,  the re  was an e lement  o f  cont rad ic t ion  and 

even our  d iscuss ions ac tua l l y.   The content  tha t  th is  le t te r  

i s  hav ing ,  i t  was someth ing  tha t  was c i ted  by  –  i t  was not  

someth ing  tha t  I  sa id ,  I  mean…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  you shou ld  te l l  the  Cha i rperson.  

MR BALOYI :     Yes,  I  d id  ac tua l l y  make the  adv ice  bu t  the  

content  has been  added somehow,  somewhere .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  are  you say ing…[ in tervenes] .   

MR BALOYI :     Bu t  in  shor t  i s  tha t  the  le t te r  i s  no t  

cons i s ten t ,  ja  because on top  he ’s  ta lk ing  about  adv ice ,  20 

tha t  I  in fo rmed h im about  1 ,  2 ,  3  and then he sa id  he ’s  

agree ing  then he ’s  say ing  he  doesn ’ t  want  to ,  you know.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  see ,  so  you are  say ing ,  in  any event ,  

the  le t te r  i t se l f  –  the  contents  o f  the  le t te r  a re  no t  s t r i c t l y  

re f lec t i ve  o f  your  conversa t ion  w i th  h im? 
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MR BALOYI :     No,  no  they ’ re  no t  a t  a l l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You ’ re  say ing  th is  was used  aga ins t  

you to  remove you?  

MR BALOYI :     Ja ,  ja  i t ’s  the  on ly  th ing  tha t  was used.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Who removed you?  

MR BALOYI :     As  I  sa id  tha t  they had a  meet ing  w i thout  

my presence.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Who ’s  tha t?  

MR BALOYI :     The Board ,  they had the  meet ing  w i thout  

my p resence,  say ing  tha t  I  was supposed to  have been  10 

there  o r  ge t  a  representa t i ve  or  whatever  and I  sa id  to  

them tha t  I  –  I  in fo rmed them in  advance tha t  I ’m not  

a round and I ’m coming on th is  da te  p lease wa i t  un t i l  I  

come back,  jus t  one week.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  don ’ t  th ink  the  Cha i rperson w i l l  hear  

you.  

MR BALOYI :     Okay,  sor ry,  so  i t  was jus t  an  emergency  

tha t  was crea ted  to  dea l  w i th  i t  in  my absence,  yes ,  so  –  

and then –  because when we –  I  f ina l l y  went  to  meet  w i th  

the  Min i s te r  the  who le  d iscuss ion  around ou r  conversa t ion  20 

w i th  the  Min i s te r,  i t  was about  me  ta lk ing  to  the  Execut ive  

who is  suspended.   So –  and u l t imate ly  a t  the  end the  

Min is te r  sa id  tha t  what  I  needed to  have done wou ld  have 

been to  in fo rm Board  members  no t  to  communica te  w i th  the  

Execut ives  and  tha t  was wha t  I  was expect ing  the  
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dec is ions o f  the  Min is te r  to  be  because i t  was not  about  

the  content  i t  was not  about  whether  th is  one is  r igh t  o r  

th is  one is  wrong i t  was about  communica t ing  w i th  the  

suspended Execu t ive  …[ in tervenes ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  Board  had never  made a  

reso lu t ion  tha t  Board  members  shou ld  no t  communica te  

w i th  the  suspended Execut ives ,  had i t ,  i t  had not?  

MR BALOYI :     No,  no  there  was no communica t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  by  ta lk ing  to  a  suspended Execut ive  

you had not  gone  aga ins t  any dec i s ion  o f  the  Board? 10 

MR BALOYI :     Yes,  t rue .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  what  had been done was tha t  the  

Execut ives  had been to ld  no t  to  communica te  w i th  peop le  

in  the  company wh ich  I  assume wou ld  be  s ta f f .  

MR BALOYI :     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  d id  the  Min i s te r  po in t  ou t  wh ich  

dec is ion  o f  the  Board  or  wh ich  ru le  o r  po l i cy  you had 

broken?  

MR BALOYI :     No,  ac tua l l y  wha t  –  in  our  d iscuss ion ,  a t  

the  end o f  our  d iscuss ion  he  sa id  tha t  i t  was supposed to  20 

have done tha t  d i rec t l y  to  the  Board ,  no t  to  communica te  

w i th  the  suspended s ta f f  and a lso  even when she wro te  the  

le t te r  to  me the  on ly  t h ing  was fo r  me to  have  

communica ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why wou ld  she  be –  why wou ld  she be  
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invo l ved in  mat te rs  o f  whether  the  Board  –  members  o f  the  

Board  ta lk  to  Execut ives  o f  Eskom,  as  Min i s te r,  why wou ld  

she get  invo lved in  tha t?  

MR BALOYI :     I  was su rpr i sed,  hence my on ly  expecta t ion  

f rom her  was to  have g iven a  warn ing  tha t  you must  no t  do  

i t  aga in  f rom now on because see ing  tha t ,  because when  

she wro te  me tha t  le t te r  I  th ink  I ’ ve  wr i t ten  to  he r  f i ve  or  

s ix  t imes to  persuade he r  to  change he r  m ind around tha t  

and then –  bu t  there  was never  co r respondence back,  there  

was never  a  response around tha t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Hm,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  Mr  Ba loy i  the  Commiss ion ,  the  

Cha i rperson unders tands you to  be  say ing ,  the  Min is te r  

ac tua l l y  apprec ia ted  tha t  there  was  no d i rec t i ve  a t  the  t ime 

and when you were  a t  the  meet ing  she ’s  say ing ,  I  shou ld  

have made a  d i rec t i ve ,  pu t  i t  in  p lace  and proh ib i ted  Board  

members  f rom speak ing  to  the  suspended Execut ives .  

MR BALOYI :     Ja  i t  i s  exact ly  tha t ,  as  you put  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  she put  in  p lace ,  tha t  d i rec t i ve?  

MR BALOYI :     I  don ’ t  know because the  on ly  20 

cor respondence I  go t  f rom her  was tha t  par t i cu la r  le t te r  

f rom her.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    What  le t te r  was tha t?  

MR BALOYI :     I t  was the  le t te r  to  say tha t  you  are  no  

longer  go ing  to  be  a  Board  member.  



07 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 278 
 

Page 144 of 185 
 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  a re  you aware ,  p r io r  to  her  g iv ing  

you the  le t te r  o f  remova l  tha t  she put  in  p lace  a  d i rec t i ve?  

MR BALOYI :     No,  I  d idn ’ t  ac tua l l y  ge t  any 

cor respondence a round tha t ,  I  don ’ t  th ink  i t  was eve r  g iven 

to  the  Board  members .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The dec i s ion  o f  the  Board  to  remove 

you,  what  i s  the  reason tha t  they gave?  

MR BALOYI :     I t  was main l y  to  have communica ted  w i th  

the  suspended…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    They sa id  because you had  10 

communica ted  w i th  a  suspended Execut ive?  

MR BALOYI :     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And was –  do  you know whethe r  tha t  was 

in  the  m inutes  or  tha t ’s  what  they to ld  you? 

MR BALOYI :     I t  was not  in  the  m inutes  i t ’s  what  they to ld  

me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  what  they  to ld  you?  

MR BALOYI :     Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And d id  they po in t  ou t  where  they had 

made a  dec i s ion  tha t  Board  members  shou ld  no t  20 

communica te  w i th  the  suspended Execut ives .  

MR BALOYI :     No there  was no…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  had never  been such  

a…[ in tervenes] .  

MR BALOYI :     No there  was never  such a  d i rec t i ve  or  a  
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ru le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i rperson,  re la t i ve  to  your  quest ion ,  

Mr  Ba loy i  you cou ld  tu rn  to  page 376,  i t  appears  to  be  a  

le t te r  f rom the  Cha i rperson o f  the  Board ,  in te r im 

Cha i rperson o f  the  Board ,  Dr  Ngubane,  to  yourse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  has i t  go t  a  da te  7  Apr i l  2015,  i t ’s  

addressed to  you Mr  Ba loy i  and the  head ing  i s  –  the  

sub jec t ,  meet ing  o f  the  Board  o f  D i rec tors  fo r  your  

remova l ,  10 

“We re fer  to  the  no t ice  o f  D i rec to rs  meet ing  wh ich  

you rece ived on Tuesday 7  Apr i l  2015” ,  

 Now,  the  le t te r  i s  wr i t ten  on  the  7 t h  o f  Apr i l  r igh t ,  

“Pursuant  to  the  no t ice ,  the  Board  met ,  and the  

reso lu t ions con ta ined there in  were  adopted 

unan imous ly.   P lease be adv ised tha t  you a re  

suspended as  a  non-Execut ive  D i rec tor  o f  the  

company w i th  immedia te  e f fec t .  Your  pos i t ion  on  the  

Board  sha l l  become vacant  on  the  le t te r  o f  the  

Min is te r ’s  concerned to  your  remova l  be ing  20 

rece ived,  w i th in  7  ca lendar  days o f  7  Apr i l  2015 or  

the  exp i ry  o f  the  t ime o f  f i l i ng  an  app l i ca t ion  fo r  

rev iew in  te rms  o f  the  Companies  Act  o r  the  

grant ing  o f  an  order  by  the  Cour t  on  such  

app l i ca t ion .   P lease be adv ised tha t  you have a  
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du ty  o f  conf iden t ia l i t y  in  re la t ion  to  a l l  mat te rs  

wh ich  came to  your  a t ten t ion  in  your  capac i ty  as  a  

non-Execut ive  D i rec to r  o f  the  Board .  You are  

requ i red  to  keep  conf ident ia l  a l l  such mat te rs  and 

tha t  the  company w i l l  ho ld  you  l iab le  and seek  

appropr ia te  redress inc lud ing  anyth ing  fo r  

damages” ,  

 I  guess tha t ’s  supposed to  say,  shou ld ,  i t  says  

wou ld ,  

“Shou ld  you breach your  du ty  o f  conf ident ia l i t y.   10 

You are  fu r ther  adv i sed to  re f ra in  f rom any fu r ther  

communica t ion  w i th  Eskom,  i t ’s  D i rec tors  and i t s  

employees” .  

 Where  is  the  one where  –  where  are  those 

reso lu t ions tha t  were  a t tached  to  the  no t ice  o f  the 

D i rec tors  meet ing? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  wou ld  seem to  be  page 377,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Which  is  be tween t raml ines a  no t ice  o f  20 

d i rec tors  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    They ’ re  g iv ing  a  no t ice  there ,  

“Not ice  i s  hereby  g iven tha t  a  meet ing  o f  the  Board 

o f  D i rec tors  w i l l  be  he ld ” ,  
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 And the  proposed reso lu t ions are  se t  ou t  f rom the  

midd le  o f  the  page.  

“Reso lu t ion  one,  remova l  o f  D i rec tor.  

Reasons fo r  the  reso lu t ion .    

The Board  is  o f  the  v iew tha t  Mr  Ba loy i ,  the  

D i rec to r,  has neg lec ted  o r  has been de re l i c t  in  the  

per fo rmance o f  h is  funct ions as  a  D i rec to r  as  

prov ided fo r  in  C lause 1310.3 .3 .  o f  the  MLI  read 

w i th  Sect ion  71  (3 )  (b )  o f  the  Act .   The Board  

be l ieves tha t  the  D i rec to r  has no t  ac ted  in  good 10 

fa i th  and fo r  p roper  purpose no r  has he  ac ted  w i th  

the  degree o f  cha i r,  sk i l l  and d i l igence tha t  may  

reasonab ly  be  expected o f  a  person ca r ry ing  ou t  the  

same funct ions in  re la t ion  to  the  company,  as  those 

car r ied  ou t  by  the  D i rec tor  fo r  the  fo l low ing 

reasons” ,  

Then the  reasons  fo l low,  

“The D i rec to r  has commi t ted  one  or  more  ac ts  o f  

m isconduct  invo l v ing  d i shonesty  towards the  Board  

in  tha t ,  th rough h is  ac t ions and/or  omiss ions he  has  20 

exposed the  company to  cer ta in  r i sks  as  numerated  

be low.   You have engaged w i th  and made  

conf ident ia l  d i sc losu res  regard ing  the  pu rpor ted  

in ten t ions o f  the  Board  to  a t  leas t  one o f  the  

suspended D i rec tors  o f  the  company.   In  b reach o f  
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your  f iduc ia ry  du t ies  you have th rea tened to  

d isc lose  in fo rmat ion  re la t ing  to  the  Board ,  

a l te rna t ive ly  about  and concern ing  the  Board  in  

o rder  to  embarrass  the  Board .   You have sought  to  

m is lead one or  more  o f  the  suspended D i rec to rs  in  

regard  to  the  Board ’s  i ndent ions.   You have  

th rea tened to  pursue cer ta in  l i t i ga t ion  to  advance  

an improper  agenda and put  the  company to  

unnecessary  expense” .  

Mr  Ba loy i  then they car ry  on ,  I  suppose you – I  don ’ t  know 10 

d id  you rece ive  th is  no t ice?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  d id  rece ive  i t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    When d id  you rece ive  i t ,  I  th ink  i t ’s  da te  

the  4 t h  o f  Apr i l ,  when d id  you rece ive  i t?  

MR BALOYI :     I t  cou ld  have been  the  same day bu t  i t  was  

the  da te  when I  was not  in  Gauteng .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh d id  you say tha t  you cou ld  no t  a t tend 

because you were  in  Mar i t zburg .  

MR BALOYI :     Yes,  P ie termar i t zburg  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you communica ted  w i th  them and  20 

asked them to  …[ in tervenes] .  

MR BALOYI :     Ja  I  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Change the  da te  o f  the  meet ing .  

MR BALOYI :     Yes,  I  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And they re fused.  
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MR BALOYI :     Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Who d id  you communica te  w i th ,  was i t  

the  company secre tary  o r  the  Cha i rperson?  

MR BALOYI :     I  th ink  bo th ,  i f  I ’m  not  m is taken.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BALOYI :     Because in  the  who le  board  I  th ink  I  m ight  

have wr i t ten  to  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  d id  you suggest  a  da te  fo r  the  

meet ing?  

MR BALOYI :     Yes,  I  sa id  tha t  I ’m  coming in  less  than a  10 

week.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Less than a  week?  

MR BALOYI :     Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  d id  you ind ica te  tha t  i t  cou ld  be  – 

the  meet ing  cou ld  be  on any da te  f rom a  ce r ta in  da te  or  

what  d id  you say?   

MR BALOYI :     Yes I  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And how much t ime was there  be tween  

the  da te  o f  7  Apr i l  to  the  da te  f rom when you wou ld  be  

ava i lab le?  20 

MR BALOYI :    I t ’s  less  than a  week,  I  sa id  immedia te ly.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and what  reason was g iven fo r  no t  

accommodat ing  you?  

MR BALOYI :    No,  they on ly  sa id  tha t  i f  I  was not  go ing  to  

be  ava i lab le  they  were  supposed to  –  I  was supposed to  
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send a  lawyer  to  go  and present  to  them tha t  I ’m  not  

ava i lab le  on  tha t  day.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You were  te l l ing  them befo re  the  da te  o f  

the  meet ing  or  were  you te l l ing  them a f te r.  

MR BALOYI :    Immedia te ly,  no  I  wro te  to  them 

immedia te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BALOYI :     Ja  i t  was.  

CHAIRPERSON:    They sa id  you shou ld  send a  lawyer?  

MR BALOYI :     They sa id  to  me I  shou ld  have  sent  a  10 

rep resenta t i ve  to  come and ask fo r  postponement  o r  

whatever  bu t  i t  was the  very  same th ing  tha t  they d id  to  Mr  

Tsots i  because you can ’ t  g ive  –  these th ings,  I  mean,  the  

MOI  says tha t  you must  have a t  leas t  ten  days o f  no t ice  

and here  you can  see tha t  i t ’s  th ree  days,  i t ’s  f rom the  4 t h  

to  the  7 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Se leka .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you  Cha i rperson.   Jus t  to  

f ina l i se ,  Mr  Ba loy i ,  so  you say  you are ,  as  you were  

exp la in ing  to  the  Cha i rperson,  you th ink  your  remova l  i s  20 

l inked to  you quest ion ing  ce r ta in  t ransact ions?  

MR BALOYI :     Ja ,  ac tua l l y  f rom what  you cou ld  have  

not iced tha t  ac tua l l y  every th ing  emanated  f rom 

there…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    From the?  
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MR BALOYI :     From the  IT tender.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BALOYI :     Every th ing  emanated f rom there  because 

the  –  Dr  Ngubane  was cha i r ing  i t  and…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  the  T-Systems t ransact ion? 

MR BALOYI :     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR BALOYI :     Every th ing  emanated f rom there ,  so  hence 

there  was uncomfor tab i l i t y  a round whether  they ’ ve  done  

th ings r i gh t  o r  wrong and I  was su rpr ised tha t  the  aud i to rs  10 

cou ld  no t  f ind  anyth ing  as  we l l ,  a round tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Who were  the  aud i to rs ,  do  you 

remember?  

MR BALOYI :     I  th ink  i t  was SNG.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BALOYI :     I  th ink  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why do you say eve ry th ing  emanated 

f rom your  quest ion  the  T-Systems tender?  

MR BALOYI :     No,  because i t  i s  the  one tha t  made  me to  –  

the  enqu i ry  I  made to  Dr  Ngubane i t  was around whethe r  20 

every th ing  has  been conc luded and ins tead  o f  h im 

respond ing  to  tha t ,  he  jus t  shouted a t  me and I  was  

shocked because tha t  was the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  we were  

communica t ing  a f te r  the  depar tu re  o f  the  prev ious  

Cha i rperson and  I  was ask ing  in  good fa i th  to  check 
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whethe r  we have conc luded because my worry  was the  

cont inu i t y  ex tens ion  as  i t  was a l ready above R4b i l l i on  and  

tha t  was ex tended.   So –  because i f  you can see the  

emai ls  tha t  I  wro te ,  a f te r  the  depar tu re  o f  Mr  Tsots i ,  I  th ink  

I  wro te  a round the  f i rs t  four  days tha t  I ’ ve  quest ioned 

these t ransact ions and I ’m not  ge t t ing  sa t is fac t ion  w i th  the  

responses.   So,  there ’s  someth ing  tha t  I  was concerned  

about  tha t  w i l l  make th is  i ssue o f  these t ransact ions to  be  

as  proper  as  poss ib le  and then I  a lso  suggested tha t ,  can 

we meet  the  fo l low ing week tha t  we d i scuss th is  and 10 

ins tead o f  meet ing  the  fo l low ing week to  d iscuss a l l  th is ,  I  

jus t  happened to  ge t  th is  par t i cu la r  le t te r  wh ich  was not ,  

ac tua l l y  fac tua l l y  cor rec t  as  we l l ,  in  te rms o f  the  no t ice  i t  

was not  fac tua l l y  cor rec t  because you cou ld  see tha t  there  

were  manufac tur ing  o f  these pa r t i cu la r  a l legat ions they 

were  no t  ac tua l l y  fac tua l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  Mr  Se leka  jus t  take  Mr  Ba loy i  to  

each one o f  those a l legat ions aga ins t  h im and le t  h im g ive  

a  response to  say what  he  has to  say about  each one o f  

them.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Ba loy i  tha t ’s  

back on  page 377,  tha t  no t ice  o f  d i rec tors  mee t ing ,  the 

reasons are  se t  ou t  f rom paragraph 1 .1  be low.   

“The D i rec to r  commi t tee  one or  more  o f  the  ac ts  o f  

m isconduct  invo lv ing  d ishonesty  towards the  board  
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and tha t  th rough  h is  ac t ions and /or  omiss ions he  

has exposed the  company to  cer ta in  r i sks  as  

numera ted be low.   1 .1   You have engaged w i th  and  

made conf ident ia l  d isc losures  

regard ing…[ in tervenes] ” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe before  you go to  1 .1  maybe le t  

h im say what  he  has to  say about  tha t  in t roductory  par t .   

What  do  you say about  tha t  par t  Mr  Ba loy i ,  where  the  

no t ice  says you  had commi t ted  one or  more  ac ts  o f  

m isconduct  invo l v ing  d i shonesty  towards the  Board  in  tha t ,  10 

th rough your  ac t ions and/o r  omiss ions you had expose the  

company to  cer ta in  r i sks?  

MR BALOYI :    Ja ,  ac tua l l y  i t  i s  no t  cor rec t  because there  

was no misconduct  f rom my s ide  and the re  was  

no…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you  do anyth ing  invo l v ing  

d ishonesty?  

MR BALOYI :    No,  no th ing ,  ac tua l l y  there  was noth ing  a t  

a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay then you can take  h im  to the 20 

spec i f i cs .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  1 .1  says,  

“You have engaged w i th  and made conf ident ia l  

d isc losures  regard ing  the  purpo r ted  in ten t ions o f  

the  Board  to  a t  leas t  one o f  the  suspended d i rec tors  



07 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 278 
 

Page 154 of 185 
 

o f  the  company” ,  

 Now I  must  say,  Mr  Ba loy i  tha t  conf ident ia l  

d isc losures  are  no t  spec i f ied  bu t  what  i s  your  comment  on  

tha t ,  d id  you make d isc losures  o f  a  conf ident ia l  na tu re?  

MR BALOYI :    No,  there  was noth ing  conf ident ia l ,  ac tua l l y  

i t  was –  they were  re fe r r ing  to  the  le t te r  tha t  was wr i t ten  by  

Mr  Koko,  the  one tha t  I  sa id  tha t  …[ in tervenes] .     

ADV SELEKA SC:    Jus t  repeat  tha t ,  they  were  re fe r r ing?  

MR BALOYI :   They were  re fer r ing  to  those in fo rmat ion  tha t  

was wr i t ten  in  the  le t te r…[ in te rvenes] .    10 

CHAIRPERSON:    From Mr  Koko?  

MR BALOYI :     Yes,  every th ing  emanated f rom th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR BALOYI :     Ja  so…[ in tervenes ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  they were  tak ing  what  he  was say ing  

as  t rue?  

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  bu t  you main ta in  tha t  you never  

d isc losed to  Mr  Koko or  any suspended D i rec tor  anyth ing  

conf ident ia l?  20 

MR BALOYI :     No,  there  was no th ing  conf ident ia l  in  tha t  

Board ,  there  was noth ing  tha t  was p r iva te  o r  secre t  

because the  i ssues o f  the  suspens ions –  I  mean,  we d idn ’ t  

have the  Board  meet ing  to  ta lk  about  the  issues  o f  the  

suspens ions.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BALOYI :     A f te r  tha t ,  we d idn ’ t  have any –  and I  was  

not  in  [ ind is t inc t ]  in  any commi t tee .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  1 .2  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   Wel l  I  can  go to  2 ,  Cha i r,  I  

had a  quest ion  there  about  the  in ten t ions o f  the  Board  

whethe r  you sa id  anyth ing  abou t  the  in ten t ions  o f  the  

Board  to  Mr  Koko,  do  you know what  a re  the  in ten t ions o f  

the  Board  they ’ re  re fer r ing  to?  

CHAIRPERSON:    They don ’ t  even  say what  in ten t ions.  10 

MR BALOYI :     Ja  because ac tua l l y,  what  we a l l  knew was 

tha t  the  –  and i t ’s  what  the  Execu t ives  were  to ld ,  tha t  we  

want  to  do  th is  inqu i ry  then a f te r  t ha t  you won ’ t  come back.   

So –  and we even to ld  them so there  was – tha t ’s  why I ’m 

say ing  tha t  there  was no in ten t ion  o f  them not  coming back  

or  whatever  the  in ten t ion  was tha t  they w i l l  come back.   Ja,  

so  the re  was noth ing  tha t  was spec i f ied .  

CHAIRPERSON:    1 .2?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    1 .2  says,  

“ In  b reach o f  your  f iduc ia ry  du t ies  you have 20 

th rea tened to  d isc lose  in fo rmat ion  re la t ing  to  the 

Board ,  a l te rna t ive ly  about  and concern ing  the  Board  

in  o rder  to  embar rass  the  Board” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you know what  they were  ta lk ing  

about  here?  
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MR BALOYI :     Not  a t  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you ever  th rea ten to  d isc lose  

in fo rmat ion  relat ing to the board or  up on the board.  

MR BALOYI:   Nothing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you know anybody to whom you may 

have made this threat?  Did you ever make that  threat  along 

these l ines to anybody whether to a member of  the board or 

to somebody f rom outs ide? 

MR BALOYI:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because the way i t  is  phrased formulated i t  10 

is as i f  you said to the board or a member of  the board;  I  am 

going to disclose A,  B,  C,  D.  

MR BALOYI:   No I  th ink what I  might  have said was – could 

have been to say that  the issues of  these part icular  tenders 

… 

CHAIRPERSON:   The TC Systems tender.  

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR BALOYI:   I f  he can go to the media.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR BALOYI:   I f  he is going to embarrass the board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To embarrass the board.  

MR BALOYI:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay so which is di fferent  f rom what they 

are saying here.  
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MR BALOYI:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  of  course i f  there were wrong things 

about that  tender then you know the board should not  be 

want ing to sweep them under the carpet .  

MR BALOYI:   Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   1.3 – Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   1.3 Mr Baloyi  reads:  

“You have sought to mislead one or more of  

the suspended d irectors in regard to the 

board’s intent ions.”  10 

Now did you know who are they referr ing one or more of  the 

suspended d irectors? 

MR BALOYI:   No actual ly they are di fferent  to the same 

di rectors who was … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Koko.  

MR BALOYI:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the only one you can think of .  

MR BALOYI:   Ja he is the only one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you – you actual ly do not  know.  

MR BALOYI:   Ja.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you – you are – that  is the only one 

you can think of .  

MR BALOYI:   He is the one they were referr ing to.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.  
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MR BALOYI:   Hence i t  was the very same conversat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And d id you understand what they meant 

that  you were t ry ing to mislead him or  sought to  mislead 

him? 

MR BALOYI:   No.   No because of  the factual  incorrect  th ings 

that  he wrote in the conversat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   There is  no – correct  – wel l  not  

correct  but  what I  am asking you is,  d id you understand – did 

you understand – not  understand.   Is i t  c lear f rom this  let ter? 

MR BALOYI:   No i t  is not .   I t  is vaguely.   Actual ly i t  was not  10 

wri t ten by lawyers.   I  could see that  i t  was wri t ten by Doctor 

Ngubane.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You mean the lawyers can be clear in 

their  wr i t ing? 

MR BALOYI:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja okay.   1.4  

“You have threatened to pursue certain  

l i t igat ion – you have threatened to pursue 

certain l i t igat ion to advance an improper 

agenda and put  the company to an 20 

unnecessary expense.”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you know what they were talk ing about 

here? 

MR BALOYI:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you ever ask them or anyone of  them; 
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what  are you talk ing about here you people? 

MR BALOYI:   No I  d id not  actual ly ask about thei r… 

CHAIRPERSON:   You never got  the chance.  

MR BALOYI:   Hm because I  was asking them to wai t  unt i l  I  

come back.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  you – did you ever threaten to  

pursue any l i t igat ion at  al l?  

MR BALOYI:   No I  th ink i t  was the issue of  i f  they cont inue 

in my absence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  10 

MR BALOYI:   Ja i f  they cont inue wi th th is process.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you threaten to… 

MR BALOYI:   And i t  was not  about  the tender.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you threaten to go to court  i f  they 

proceeded in your  absence to remove you? 

MR BALOYI:    Yes I  d id.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You did threaten that? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes I  d id ment ion that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So you suspect  that  is what they may be 

talk ing about? 20 

MR BALOYI:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i f  that  is –  i f  that  is what they are 

talk ing about would you have had an improper agenda in  

resort ing to court? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes I  was . .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Would you have had an improper agenda in  

going to court  about  th is issue? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes I  was going to have a proper agenda to … 

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  sa id improper – i t  says improper.  

MR BALOYI:   No not  improper – no,  no,  no.   I t  was not  

improper around everything.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

MR BALOYI:   There was nothing improper.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes but  Mr Baloyi  how is th is a reason to 10 

remove you when the reasons to remove must emanate 

outside of  the cal l ing of  the meet ing.   You understand what I  

am saying?  How does this become a reason to remove you 

i f  the meet ing is actual ly sought to  be convened for reasons 

outside of  that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am not  sure i f  I  a lso understand.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So i f  you say I  am asking for more t ime 

please stop the meet ing f rom consider ing what is al leged to 

be dishonesty on your part .   How is  th is then part  of  a not ice 

that  is cal l ing you to that  meet ing to  remove you? 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am not  sure i f  I  understand.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   He does not  fo l low Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  t ry again a formulat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So you are saying to the board please 

give me more t ime because I  am not  around.  So they are 
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cal l ing you to a meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Actual ly he is saying change the date to 

another date when I  am avai lable.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes that  is r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So they al ready have the reasons why 

they want to remove you.  

MR BALOYI:   Hm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So how does your request  on the day 

they not i fy you and you are saying to them, no change the 10 

date becomes also now a reason why you should be removed 

when you say wel l  i f  you do not  – i f  you do not  extend the 

meet ing date I  might  go to court .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   Okay now I  understand.  

MR BALOYI:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  me put  i t  th is way.   Mr Baloy i  to the 

extent  that  number 1.4 seeks to condemn you or remove – to  

be used to remove you because you threatened to go to 

court  i f  they did not  change the date for the meet ing.   Are 

you able to understand how they could use that  to  remove 20 

you? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes I  understand your  – I  understand.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   But  can you understand thei r  

reasoning? 

MR BALOYI:   That  intent ion cannot be used as a reason.  
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Even number 1.2 that  I  have threatened to disclose.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   They cannot remove a person because he says 

– said he has threatened to disc lose.   I  mean.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  he has not  threatened to disclose 1.4.   

He is threatening to pursue l i t igat ion.   And you explained 

that  you threatened to pursue l i t igat ion i f  they did not  agree 

to change the date of  the meet ing.   So the quest ion is 

whether now when they take that  and use that  as part  of  the 

reason why you should be removed are you able to fo l low 10 

their  logic? 

MR BALOYI:   Ja I  can fol low their  logic because they were 

t ry ing to make al legat ions as many as possib le.   They were 

also t ry ing to  see to i t  to check which one may st ick which 

one may not  st ick.   So let  us make as many al legat ions as 

possible so that  one may st ick.  

CHAIRPERSON:   They throwing at  you as many al legat ions 

as possible.  

MR BALOYI:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  20 

MR BALOYI:   Because in genera l  is that  when we were – 

when we did the proceedings of  the previous Chai rperson Mr 

Tsotsi  I  d id indicate where we are v iolat ing the memorandum 

of  incorporat ion.   That  we are not  in compl iance actual ly we 

are supposed to give him at  least  ten days of  not ice.   And 
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there we are giving him a few days.  So we are not  even 

compl iant .   And even this – i t  was not  in compl iance.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   Because I  mean i t  was three days or 

something.   So they were cont inuing to violate the MOI that  

i t  was audi t  approved to be in use.   So – and for your 

informat ion is  that  maybe i f  I  could have made but  I  th ink I  

d id make them avai lable the emai ls I  wrote about the f i rst  

four days.   But  actual ly remember Mr Tsotsi  when he lef t  on 

the 30t h.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   And then the f i rst  four days [ ta lk ing over one 

another] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are the emai ls  – are there emai ls  that  are 

not  here which are relevant  to… 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What we are talk ing about? 

MR BALOYI:   Exact ly.   Because I  th ink the – but  I  d id send 

them through but  I  cannot see them here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay maybe they wi l l  te l l  you where they 20 

are.  

MR BALOYI:   But  they have got  the subject  of  saying the 

f i rst  four days.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What are some of  the important  th ings you 

– you said in those emai ls? 
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MR BALOYI:   No I  was saying that  the t reatment  of  the 

board Chai rperson I  mean for example when I  ca l led and he 

shouted at  me i t  was the f i rst  g l i tch that  he ever  done to me.  

I  mean we never had such before.   I t  just  came as a surpr ise 

to me.  I  mean i t  was wi thin the four or three days of  h im 

being the act ing Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   So i t  came as a shock that  he could respond 

to me in such a harsh way.   And then I  do not  know maybe i t  

is because of  the t ransact ion that  I  have quest ioned because 10 

he was supposed the one to approve i t  as the Chai rperson of  

the tender commit tee.   So – and then I  – also would have 

ment ioned certain  violat ions of  some corporate governance.   

But  I  d id wri te that  in the let ter to the Minister.   I  th ink I  

wrote around twenty pages.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   Twenty something – twenty-four pages.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja that  is. . .  

MR BALOYI:   Where I  ind icate that  al l  those issues that  we 

are exper iencing as a new board under the new 20 

Chairmanship af ter Mr Tsotsi  has le f t .   So the very few days 

there was very st range.   The behaviour was – f rom the 

chairperson was very st range.   I t  was inconsistent  wi th how 

he used to be before he was the chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  Mr Seleka.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   The representat ions to the Min ister Mr 

Baloyi  page 385 check whether that  is  what you are referr ing 

to?   

MR BALOYI:   3? 

CHAIRPERSON:   The other emai ls that  he is  ta lk ing about  

we do not  have? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   The other emai ls we do not  have.   We 

have emai ls but  they do not  bear reference to the issue Mr 

Baloyi  is referr ing to.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh then maybe i f  he could later  on do an 10 

aff idavi t  and… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At tach them and deal  wi th them and make 

the points he wanted to make.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is that  – page 385.   Page 385.    

MR BALOYI:   Yes i t  is here.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   These your  representat ions to the 

Minister? 20 

MR BALOYI:   Ja the 22 pages yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see that  f rom page – page 396 Mr 

Baloyi  you seem to deal  wi th these al legat ions we have gone 

through in that  not ice of  the board to you.   And you address 

them under paragraph 6.2.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry just  to get  th is r ight .   Your  

representat ions Mr Baloyi  to the Minister  are dated 15 Apri l  

2015 and they start  at  page 385 and go up to 406 is that  

r ight? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay al r ight .   These representat ions 

re lated to the – your removal  by the board?  Did they relate 

to your removal  for the – f rom the board? 

MR BALOYI:   Ja why I  must  not  be removed ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   But  af ter the board had made the 10 

decision? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay al r ight .  Cont inue Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So as I  understand the board made a 

resolut ion and presented i t  to the Minister? 

MR BALOYI:   Hm.   In my absence yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So the Minister  was the one 

ul t imately going to remove you? 

MR BALOYI:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So you are making representat ions to her 20 

why she should not  remove you? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And in your representat ion you deal  wi th 

the grounds upon which the board made i ts resolut ion? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   And that  speci f ical ly appears f rom page 

496 paragraph 6.2.   You see that? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Are you on that  page? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes I  am.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   6.2 is the board:  

“On 7 Apri l  2015 consider the fo l lowing breaches of  f iduciary 

dut ies which were never discussed with me on 3 Apri l  2015 

SES Commit tee meet ing. ”  

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   And you l ist  them 6.2.1 to 6.2.4 which 

bear.  

MR BALOYI:   The same ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thei r  ref lect ion to . .  

MR BALOYI:   The one… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  is a reproduct ion of  those?  You have 

engaged with and made conf ident ia l  d isclosures regarding 

the purported intent ions.   Which is the f i rst  one i t  has got  al l  

of  them [00:15:22] .   So you then address the Min ister on 

each one of  them in your representat ions.  20 

MR BALOYI:   6.3 actual ly – ja I  commented on 6.3.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Just  raise your voice? 

MR BALOYI:   I  said I  commented on 6.3.   I  said that  th is  

clear ly and obviously proved that  the board had real ised that  

I  have the prospect  of  chal lenging and winning against  thei r  
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decision of  removing in the court  of  law because of  the 

condi t ions of  the Company’s Act  76 Sect ion 4A5C as they 

know I  am a [?]  d i rector against  the suspension of  the four 

execut ives.   They twisted thei r  a l legat ions so that  they 

removed me based on what is contained in 6.2 something 

that  was never tested to be t rue but  a conclusion was made.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Hm.  And I  see that  i f  you turn the page 

to page 399 at  the bot tom of  the page you speci f ica l ly deal  

wi th the issue of  conf ident ia l i ty.   And under breach of 

conf idence you say:  10 

“ I t  is Mr Koko and Doctor Ngubane and not  

me who d isc losed the conf ident ia l  

informat ion that  took place between Mr Koko 

and mysel f .   Doctor Ngubane wrote to each 

and every member individual ly  the let ter that  

was wri t ten about me by Mr Koko. ”  

Wel l  you could refer us – let  us see.   I f  you – I  see you seem 

to refer to a paragraph number and you make a comment on 

a bul let  point .   So let  us quick ly  start  at  page 397 under 

paragraph 7 Violat ions of  Corporate Governance and 20 

Company’s Act .   Are you there?  So you say;  let  me p lease 

indicate the law how Corporate Governance was v iolated in 

th is regard.   The obvious role of  the chai rperson.  Then your 

bul let  point  fo l lows.    

“The act ing Chairperson fa i led to play a 
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conci l iatory role  as a Chai rperson when 

confronted wi th the let ter f rom Mr Koko 

instead he took the advisory let ter  f rom the 

lawyers read i t  out  to the board members and 

bel ieved i t  as a def in i te breach of  f iduciary 

duty wi thout  f i rst  test ing i t . ”  

As the act ing Chairperson I  bel ieve you are referr ing to Mr – 

Doctor Ngubane? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.   I t  is him ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   7.2 you say:  10 

“The Chai rperson is ob l iged to use his or her 

power appropr iate ly”  

Sorry just  before that  the word f i rst  test ing i t  are you saying 

this let ter was not  given to you in  order to respond to the 

al legat ions made by Mr Koko? 

MR BALOYI:   Actual ly what happened is that  they did that  – 

they got  the let ter  Mr Koko.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   They asked for a board meet ing.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  20 

MR BALOYI:   Where we went  there and then I  – he said that 

he received the le t ter f rom the lawyers.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Who said that? 

MR BALOYI:   Doctor Ngubane.  That  he got  the let ter – the 

opinion let ter f rom the – f rom the lawyers so that  he was 
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saying to them that  I  ta lk ing to the suspended execut ive.   I  

breached f iduciary.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  speak up – speak up Mr Baloyi .  

MR BALOYI:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am not  fo l lowing what you are saying.  

MR BALOYI:   No,  no he was saying that  he got  a let ter of  

the opinion – the legal  opinion f rom the lawyers.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Who was saying that? 

MR BALOYI:   Doctor Ngubane.  

CHAIRPERSON:   About what? 10 

MR BALOYI:   That  for me to have spoken to  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Koko.  

MR BALOYI:   Mr Koko ja i t  was a breach of  f iduciary duty 

because I  was talk ing against  the board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  before they… 

MR BALOYI:   So the issue… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Before they decided to cal l  you to a 

meet ing where they intended removing you they had not  

asked you to respond to Mr Koko’s let ter  and hear  what you 

have to say before they could weigh up and see whether 20 

they should bel ieve what Mr Koko was saying or they should 

bel ieve you,  had they? 

MR BALOYI:   There was this social  and ethics commit tee 

that  I  had engagement wi th.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry.  
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MR BALOYI:   There was Ethics and Social  – what – Social  

and Ethics Commit tee where – where we had discussions 

about that .   And then i t  was supposed to – I  th ink we – I  d id  

have a meet ing wi th them to explain exact ly what  I  said.   

That  some of  these th ings that  are wri t ten are not  t rue.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh the Ethics Commit tee – Social  and 

Ethics Commit tee.  

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did ask you to explain – to respond to 

what Mr Koko had said? 10 

MR BALOYI:   Ja i t  was mainly about  the content  of  the 

let ter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes about the content .  

MR BALOYI:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you – you explained what had 

happened? 

MR BALOYI:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So the decision to… 

MR BALOYI:   What is t rue and what was not  t rue.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The decision to cal l  a meet ing happened 20 

af ter that? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So the Ethics – Social  and Ethics 

Commit tee would have gone to the board and told them what 

your response was to Mr Koko’s let ter? 
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MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To the a l legat ions that  – of  Mr Koko made? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay so when they cal led the meet ing they 

have had – they had had the benef i t  of  your version and Mr 

Koko’s version.  

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

MR BALOYI:   Actual ly the meet ing – no,  no,  no.   The 

meet ing of  the board happened I  th ink i t  was Thursday.   And 10 

then they said that  I  must  meet wi th that  commit tee and I  

th ink i t  was maybe the fol lowing day.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Af ter they had made a decision? 

MR BALOYI:   No,  no.   Actual ly when the let ter was received 

they made an urgent  special  board meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR BALOYI:   Where I  was informed that  there is th is  

part icular let ter that  we received f rom Koko and then we 

need to – I  have requested the lawyers to check whether 

there is a breach of  f iduciary dut ies.   I  got  the legal  opinion 20 

i t  says there is a breach and then we must do some fact  

f inding wi th the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  switch on your microphone you have 

switched i t  off .  

MR BALOYI:   So that  I  can explain exact ly what happened.  
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So  

CHAIRPERSON:   So the quest ion is s imply whether  by the 

t ime the board gave you a not ice of  the meet ing of  the 7 t h  

Apri l  where they intended to remove you as a di rector 

whether by the t ime they sent  you that  let ter you had been 

given a chance to put  your  side of  the story in response to 

what Mr Koko had said in his let ter.  

MR BALOYI:   Oh yes,  yes we did.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You had got  that  opportuni ty? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   And you had used i t?  

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   The lawyers they used is i t  

Thompson Wi lks? 

MR BALOYI:   I  do not  know because I  asked for the legal  

opinion that  they did not  want to give i t  to me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   They did not  give you the legal  op inion? 

MR BALOYI:   Ja they did not .   So I  do not  know which ones.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l  I  see a let ter is wri t ten to  you by 20 

Thompson Wi lks.  

MR BALOYI:   They were the ones that  we were using dur ing 

[mumbl ing]  Mr Tsotsi .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   They used those dur ing Mr Tsotsi?  

MR BALOYI:   Ja.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   How far are we f rom f in ishing Mr Seleka 

wi th him? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr Baloyi  then your representat ions to  

the Minister are there – to the Minister yes.   And is there any 

part icular one you wish to  draw the Chai rperson’s at tent ion 

to?  I  have read some of  them where you say conf ident ia l i ty 

of  informat ion was in  fact  not  disc losed by you but  by Doctor 

Ngubane and Mr Koko.  

MR BALOYI:   Hm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l  g iven the ul t imate decision by the 10 

Minister i t  would seem that  your representat ions did not  f ly.  

MR BALOYI:   We can say so.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you in these representat ions say that  

your removal  was connected in any way wi th your  

quest ioning the T Systems tender? 

MR BALOYI:   I  th ink so.   I  bel ieve so actual ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry.  

MR BALOYI:   I  be l ieve so.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are not  sure? 

MR BALOYI:   No I  be l ieve so.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You bel ieve that  you did? 

MR BALOYI:   Ja i t  was the main thing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no but  the quest ion I  am asking is not  

whether you bel ieve so but  whether  you included that  in the 

representat ions? 
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MR BALOYI:   Oh yes I  d id yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You did include i t  in the representat ions? 

MR BALOYI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you know whether the board responded 

to your representat ions to the Min ister before the Minister 

took a decision? 

MR BALOYI:   No the – because the processes actual ly are 

usual ly l ike the board wi l l  f i rst  meet and they wri te the 

recommendat ions to  the Minister.   And then the Minister  wi l l  

just  cal l  you for the [00:27:00] to come and present  yoursel f  10 

and then the Minister wi l l  make the decision based on your 

presentat ion.   So the board wi l l  not  have had this because 

they did not  get  one pr ior to wri t ing to the Minister.   And 

there was no more – there was no engagement wi th them. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh you did not  give the board a copy of  

your representat ions? 

MR BALOYI:   I  – no I  d id not  give the board i t  is only the … 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you a lso do not  know whether the 

Minister sent  them a copy to enable them to respond to what 

you had to say before she made the decision,  is that  r ight? 20 

MR BALOYI:   No I  do not  know the in between processes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  know.   Okay.   I  see that  in the 

Minister ’s let ter dated or appearing at  page 407 signed on 

the 20 Apri l  2015 I  see that  she refers to the meet ing that  

she had wi th you on the 14 Apr i l  in respect  of  your – she 
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says your presentat ion.   And then she says among other  

th ings Sect ion 762Ai i  she does not  there say of  which Act  

provides that  a d irector may not  use his posi t ion to  obtain 

informat ion to knowingly cause harm to the company.   Then 

she says by advising the suspended execut ive to  approach 

the CCMA as wel l  as threatening to make publ ic the 

informat ion you obtained you have acted contrary to your 

f iduciary dut ies to  the company.   So the f i rst  part  of  that  last  

sentence I  have read seems to say i t  is wrong to say to an 

employee you may go to the CCMA i f  you are aggrieved.  10 

MR BALOYI:   Yes she is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  how you understand i t  too? 

MR BALOYI:   She is saying so.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  thought – I  thought employers advise 

employees a l l  the t ime when an employee gets suspended or  

dismissed they are advised of  thei r  r ights you can go to the 

CCMA i f  you are aggrieved.  

MR BALOYI:   Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or you can go and appeal  i f  you are 

aggrieved.   I  thought that  is just  something that  gets done? 20 

MR BALOYI:   Exact ly actual ly normal ly I  mean whenever you 

dismiss a person you need to give them of  thei r  r ight  that  

they have got  the r ight  to… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR BALOYI:   Seek … 
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CHAIRPERSON:   But  i t  looks l ike the Minister thought – the 

Minister and the board thought that  to the extent  that  i f  you 

had said that  that  would have been wrong.   Okay then they 

say this by threatening to  make publ ic the informat ion you 

obtained.   You have acted contrary to your f iduciary dut ies.   

You do not . . .  do you know what she is ta lk ing about there? 

MR BALOYI :    No . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    What informat ion she is ta lk ing about? 

MR BALOYI :    No.   Actual ly,  I  th ink i t  was copied and 

pasted.   I t  was corrected . . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was copied and pasted f rom the board’s  

resolut ion? 

MR BALOYI :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   She says further,  seven. . .   

“ . . .764( i )  of  the Companies Act  71 (2) and (8) al lows 

di rectors to take reasonable di l igent  steps to  

become informed about matters in order to exerc ise 

the powers and funct ions of  a  di rector of  a  

company. ”  

 Sub-sect ion 5 goes on to set  out  the extent  20 

contemplated in that :  

“A di rector is ent i t led to rely on one or more 

employees of  the company in order to obtain 

informat ion,  opinions or thoughts or  statements.  

I t  is  my understanding that  an execut ive placed on 
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suspension fal ls  wi thout  the employees whom a 

di rector may contact . ”  

 Then she says:  

“ I t  is my view, by communicat ing wi th a suspended 

off ic ia l ,  you have breached a fundamental  pr inciple  

of  t rust  between yoursel f  and the board,  whereas 

the informat ion that  you sought to obtain and further  

contact  wi th other employees of  the company,  

should have been obtained through the inter im chief  

execut ive.  10 

You have admit ted to  d ivulging conf ident ia l  

d iscussions of  the board wi th  the suspended off ic ia l ,  

which for me ra ises concerns about ethical  

boundaries which should be observed by al l  

d i rectors.”  

 Did you admit  divulging conf ident ia l  d iscussions of  the 

board to a suspended off ic ia l?  

MR BALOYI :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MR BALOYI :    No . . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Did you admit  to the minister that  you had 

divulged conf ident ia l  d iscussions of  the board to a 

suspended off ic ia l?  

MR BALOYI :    No,  there was nothing to. . .  there was nothing 

conf ident ia l .   As I  have said that  the issues of  the suspended 
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execut ives was never discussed af ter they were suspended.   

We never had the board meet ing where we discussed them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR BALOYI :    So there was nothing that  was ever d iscussed 

at  the board about . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    She says here,  you admit ted 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MR BALOYI :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . though divulging conf ident ia l  

d iscussions . . . [ intervenes]   10 

MR BALOYI :    I t  was . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . to the board.   Did you ever admit 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MR BALOYI :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . that  you have done that? 

MR BALOYI :    I  d id not .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR BALOYI :    The good part  of  i t  is that ,  that  meet ing was 

recorded.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MR BALOYI :    So hence I  asked . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that  the meet ing wi th the minister? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was recorded? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes.   As I  asked your invest igator to also get  
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hold of  that  part icular recording.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   We have the t ranscr ipt .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    No.  we do not  have i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  but  have any at tempts been made to 

get  i t  or not  rea l ly? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  do not  th ink i t  has yet  been made.  No,  

not  yet .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.   So I  th ink at tempts should be made 

to obtain i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    The recording.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    And then she says in the last  paragraph:  

“ I  have considered the board ’s recommendat ion 

together wi th the presentat ion you have made at  the 

meet ing and in  terms of  Clause 13.11.3.7.2 of  

Eskom’s Memorandum of  Incorporat ion,  I  hereby 

exercise my r ight  as shareholder and inform you that  

I  consent to the board’s  recommendat ion to  remove 

you as a non-execut ive di rector wi th effect  f rom 

22 Apri l  2015. ”  

 Wel l ,  that  is here decision.   Okay.   Mr Seleka.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Are there st i l l  outstanding issues to 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    There is one important  quest ion.   Let  me 

see whether Mr Baloyi  knows the answer to  th is.   Mr Baloyi ,  
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do you know who replaced you at  the board af ter you were 

removed? 

MR BALOYI :    I  do not  know but  I  know there are people who 

came on board af terwards because there were obvious 

changes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Do you know the appointment of  Mr 

Leonardo . . . [ intervenes]   

MR BALOYI :    H’m? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Giovanni? 

MR BALOYI :    [No audible reply]   10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    You do not  know? 

MR BALOYI :    No,  I  do not  know.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    But  do you know of  his appointment on 

the board?  Not  that  you know him.  

MR BALOYI :    Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    But  of  his appointment to the Board of  

Eskom? 

MR BALOYI :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Did you hear who was appointed af ter you 

had lef t ,  who was appointed in your posi t ion? 20 

MR BALOYI :    Ja,  that  point ,  I  do not  know.  But  I  have 

not iced the appointments.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    The Chairperson cannot hear you.  

MR BALOYI :    No,  I  have not iced the appointments but  I  do 

not  know who . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was people you did not  know? 

MR BALOYI :    I  d id not  know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was somebody that  you did not  know? 

MR BALOYI :    Yes,  I  d id not .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay was there somebody who replaced 

Mr Tsotsi  as a d i rector?  Do you know whether somebody 

was appointed to replace him as a di rector?  I  know that  in  

terms of  chai rperson,  Dr Ngubane became the act ing 

chairperson or inter im chairperson.  

MR BALOYI :    Ja . . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Was there somebody who was appointed 

as a di rector? 

MR BALOYI :    I  do not  know, actual ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  know? 

MR BALOYI :    No 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So there was no appointment of  any 

person to replace Mr Tsotsi  before you were removed? 

MR BALOYI :    No,  there was no one. 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.   That  is a l l  Chai rperson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   I  had a quest ion a minute ago but  i t  

seems to have gone away.   Did you ever get  to know more 

about  who owned T-Systems and who had an interest  in T-

Systems whether dur ing your t ime at  Eskom or af ter? 

MR BALOYI :    I  d id not  get  to know the people or the 
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. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You never got  to know who owned that  

company or who . . . [ intervenes]   

MR BALOYI :    I  just  know i t  as a German company.  

CHAIRPERSON :    As a German company? 

MR BALOYI :    H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Okay Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  have no further quest ions,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Thank you very much Mr Baloyi  for  

coming to give ev idence.   I  thought  we were going to f in ish 10 

much earl ier but  the ci rcumstances did not  permit .   But  there 

were some important  issues you needed to deal  wi th th is 

af ternoon.   

 But  thank you very much for making yoursel f  avai lable.   

I f  you are able to get  the correspondence that  you talked 

about,  the emai ls.    

 P lease,  make contact  wi th the legal  team so that  maybe 

you could put  up an aff idavi t  where you deal  wi th those 

emai ls and at tach them and comment on them.   

 And then we wi l l  take i t  f rom there.   Thank you very 20 

much for coming to assist  the Commission.   You are now 

excused.  

MR BALOYI :    Thank you,  s i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr Seleka,  what is. . .  what  is our si tuat ion? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Chai r,  tomorrow we have one scheduled 
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wi tness.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And on looking at  the t ime. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    The wi tness scheduled,  speci f ical ly 

scheduled for tomorrow, should be fai r ly br ief .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  is the company secretary.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Or former.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I f  the Chai r  permits,  we could due to 

t ime const raints s tart  wi th Mr Venete Klein in the morning.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Or we could start  now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  i f  we have only. . .  otherwise,  i f  we have 

only wi tness tomorrow, I  th ink we would have enough t ime.  

Is Ms Klein avai lable to come back tomorrow? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    No,  I  have not  canvassed that  a t  a l l .   I  

see actual ly has postponed.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  she nodding where she is?  Ja,  she is  

nodding.   Ja.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh,  okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   No.   Thank you of  that .   So I  th ink let  

us adjourn her ev idence to tomorrow.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja.   Okay.   Thank you very much.  We 

wi l l  now adjourn for the day and we wi l l  cont inue tomorrow at  

ten o’clock.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chai rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON :    We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 8 OCTOBER 2020 
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